Public Document Pack
Hi
Can you
Date:
Our Ref:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

13 July 2020
G&A Committee/Agenda
Charles Hungwe
(08143) 577186
charles.hungwe@thanet.gov.uk

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 JULY 2020
A meeting of the Governance & Audit Committee will be held at 5.00 pm on Wednesday, 22
July 2020 in the https://youtu.be/Dzn8ywyaMHw
Membership:
Councillor Day (Chairman); Councillors: Dexter (Vice-Chairman), Boyd, Braidwood, Campbell,
Crittenden, Currie, Garner, Kup, Pat Moore, Shrubb and Towning

AGENDA
Item
No

Subject

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a Member
declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 8)
To approve the Minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 4
March 2020, copy attached.

4.

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (Pages 9 - 36)

5.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Pages 37 - 54)

6.

2019-20 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Pages 55 - 90)

7.

IN-DEPTH INSIGHT INTO THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON FINANCIAL REPORTING IN
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT SECTOR (Pages 91 - 112)

8.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (Pages 113 - 138)

9.

QUARTERLY RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT (Pages 139 - 146)

10.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT (Pages 147 - 166)

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000
Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906
DX 30555 (Margate)
www.thanet.gov.uk
Chief Executive: Madeline Homer

Page 1

Item
No

Subject

Please scan this barcode for an electronic copy of this agenda.

Page 2

Agenda Item 2

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must declare the
existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the matter, or when the
interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2020 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, Council
Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.
Present:

1.

Councillor Simon Day (Chairman); Councillors Boyd, Braidwood,
Campbell, Crittenden, Currie, Garner, Kup, Pat Moore and Shrubb

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dexter and Towning.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Councillor Campbell proposed, Councillor Kup seconded and Members agreed the
minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2019.

4.

EXTERNAL AUDIT 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN
Ms Ironmonger, Grant Thornton UK LLP (GT), introduced the item which provided an
overview of the scope and timing of the audit for the year ending 31 March 2020.
During consideration of the item it was noted that:
 The audit fee had increased because the audit regulators had raised the required
audit standard for local government audits, therefore GT would need to undertake
more work in order to complete the 2019-20 audit.
Members noted the report.

5.

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
Mr Webb, Deputy Head of East Kent Audit Partnership, introduced the report noting that
six internal audit assignments and two follow up reviews had been completed since the
last committee meeting.
During consideration of the item, it was noted that:
 The number of recommendations for the East Kent Housing – Compliance
Indicators Data Quality audit, detailed in the table at paragraph 2.0 of the annex,
should show one critical and two high recommendations.
 A follow up review usually took place between three and six months after
completion of an audit.
 Overall a total of 30% of the satisfaction questionnaires had been completed
across the East Kent Council’s, however TDC managers had completed
questionnaires for 63% of the Council’s audits.
 The street cleaning audits had received a limited assurance. The Head of
Maritime and Technical Services had accepted the action plan and a timeline for
implementation of improvements. The full audit report would be made available
to Members of the committee for further information.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3


Staff transferring from East Kent Housing would be offered welfare reform training
where needed. Democratic Services would look into the possibility of providing
similar training to Members, particularly regarding Universal Credit.

Members agreed the recommendations in the report, namely:
 That the report be received by Members.
 That any changes to the agreed 2019-20 internal audit plan, resulting from
changes in perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of Annex 1 of the attached report
be approved.
6.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND DRAFT 2020-21 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
Ms Parker, Head of the East Kent Audit Partnership introduced the Internal Audit Charter
and Draft 2020-21 Internal Audit Plan.
During consideration of the item, it was noted that:
 The Internal Audit Charter was reviewed every three years, if changes were
required to the Charter during this time then it would be brought back to the
committee for consideration.
 The strategic plan up to 2023-24 was also shown for indicative purposes.
 The Section 151 Officer would consider the suggestion to bring forward an audit
of complaint monitoring.
Councillor Campbell proposed, Councillor Kup seconded and Members agreed to:

7.



adopt the Internal Audit Charter for delivery of the internal audit
service for the next three years.



approve the Council’s Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21.

INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS SELF ASSESSMENT
Ms Parker introduced the report that summarised the results of the EKAP selfassessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
Members noted the report.

8.

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE
Mr Blundell, Head of Financial Services, introduced the report that provided a quarterly
update of progress since the last meeting.
During consideration of the item it was noted that:
 The risk scores had not changed since the last Committee meeting, however
there had been a number of changes to the factors that led to these scores.
 The risk in relation to East Kent Housing now included risks associated with the
transition of the management of the service the TDC.
 The risks around Brexit were mainly in relation to logistics and transportation.
 The report had been produced before Cvid-19 had become so widespread.
Although the risk of Cvid-19 was not detailed in the report, the Council had taken
a number of steps to mitigate the risks posed by the virus to the Council.
Members noted the report.

9.

2019-20 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
This item was withdrawn from the agenda and would be considered at the next meeting
of the Committee.
10.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN 2018/19 PROGRESS REPORT
Mr Howes, Director of Corporate Governance, introduced the item that provided a
progress report on the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 action plan.
During consideration of the item it was noted that:
 There had been eight actions, four of these actions had been completed and the
remaining four would remain on the plan for completion in the following year.
Members noted the report.

11.

HOMES ENGLAND AUDIT
Mr Willis, Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer introduced the report which
provided Members with a summary of the audit results.
During consideration of the item, it was noted that:
 The Council had received a green light rating with no adverse findings.
Members noted the report.

12.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL
Members noted the Chairman’s report.

Meeting concluded: 8.00pm

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
Governance & Audit Committee

22 July 2020

Report Author

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for Finance,
Administration and Community Wealth Building

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
This report provides Members with a summary of the internal audit work completed by the
East Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting,
together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st May 2020.

Recommendation(s):
That the report be received by Members.
That any changes to the agreed 2020-21 internal audit plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of Annex 1 of the attached report be approved.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The costs
Financial and
of the audit work are being met from the Financial Services 2019-20 budgets.
Value for
Money
The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit Regulations
Legal
and section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972) to have an adequate and
effective internal audit function.
Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed to
Corporate
comply with requirements for the independent review of the financial and
operational reporting processes, through the external audit and inspection
processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal audit.
Equalities Act Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
2010 & Public Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
Sector Equality the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the
Duty
Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

Please indicate which aim is relevant to the report.
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act,
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.
here are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick
those relevant)✓
A clean and welcoming
Environment
Promoting inward investment and
job creation
Supporting neighbourhoods

CORPORATE VALUES
those relevant)✓
Delivering value for money

(tick
X

Supporting the Workforce
Promoting open communications

X

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit
Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, together with
details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st May 2020.

1.2

For each audit review, management has agreed a report, and where appropriate, an
Action Plan detailing proposed actions and implementation dates relating to each
recommendation. Reports continue to be issued in full to the relevant member of the
Senior Management Team, as well as the manager for the service reviewed.

1.3

Follow-up reviews are performed at an appropriate time, according to the priority of
the recommendations, timescales for implementation of any agreed actions, and the
risk to the Council.

1.4

An Assurance Statement is given to each area reviewed. The assurance statements
are linked to the potential level of risk, as currently portrayed in the Council’s risk
assessment process. The assurance rating given may be Substantial, Reasonable,
Limited or No assurance.

1.5

Those services with either Limited or No Assurance are monitored, and brought back
to Committee until a subsequent review shows sufficient improvement has been
made to raise the level of Assurance to either Reasonable or Substantial. A list of
those services currently with such levels of assurance is attached as Appendix 2 to
the EKAP report.

1.6

The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment, independent review of the Authority’s financial and
non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk
and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
1.7

To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the internal control
environment an update report is regularly produced on the work of internal audit. The
purpose of this report is to detail the summary findings of completed audit reports and
follow-up reviews since the report submitted to the last meeting of this Committee.

1.8

There has of course been an impact on the work of the internal audit team as a result of
the C19 Crisis. The Audit Plan for 2020-21 was prepared as usual throughout
February and agreed with the s.151 Officer and MT was presented to the March
meeting of this Committee. Following this, the team was re-deployed to assist with
C19 response work in the community. As a consequence, no new internal audit work
has been commissioned or undertaken throughout April and May, leading to a total of
247 audit days being lost (over the partnership). The plan that was drafted for
approval at the March meeting is set out in the table in the Annex, with very few days
allocated up to the end of May. It is therefore intended to work with the s.151 Officers
to agree a revised plan based on 9 month’s work not 12 which will be presented at the
September meeting. The second reason for delaying setting out the revised plan is to
accommodate the new Housing audits which will commence after 1st October once
the former EKH Ltd responsibilities have transferred back to the four councils. Except
for follow up, now new EHK Ltd audits will commence before the end of September.

2.0

Summary of Work

2.1

There have been ten internal audit assignments completed during the period.

2.2

In addition, four follow-up reviews have been completed during the period.

3.0

Options

3.1

That Members consider and note the internal audit update report.

3.2

That the changes to the agreed 2020-21 internal audit plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of the attached report be approved.

3.3

That Members consider (where appropriate) requesting an update from the relevant
Director/s to the next meeting of the Committee in respect of any areas identified as
still having either limited or no assurance after follow-up.

3.4

That Members consider registering their concerns with Cabinet in respect of any
areas of the Council’s corporate governance, control framework or risk management
arrangements in respect of which they have on-going concerns after the completion
of internal audit follow-up reviews and update presentations from the relevant
Director.

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, Ext. 7190
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit, Ext 7189
Chris Blundell; Head of Financial Services (Deputy S151 Officer )
Tim Willis; Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer)

Annex List
Annex 1

East Kent Audit Partnership Update Report – 22-07-2020

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
Background Papers
Title
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020-21
Internal Audit working papers

Details of where to access copy
Previously presented to and approved in March 2020
at Governance and Audit Committee meeting
Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership

Corporate Consultation
Finance
Legal

Chris Blundell; Head of Financial Services (Deputy S151 Officer )
Tim Willis (Deputy Chief Executive)
Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT FROM THE HEAD OF THE
EAST KENT AUDIT PARTNERSHIP
1.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1

This report provides Members with an update of the work completed by the
East Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee
meeting, together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st May
2020.

2.0

SUMMARY OF REPORTS
Service / Topic

2.1

Treasury Management

Assurance level

Substantial

2.2

Ramsgate Marina

Substantial

2.3

Insurance and Inventories

Substantial

2.4

Capital

Substantial

2.5

East Kent Housing - Rent

Substantial

2.6

Printing, Postage & Photocopying

Substantial

2.7

East Kent Housing – Employee Health & Safety

2.8

East Kent Housing – Repairs, Maintenance &
Void Property Management

Limited

Substantial/
Reasonable/Limited

Page 13

No. of
Recs.
C
0
H
0
M
0
L
0
C
0
H
0
M
1
L
1
C
0
H
0
M
1
L
2
C
0
H
0
M
0
L
0
C
0
H
0
M
2
L
1
C
0
H
0
M
0
L
0
C
0
H
3
M
6
L
2
C
0
H
6
M
2
L
2

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
2.9

Building Control

2.10

EK Services – Housing Benefit Quarterly Testing Quarters 3 & 4 2019/20

2.1

Treasury Management - Substantial Assurance:

2.1.1

Limited

C
H
M
L

Not applicable

Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that the various Treasury Management
matters within the remit of the accountancy office are performed effectively &
efficiently, in furtherance of the Council’s Policies.

2.1.2

Summary of Findings
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget and part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure that the cash flow is adequately planned
for, with cash being available when it is needed and any surplus monies are
invested in low risk investments in accordance with the Council`s low risk
appetite. In addition part of the treasury management function is to ensure that
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations and to do this may
involve arranging long or short term loans.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●

●

●

●

●

Treasury management at the authority is conducted within the framework
of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of
Practice 2017 Edition.
Established day to day processes are in place for the monitoring of the
cash flow position and carrying out either investments (when surplus
funds allow) or withdrawing funds when a negative cash flow may occur.
Reports (Yearly and half yearly) and supporting strategies (Treasury,
Capital and Investment) are presented to Members in accordance with the
CIPFA Code of Practice.
Processes are in place to ensure that when borrowing is needed to
support the capital program it is obtained at the best favourable rate to the
authority.
Prudential indicators are reviewed on a regular basis as part of the
monitoring of the authority's finances to ensure that it is not exposing itself
to unnecessary risk.

2.2

Ramsgate Marina – Substantial Assurance:

2.2.1

Audit Scope

Page 14

0
5
4
3

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that all income arising from the Council’s
operations at Ramsgate Marina and Port are completely and correctly
accounted for.
2.2.2

Summary of Findings
The Royal Harbour Ramsgate has 700 berths and supports a fishing fleet of
around 26 vessels, 18 commercial day angling vessels and four wind farms
(which have a total of 320 offshore wind turbines). The port is also used by
companies to store imported cars before transporting them to the customer.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●

●
●

●
●
●

A new harbour management system/database (Harbour Assist) was
installed in 2018, this has improved many processes, reducing time,
paper and printing costs;
Income is robustly and consistently recorded;
As a registered dealer of controlled oils, the port is meeting its HMRC
obligations having recently satisfied all HMRC enquiries in their recent
audit;
Dockmaster income is reconciled on a daily basis and cash income is
stored securely for collection;
Fees for non-commercial invoicing have be charged in line with approved
fees and charges in 97.3% of the sample tested, and;
Fees for commercial invoicing have been charged in line with approved
fees and charges in 100% of the sample tested;

Scope for improvement has been identified in the following areas:
●
●
2.3

To include the fee for Ramsgate Week in the annual approved fees and
charges.
To consider producing some process notes for succession planning.

Insurance & Inventories – Substantial Assurance:

2.3.1 Audit Scope
●
●

2.3.2

To ensure that sufficient insurance coverage is in place for the Council to limit
the risks that face the authority in carrying out its many and varied functions.
To ensure that all Council assets are completely and accurately accounted for
and safely held.
Summary of Findings
The objectives of the audit have been to ensure that sufficient insurance
coverage is in place for the Council to limit the risks that face the authority in
carrying out its many and varied functions and also to ensure that all Council
assets are completely and accurately accounted for and safely held.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

●
●

Responsibility for Insurance has been clearly defined, and is the
responsibility of a suitably experienced officer.
The insurance service has been procured in accordance with Financial
Procedure Rules.
All activities, property and assets that were tested are appropriately
insured.
Effective procedures are in place to keep the insurance providers aware of
changes to activities or assets.
Well practiced procedures are in place to review potential insurance
claims and to subsequently submit those claims to the relevant insurance
provider.
Inventories detailing assets owned by the Council are kept up to date and
checked before each insurance renewal.
The Insurance Officer is aware of higher and lower risk areas relating to
insurance claims.

Some scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:
●
●
●

Insurance Limits for cash held in safes should be reviewed so that the
Council is only insuring cash it is likely to hold.
Action should be taken to implement the recommendations made in the
Fleet and Driver Risk Management review.
Service Managers should be reminded that it is their responsibility to keep
asset inventories updated.

2.4 Capital - Substantial Assurance:
2.3.1 Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that there is an effective and efficient
evaluation and approval procedure for capital projects and robust financial
procedures to enable sufficient budgetary provision to be made available for
their funding.
2.3.2

Summary of Findings
Maintaining and improving the Council’s infrastructure requires considerable
resources and typically it covers three types of investment:
●
●
●

Premises;
Information and communication systems; and
Vehicles and equipment.

Investment, in excess of £10k, in such infrastructure qualifies as capital
expenditure when it results in acquisition or enhancement of an asset that
has a useful life of more than one year. It can be funded from loans, capital

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
receipts, capital grants and contributions from revenue. It should be noted that
the Council engages the services of an external provider for treasury advice.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●
●
●
●

There is an approved and up to date Capital Strategy in place;
Suitable procedures are in place to evaluate and approve capital projects;
Capital budgets are being regularly reported to and monitored by Senior
Management and elected Members; and
Post Project Implementation Reviews are being carried out to ensure any
lessons learnt can be monitored and managed.

Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:
●
●
●

Ensure adequate access is given within the public domain to key
documents by improving the links on the webpages;
Provide a ‘knowledge pack’ to Councillors to aide in the decision and
scrutiny process for capital bids;
Report more regularly to members the progress on asset disposals and
the impact this is having on the delivery of the capital program.

2.5

East Kent Housing (Rents) – Substantial Assurance

2.5.1

Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that the rent accounting, collection and
recovery functions are carried out efficiently and effectively.

2.5.2

Summary of Findings
East Kent Housing collects rent on behalf of the four East Kent authorities and
is also responsible for the collection of current and former tenant arrears. The
figures below highlight the values for these key areas at 31 March 2019:
●

●
●

The total current residential arrears for all four authorities at 31 March
2019 was £2,445,864 (3.51% of the annual debit) compared to £745,221
in 2016/17 (1.03% of the annual debit). This rise is due to the impact of
tenants transitioning to Universal Credit (UC);
The total former tenant arrears for all four authorities at 31 March 2019
was £1,104,404, and;
A total of 30 evictions took place due to rent arrears at 31 March 2019.

The Income team is centrally based at Garrity House, Aylesham. Rent
accounts for all four authorities are held in the Northgate Single System and
apart from rent refunds and some cash posting routines, processes are
harmonised on behalf of the four councils.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●
●

●
●

●
●

Clear and up to date rent management policies are in place and available
to all staff;
Review of 41 tenant accounts across the four local authorities, with both
rent arrears and court costs attached, were 100% satisfactory in terms of
monitoring and managing recovery of both rent arrears and courts costs;
Court costs and tenant issues were suitably recorded in 100% of the 41
accounts reviewed;
Rent refunds are only paid once all checks confirm there are no
outstanding arrears on any other accounts e.g. council tax, HB, former
tenancies;
A variety of payment methods are available to tenants and tenants should
soon be able to view their accounts online;
Performance information is provided to the four authorities to the level,
detail and timescales required.

Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:
●
●

●

Attempts should be made to bring Canterbury district cash posting
processes in line with the three other local authorities.
There is potential to streamline and harmonise the rent refund process;
issuing rent refunds electronically/directly from the Northgate system
could be explored.
Historically, statements were issued quarterly however this has stopped
since the Single System was recently introduced. The Income team are
currently awaiting an upgrade to the Single System which will allow
tenants to view their accounts and latest balances online. Statements
should still be issued to those without online access, both currently and in
the future.

2.6

Printing, Postage & Photocopying – Substantial Assurance:

2.6.1

Audit Scope
To ensure that the Council has established adequate systems of control
governing printing, postage and photocopying expenditure, recharges and
income.

2.6.2

Summary of Findings
The Mail Room offers a variety of services to the Council, including receiving
mail folding and enveloping large mail outs, franking post and ensuring it is
handed to the Royal Mail the same evening. The Print Room offers many
services including black and white photocopying, colour photocopying,
laminating, hot and wire binding of documents, cutting, collating and padding
and general finishing, provision and setup of visual aids to specific
requirements, and private printing and finishing services.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

The post team does identify who is sending an item of mail so that the
recharge can be applied to the correct team.
The printing team does identify who has printed documents so that the
recharge can be applied to the correct team.
The printing team does identify who has photocopied documents so
that the recharge can be applied to the correct team.
Access to the post room is limited to authorised members of staff only.
Incoming mail is date-stamped.
All outgoing post is franked correctly.
All print charges are regularly assessed to ensure that the Print Room
is charging a profit or breakeven price for external work.

2.7

East Kent Housing (Employee Health & Safety) – Limited Assurance:

2.7.1

Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and
procedures established to protect staff in relation to various health and safety
issues, such as fire safety, lone working and home working, whilst also taking
into account the legislative requirements placed upon the Council as their
employer.

2.7.2

Summary of Findings
Employers must protect the 'health, safety and welfare' at work of all their
employees, as well as others on their premises, including temps, casual
workers, the self-employed, clients, visitors and the general public. However,
these duties are qualified with the words 'so far as is reasonably practicable'.
For the purposes of this review the focus has been on employees.
EKHR are the safety advisors for East Kent Housing (EKH). Each of the four
authorities (that EKH manage the Council stock for) has its own employee
health and safety process, and as East Kent Housing Ltd are a separate legal
entity, they must establish their own processes and procedures. There is an
up to date Health and Safety Policy and associated procedures in place which
have been made available to staff via the intranet.
It should be noted that during the review there was a change over in computer
software and systems as well as changes to the board/management which
may affect the current assigned responsibilities within the policy which may
need to be reviewed and updated as a matter of urgency.
The primary findings giving rise to the Limited Assurance opinion in this area
are as follows:
●
●
●

The statement of intent needs to be revised to ensure it reflects the
updated policy;
Staff training needs to be more robustly managed and monitored;
Overall, a more robust record keeping and monitoring process is required.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●
●
●

Evidence of the meetings and actions from the Health and Safety
Committee meetings need to be made available;
Ensure the First Aider and Fire Warden information is and remains
current.
Evidence of the Annual Report being made for 2018 and 2019 could not
be sourced, this could result in the non-implementation of the annual plan
agreed by the board.

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
● There is an up to date policy in place;
● Procedures are in place and available for staff to access via the intranet
but do require a review and update to ensure they remain compliant with
legislation and best practice;
● Adequate training courses have been identified and highlighted within the
webpages;
● There are reporting lines/methods in place, however record keeping was
found to be inconsistent.
● Risk and COSHH assessments are being carried out and are up to date.
It should be noted that this Audit was carried out when the future of East Kent
Housing was uncertain. It has now been established that the four authorities
will be bringing the management of their housing stock back in house later this
year. This has had an impact on the audit reporting process and as such the
Action Plan has neglected to be completed by management of East Kent
Housing. The only way to progress this audit was to report the findings and
recommendations to each authority's s151 Officer and Client-Side Officer for
their perusal, consideration and files. This was done on 16 March 2020.
In accordance with standard audit procedures, a short follow-up review should
be undertaken later in the year to provide management with assurance that
the recommendations contained within the report had been implemented.
However, as East Kent Housing will no longer be in operation and therefore
no management actions to follow-up on, it is recommended that the report be
distributed to the Health and Safety Advisors of the four councils for their
consideration when bringing staff back into their respective authorities.
2.8

East Kent Housing (Housing Repairs, Maintenance & Void Property
Management) – Substantial/Reasonable/Limited Assurance:

2.8.1

Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that the Councils’ housing stock is well
maintained, proving a good level of service to Council tenants (which
demonstrates value for money and tenant participation), in partnership with
the Councils’ contractors and in accordance with Council policy and
procedures.

2.8.2

Summary of Findings

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
East Kent Housing (EKH) is responsible for managing the repairs and
maintenance of the Housing stock for Canterbury, Dover, Folkestone and
Hythe and Thanet councils. This also includes the voids processes and
expenditure when properties have been vacated and they are returned to the
councils so that they can be prepared for the next tenants to move into. This
audit and the subsequent conclusions have been carried out based on the
information provided by East Kent Housing and Mears, who are the contractor
for day to day repairs. It should also be noted that during the course of this
audit the day to day working practices have been revised and the use of a
new application on the officers’ mobile phones has enhanced the processes
that are in place.
Management can place the following assurances on the system of internal
controls in operation.
●
●

●

Budget Monitoring - Substantial Assurance;
Repairs and Maintenance - Limited Assurance - there is evidence of
non-compliance with some key controls not operating as intended
resulting in a risk to the achievement of the system objectives, in
particular supporting data for post inspection of works by EKH, and
analysis of tenant satisfaction surveys; and
Voids - Reasonable Assurance

The positive findings giving rise to the above assurance opinions are as
follows:
Budget Monitoring
●
Extensive budget monitoring is carried out to monitor over 100 budgets
for repairs and voids across the four authorities. This includes
meetings being held with Client Officers and Senior Management
within EKH.
Repairs
●
●

●

●

There are established processes, that are well advertised, in place for
tenants to report day to day issues that require attention.
Contracts are in place with Mears for day to day repairs. (Although it
should be noted that Canterbury City Council did not sign the 2015
extension to the contract).
Mears are providing monthly information on the number of post
inspections for Canterbury, Dover and Folkestone and Hythe (Thanet
have decided that they no longer require this information) that have
been carried out along with the number of failures as part of the
performance information that they provide. However, it should be
noted that they are not always meeting their monthly 10% target for
post inspections.
Regular meetings are held with the contractor but there are no formal
minutes from these meetings to support actions that are agreed and
put in place along with the subsequent outcomes from these actions.

Voids 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●

The day to day responsibilities for voids is being reasonably managed
by the inspectors and extensive ongoing budget monitoring is in
place.

●

Concerns have been raised over the costs of the void works being
carried out by Canterbury City Council, however when reviewing the
expenditure for 2018/19 there is an underspend of approximately
£103,000. However, it should be noted that with an aging housing
stock when properties are returned then the major work requirements
are likely to continue to increase so that legislation is complied with.

Scope for improvement was identified in the following areas:
Repairs
For each month, as part of the contract monitoring procedures, the
Maintenance Inspectors should be completing post inspections on 10% of the
completed jobs that have been raised by the contractor. As part of the
improvement plan (for 2019/20) monthly post inspection figures are being
reported for each authority. In order to validate these figures and select a
sample for audit testing several requests have been made for the supporting
background data. However, to date the only information that has been
provided is in respect of Thanet inspections. Therefore, the Auditor has been
unable to carry out any testing and is unable to form an assurance opinion
regarding whether the inspections and the payments to the contractor are
correct and are in accordance with the contracts that are in place. This
concern over post inspections has also been raised as part of previous
internal audits in this area.
2.9
2.9.1

Building Control - Limited Assurance:
Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures
and controls established to ensure that Building Control procedures are
operated in accordance with the Building Act 1984, and the organisation’s
Financial Regulations and approved policy.

2.9.2

Summary of Findings
Building control ensures that building work complies with the Building
Regulations, a set of standards intended to protect people's safety, health and
welfare in and around built environments. The fees being set and charged for
this service are done so in accordance with the Building (Prescribed Fees)
Regulations 1994.
It should be noted that the Building Control Service, legislation and functions
have not changed since the last audit review undertaken in 2016/17 which
after follow-up was given a reasonable assurance.

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
During the last few years there has been a re-structure of the service which
led to the deletion of the two fee earning posts, one of which was the Building
Control Manager. In addition to this there were vacant Building Control Officer
posts that were required to be filled and in October 2019 the Head of Service
Post became vacant. As of Mid November 2019 the service is being
overseen on an interim basis by the Capital Development Manager who is
making progress towards getting to grips with the service, it’s staff, budgets
and ways of working as well as maintaining and managing the other roles and
responsibilities that come with their normal day to day job.
Since 2016/17 the fee earning budget had increased substantially (by £147K)
which with the historical and current issues regarding resources has put
undue pressure on staff to ensure that not only are the budgets being
achieved but also those statutory obligations are being met. It should be
noted that this is a self-funded service governed by legislation and CIPFA
rules.
The systems and ways of working have not changed since the last review
process, however during the review it came to light that there are issues with
the current Uniform System which requires regular updates at an additional
cost to the Council, furthermore the contract for this system is up for renewal
in 2020 and a decision to renew or replace this system is yet to be
determined.
The primary findings giving rise to the Limited Assurance opinion in this area
are as follows:
●
●
●
●

●

●

Incorrect application of the 2019/20 fees and charges has led to a loss
in income for this service for the first 6 months of the financial year;
No set office procedures are in place to govern the day to day
management of this service which has led to inconsistent practices;
Budget setting and management controls require strengthening;
The Uniform system is not up to date which means that the
functionality of the system is not quite fit for purpose and officers have
had to adjust working practices and to find other ways of extracting
data for statistical and financial analysis.
There is no Policy in place to deal with the profits/losses made on the
trading account, therefore the opportunity for re-investment in training
and enforcement has not been given or considered.
Timescales have not been met when determining applications which
potentially impacts the Council legally and financially;

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
●
●

Building Control Officers have been assigned their own ‘patch’ which
creates the opportunity for horizon scanning and hazard spotting;
The use of the Google calendar notes facility and transposing these to the
Uniform system for site visits makes for a quicker and more effective
paperless way of working;

Page 23

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●

●

2.10

All applications are provided with a unique reference number and
between the uniform and paper system records are being maintained in
accordance with the retention schedule and legislation.
Contraventions and Enforcement Action has been considered where
necessary but this is very much resource led.

EK Services – Housing Benefits Quarterly Testing Quarters 3 & 4 2019/20 –
An assurance is not applicable for this work

2.10.1 Introduction
Over the course of 2019/20 financial year the East Kent Audit Partnership will
complete a sample check of Council Tax, Rent Allowance and Rent Rebate
and Local Housing Allowance benefit claims.
2.10.2 Findings
For the quarters three and four of 2019/20 financial year (October 2019 to
March 2020) 44 claims including new and change of circumstances of each
benefit type were selected by randomly selecting the various claims for
verification.
A fail is now categorised as an error that impacts on the benefit calculation.
However data quality errors are still to be shown but if they do not impact on
the benefit calculation then for reporting purposes the claim will be recorded
as a pass.
2.10.3 Audit Conclusion
For this period forty-four benefit claims were checked and one had a financial
error (2.27%) and there were no data quality errors.
For 2019/20 a total of eighty-four benefit claims have been checked of which
three (3.57%) had a financial error that impacted on the benefit calculation
and none had a data quality error.
3.0.

FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT REPORT ACTION PLANS:

3.1

As part of the period’s work, four follow up reviews have been completed of
those areas previously reported upon to ensure that the recommendations
made have been implemented, and the internal control weaknesses leading to
those recommendations have been mitigated. Those completed during the
period under review are shown in the following table.
Service/ Topic

a)

East Kent Housing
– Tenant Health &
Safety (Lifts)

Original
Assurance
level
No

Revised
Assurance
level
No

Original
Number
of Recs

No of Recs.
Not yet
implemented

C

2

C

2

H

1

H

1

M

0

M

0

Page 24

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

b)

c)

d)

EK Services –
PCI-DSS

Asset Management

Housing Allocations

Reasonable
/Limited

Limited

Substantial

*Reasonable/
Limited

Reasonable

Substantial

L

0

L

0

C

0

C

0

H

0

H

0

M

2

M

0

L

2

L

0

C

0

C

0

H

6

H

0

M

3

M

0

L

0

L

0

C

0

C

0

H

0

H

0

M

3

M

0

L

0

L

0

* EKS PCI-DSS (DDC)
The assurance level in respect of PCI-DSS is Reasonable Assurance for the
processes in place and Limited Assurance for being non compliant due to
the annual assessments not being completed since 2017.
3.2

Details of any individual Critical and High priority recommendations still to be
implemented at the time of follow-up are included at Appendix 3 and on the
grounds that these recommendations have not been implemented by the
dates originally agreed with management, they are now being escalated for
the attention of the s.151 officer and Members’ of the Governance and Audit
Committee.
The purpose of escalating high-priority recommendations which have not been
implemented is to try to gain support for any additional resources (if required)
to resolve the risk, or to ensure that risk acceptance or tolerance is approved
at an appropriate level.

3.3

As highlighted in the above table, those areas previously reported as having
either Limited or No assurance have been reviewed and, in respect of those
remaining at below Reasonable assurance, Members are advised as follows:
a) East Kent Housing – Tenant Health & Safety (Lifts):
The main issue that needed to be addressed was around the rectification of
faults identified on Lift Examinations and the management of the lift
maintenance contractor to ensure that lifts are well maintained and
examinations are not halted due to safety or access issues.
Of the 3 recommendations that were originally agreed, all three
recommendations are considered to be only partially implemented as a result
of the progress recently being made since the appointment of a Lift
Compliance Manager.

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
One additional recommendation categorised as Critical has been made (see
below) as a result of a weakness identified during testing at the time of follow
up.
The appointment in November 2019 of a dedicated Compliance Manager with
responsibility for lifts has resulted in improvements in procedures around the
actioning of faults identified on lift examination reports. Similarly,
improvements are becoming evident around the monitoring of the contractors
for the maintenance of lifts. While the new procedures are showing
improvements, they are not yet considered embedded. Similarly, there
remains a large amount of faults still outstanding on lifts which is likely to take
a number of months yet to get to the point where all outstanding faults have
been addressed.
At the time of the audit, 3 lifts which are still being used, did not have a current
LOLER examination in place, and therefore should not be in service.
NEW RECOMMENDATION - Immediate action should be taken by the EKH
Chief Executive to rescind the instruction to Zurich to keep lifts in service
where faults are being identified at examination which should require the lift to
be taken out of service until the work has been completed.
At the time of the initial audit we concluded that Management could have No
Assurance in this area.
Following completion of this follow-up review, we recognise the significant
improvements which have been made since the appointment of the Lift
Compliance Manager, however, our opinion has been kept at No Assurance
for the following reasons:
●
●

3 lifts in use at the time of the audit do not have a current LOLER
certificate.
1 lift was kept in service for nearly 12 months with faults identified on
the lift which meant that it should have been taken out of service.

4.0

WORK-IN-PROGRESS:

4.1

During the period under review, work has also been undertaken on the
following topics, which will be reported to this Committee at future meetings:
External Funding Protocol.

5.0

CHANGES TO THE AGREED AUDIT PLAN:

5.1

The 2019-20 internal audit plan was agreed by Members at the meeting of this
Committee on 6th March 2019.

5.2

The Head of the Audit Partnership meets on a quarterly basis with the Section
151 Officer or their nominated representative to discuss any amendments to
the plan. Members of the Committee will be advised of any significant
changes through these regular update reports. Minor amendments have been
made to the plan during the course of the year as some high profile projects or

Page 26

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
high-risk areas have been requested to be prioritised at the expense of putting
back or deferring to a future year some lower risk planned reviews. The
detailed position regarding when resources have been applied and or
changed are shown as Appendix 3.
5.3

There has of course been an impact on the work of the internal audit team as
a result of the C19 Crisis. The Audit Plan for 2020-21 was prepared as usual
throughout February and agreed with the s.151 Officer and MT to be
presented to the March meeting, however, this was subsequently cancelled.
Following this, the team was re-deployed to assist with C19 response work in
the community. As a consequence, no new internal audit work has been
commissioned or undertaken throughout April and May, leading to a total of
247 audit days being lost (over the partnership). The plan that was drafted for
approval at the March meeting is set out in the table in Appendix 1, with a few
days allocated up to the end of April. It is therefore intended to work with the
s.151 Officers to agree a revised plan based on 9 month’s work not 12 which
will be presented at the September meeting. The second reason for delaying
setting out the revised plan is to accommodate the new Housing audits which
will commence after 1st October once the former EKH Ltd responsibilities have
transferred back to the four councils. Except for follow up, now new EHK Ltd
audit will commence before the end of September.

6.0

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION:
There are no known instances of fraud or corruption being investigated by the
EKAP to bring to Members attention at the present time.

7.0

UNPLANNED WORK:
All responsive assurance / unplanned work is summarised in the table
contained at Appendix 3.

8.0

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE

8.1

For the one month period to 30th April 2020, 10.35 chargeable days were
delivered against the revised target of 281.54 days which equates to 3.68%
plan completion.

8.2

The financial performance of the EKAP is on target at the present time.

8.3

As part of its commitment to continuous improvement and following
discussions with the s.151 Officer Client Group, the EKAP has established a
range of performance indicators which it records and measures.

8.4

The EKAP audit maintains an electronic client satisfaction questionnaire which
is used across the partnership. The satisfaction questionnaires are sent out at
the conclusion of each audit to receive feedback on the quality of the service.

Attachments
Appendix 1 Progress to 31st May 2020 against the agreed 2020-21 Audit
Plan.

Page 27

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Appendix 2 Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation
Priorities
Appendix 3 Summary of Critical and High priority recommendations not
implemented at the time of follow-up.
Appendix 4 Summary of services with Limited / No Assurances.
Appendix 5 Balanced Scorecard to 31st March 2020 - included separately
within the Annual Report.

Page 28

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
PROGRESS TO DATE AGAINST THE AGREED 2020-21 AUDIT PLAN –
APPENDIX 1
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL:

Original Revised
Actual
Planned Budgeted days to
Days
Days
31-05-2020

Area

Status and Assurance
Level

RESIDUAL HOUSING SERVICES:
10

10

0

Quarter 3

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief issued

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

8

8

0.26

Draft Brief Prepared

2

2

0.95

9

9

2.59

12

12

1.96

9

9

0.53

Service Contract Management

10

10

0

Quarter 3

Procurement

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Cemeteries & Crematoria

12

12

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

HMO Licensing
Licensing

10

10

0

Quarter 3

Coastal Management

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Public Health Burials

7

7

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Environmental Health & Safety at
Work

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Playgrounds

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Disabled Facilities Grants

10

10

0.18

Draft Brief Prepared

Museums

12

12

0

Quarter 2

Homelessness
GOVERNANCE RELATED:
GDPR,
FOI
&
Information
Management
Members’ Code of Conduct &
Standards Arrangements
Officers’ Code of Conduct & Gifts
& Hospitality
Local
Code
of
Corporate
Governance
Corporate Advice/CMT
s.151 Officer Meetings and
Support
Governance & Audit Committee
Meetings and Report Preparation
2021-22
Audit
Plan
and
Preparation Meetings

Work-in-Progress
throughout 2020-21
Work-in-Progress
throughout 2020-21
Work-in-Progress
throughout 2020-21
Work-in-Progress
throughout 2020-21

CONTRACT AUDITS

SERVICE LEVEL:
&

Selective

Page 29

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Ramsgate Harbour Accounts

5

5

0

Quarter 2

Members’ Allowances & Expenses

10

10

0.18

Work-in-Progress

Phones, Mobiles & Utilities

8

8

0.18

Work-in-Progress

Your Leisure

10

10

0

Quarter 3

Waste & Street Cleansing Vehicle
Fleet Management

12

12

0

Quarter 3

Refuse Collection

10

10

0

Quarter 4

Climate Change

10

10

0

Draft Brief issued

Liaison With External Auditors

1

1

0

Follow-up Reviews

15

15

0.61

0

-3.46

0

Allocated as below

0.16

Draft Report

0.23

Finalised

5.10

Finalised

OTHER :

FINALISATION OF 2019-20 AUDITS:
Days over delivered in 2019-20
Building Control
Insurance & Inventories

15

15

Capital
RESPONSIVE WORK:
East Kent Housing - Tenant H&S
Compliance Monitoring

0

0

0.31

Work-in-Progress

Creditors Duplicate Testing

0

0

0.78

Work-in-Progres

C19 Redeployments

0

0

25.22

Work-in-Progress

285

281.54

40.80

14.49%

TOTAL

Page 30

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
EAST KENT HOUSING LIMITED:

Review

Original
Planned
Days

Revised Actual days
to
Planned
Days
31-05-2020

Status and Assurance
Level

Planned Work:
CMT/Audit Sub Ctte/EA Liaison

4

4

1.03

Work-in-Progress

Follow-up Reviews

4

4

0.74

Work-in-Progress

Days over delivered in 2019-20

0

-26.87

0

Allocated in 19-20

Employee Health & Safety

0

0

0.59

Finalised - Limited

0

0

0.00

140

113.13

2.36

Finalisation of 2019-20 Audits:

Responsive Work:
Total

Page 31

2.09%

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
EKS, EKHR & CIVICA:

Review

Original
Planned
Days

Revised Actual days
Planned
to
Days
31-05-2020

Status and Assurance
Level

EKS & Civica Reviews:
Housing Benefits Subsidy

10

10

0

Quarter 1

Housing Benefit Testing

30

30

10.67

Work in progress

Housing Benefits Overpayments

10

10

0.24

Quarter 2

Customer Services

10

10

0

Quarter 3

ICT – Disaster Recovery

15

15

0

Quarter 4

ICT – Change management

15

15

0

Quarter 3

Payroll

15

15

10.07

Work in progress

Leavers

15

15

0

Quarter 2

Employee Allowances

15

15

0

Quarter 4

Corporate/Committee

8

8

2.72

Ongoing

Follow up

7

7

1.06

Ongoing

30.69

0

Allocated

5

0

0.82

Work In Progress

0
0

0
5.03

160

190.69

30.61

EKHR Reviews:

Finalisation of 2019/20 Audits:
Days under delivered in 2019/20
Employee Benefits in Kind
ICT Software Licensing
Recruitment - DBS
Total

Page 32

16.05%

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
APPENDIX 2
Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation Priorities
Cipfa Recommended Assurance Statement Definitions:
Substantial assurance - A sound system of governance, risk management and
control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.
Reasonable assurance - There is a generally sound system of governance, risk
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in
the area audited.
Limited assurance - Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were
identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management
and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.
No assurance - Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps,
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk
management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.
EKAP Priority of Recommendations Definitions:
Critical – A finding which significantly impacts upon a corporate risk or seriously
impairs the organisation’s ability to achieve a corporate priority. Critical
recommendations also relate to non-compliance with significant pieces of legislation
which the organisation is required to adhere to and which could result in a financial
penalty or prosecution. Such recommendations are likely to require immediate
remedial action and are actions the Council must take without delay.
High – A finding which significantly impacts upon the operational service objective of
the area under review. This would also normally be the priority assigned to
recommendations relating to the (actual or potential) breach of a less prominent legal
responsibility or significant internal policies; unless the consequences of
non-compliance are severe. High priority recommendations are likely to require
remedial action at the next available opportunity or as soon as is practical and are
recommendations that the Council must take.
Medium – A finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of - or where
there is a weakness within - its own policies, procedures or internal control measures,
but which does not directly impact upon a strategic risk, key priority, or the
operational service objective of the area under review. Medium priority
recommendations are likely to require remedial action within three to six months and
are actions which the Council should take.

Page 33

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Low – A finding where there is little if any risk to the Council or the recommendation
is of a business efficiency nature and is therefore advisory in nature. Low priority
recommendations are suggested for implementation within six to nine months and
generally describe actions the Council could take.

Page 34

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL & HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS NOT IMPLEMENTED AT THE TIME OF FOLLOW-UP – APPENDIX 3
Original Recommendation

Agreed Management Action ,
Responsibility and Target Date

Manager’s Comment on Progress
Towards Implementation.

None this Quarter - The Outstanding Lift recommendations were partially implemented and a second follow-up is being undertaken

Agenda Item 4

Annex 2

Page 35

SERVICES GIVEN LIMITED / NO ASSURANCE LEVELS STILL TO BE REVIEWED – APPENDIX 4
Service

Follow-up Action Due

March 2019

Limited

Autumn 2019

East Kent Housing - Tenant Health & Safety

September 2019

Limited/No

Work-in-Progress*

Planning Applications, Income and s.106
Agreements

December 2019

Reasonable/Limited

Spring 2020

EK Services – PCI-DSS

December 2019

Reasonable/Limited

Spring 2020

March 2020

Limited

Work-in-Progress

East Kent Housing - Employee Health & Safety

July 2020

Limited

Autumn 2020

Building Control

July 2020

Limited

Autumn 2020

Tenancy & Right to Buy Fraud

Street Cleansing

Page 36

●

A second follow-up of Lifts is currently in progress and Fire Safety is scheduled for the end of July.

Agenda Item 4

Level of Assurance

Annex 2

Reported to Committee

Agenda Item 5
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019-2020
Governance and Audit Committee  22 July 2020
Report Author

Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Helen Whitehead - Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Housing & Community Services

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
To provide the Governance and Audit Committee with the draft Annual Governance
Statement 2019/20.

Recommendation(s):
Committee agree the draft Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 which will be shared with
our external auditors for amendment (if necessary) prior to publication.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
There are no specific cost implications arising from this report which have
Value for
not already been budgeted for.
Money
Legal
Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 require the
council to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review
with any published statement of accounts. Regulation 6(1)(b) of the
Regulations require that the statement is the Annual Governance
Statement.
Corporate
The Annual Governance Statement is a corporate document and as such
should be owned by all senior officers and members of the authority.
Failure to accept the AGS will diminish the council’s governance
arrangements.
Equality
Act Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
2010 & Public Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
Sector Equality the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the Duty
Duty
are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do
not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it.

Page 37

Agenda Item 5

Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
Please indicate which aim is relevant to the report.
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
✓
other conduct prohibited by the Act,
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
✓
protected characteristic and people who do not share it
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
✓
characteristic and people who do not share it.
Engaging local communities including hard to reach groups meets a core
principle of the CIPFA/ SOLACE guidance for good governance. The AGS
supports the public sector equality duty directly.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick
those relevant)✓
A clean and welcoming
Environment
Promoting inward investment and
job creation
Supporting neighbourhoods

CORPORATE VALUES
those relevant)✓
Delivering value for money

(tick
✓

Supporting the Workforce

✓

Promoting open communications

✓

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The annual governance statement (AGS) is a statutory document which explains
the processes and procedures in place to enable the council to carry out its
functions effectively.

1.2

The statement is produced following a review of the council's governance
arrangements and includes an action plan to address any significant governance
issues identified.

1.3

Governance and Audit Committee will consider this draft AGS and assurance
gathering process. The AGS will then be audited and the Monitoring Officer will make
any necessary changes before final publication on the 31 August 2020.

2.0 The Draft Annual Governance Statement
2.1

The draft AGS, which is attached at Annex 1, should reflect the corporate
governance environment of the council as detailed in the adopted Local Code of
Corporate Governance. In essence, the AGS is the formal statement that recognises,
records and publishes the council’s governance arrangements.

2.2

The AGS is a key corporate document, and the Leader and Chief Executive have
joint responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. In order to
ensure that the AGS accurately reflects our Governance Framework, a number of
sources of assurance are gathered to feed into the preparation of the document. It

Page 38

Agenda Item 5
has been consulted upon with the Leader, Chief Executive / Section 151 Officer and
all members of Corporate Management Team.
2.3

An action plan will be developed to address the governance issues identified. This
will be monitored through the council’s monitoring system and an update report will be
provided to Governance and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Madeline Homer, Chief Executive

Annex List
Annex 1

Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

Background Papers
Title
CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance
Framework for Local Government 2016
The Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015

Details of where to access copy
Copy available from Director of Corporate
Governance
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/pdfs/u
ksi_20150234_en.pdf

Corporate Consultation
Finance
Legal

Matthew Sanham Financial Services
Tim Howes Director of Corporate Governance

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1

Thanet
District
Council
Annual
Governance
Statement
2019-2020
July 2020

1

Page 41

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1

Scope of responsibility
Thanet District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty
under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in
the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency
and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.
The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance on the 6 March 2019,
which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) Framework Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This
statement explains how Thanet District Council has complied with the code and also how we meet
the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which requires all
relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.
The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good governance and describes the
arrangements the Council has put in place to meet each of these principles. A copy of the
Council’s Code is available on our website at www.thanet.gov.uk

The purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by which
the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and accounts to the
community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective
services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and
objectives, but it seeks to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify, prioritise and
manage the risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.
The governance framework has been in place at Thanet District Council for the year ended 31
March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts.

The Governance Framework
The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and managed,
both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The Framework recognises
that the Council’s business is focussed upon its corporate priorities and seeks to facilitate delivery
to our local communities of the goals set out in the Corporate Plan. The structures and processes,

Page 42

2

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
risk management and other internal control systems, such as standards of conduct, form part of
this Framework, which is about managing the barriers to achieving the Council’s objectives.
The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually through the Governance and Audit
Committee. This last happened on 6 March 2019. Members and senior officers are responsible for
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs and the
stewardship of the resources at its disposal. This task is managed by the Corporate Management
Team (CMT) which comprises the Chief Executive and Directors. The Code of Corporate
Governance sets out the controls in full and can be found at:
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s63167/Thanet%20District%20Council%20Local%20C
ode%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%202019.pdf

Review of Effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is
informed by:

Page 43

3

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
●
●
●
●

the work of the Director of Corporate Governance and Section 151 Officer, who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment;
the review of the effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Audit Arrangements 2019/20, as
provided by the East Kent Audit Partnership;
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates;
the Audit & Governance Committee review that the elements of the governance framework
are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the principles.

The following annual documents also inform the review:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Annual review of the Constitution
Annual report of the Standards Committee
Overview and Scrutiny Panel Annual Report
Head of Internal Audit Annual Report
Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report
External Audit Annual Letter

A Governance Group comprising officers from legal, democratic support, finance and internal audit
have considered the governance framework and areas where work is required.
The members of the Council’s Corporate Management Team have considered the draft Annual
Governance Statement and for each of their areas of control, acknowledge responsibility for risk
management and internal control, and certifying satisfaction with the arrangements in place
throughout 2019/20.
In accordance with section 3.7 of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting for 2016/17,
the Council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the CFO in Local Government (2010).
The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to look into matters of potential
unlawfulness within the Council. In 2019/20 the Monitoring Officer reviewed the Council’s
Constitution and these will be progressed through the Constitutional Review Working Party and
Standards Committee before being recommended to Council.
The Annual Reports from the Standards Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Panel and
Governance and Audit Committee have also been considered in preparing this statement.

Council
At the meeting on 11 July 2019, the Council agreed to call upon the four political groups and the
single non-aligned Councillor to work together to identify preferred options for changing our system
of governance, from the current Cabinet led system to a Committee led system, and then submit
those options to the Constitutional Review Working Party for consideration.
No reports or options in relation to this decision were put to the Constitutional Review Working
Party during 2019/2020.

Page 44

4

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
At the extraordinary meeting on 10 October 2019, the Council agreed to remove Cllr Bayford as
the Leader and he was replaced as Leader by Ciir Everitt.
At the meeting on 10 October 2019, the Council adopted a Corporate Statement and supporting
Core Business Objectives for 2019-2023. See the link below.
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s66020/Corporate%20Statement%202019-2024.pdf
At the meeting on 16 January 2020, the Council accepted the recommendation from the Boundary
and Electoral Arrangements Working Party on the review of polling districts, places and stations.
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s67008/Annex%202.pdf

Overview and Scrutiny Panel
In 2018/19, the council created two overview and scrutiny panels which are the Executive, Policy
and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel and the Finance, Budget and Performance Scrutiny Panel.
These were decommissioned in May 2019 and replaced by a single Overview and Scrutiny Panel.
In 2019/20 the Panel carried out seven pre-decision reviews and eleven post decision reviews. The
Panel received six cabinet member presentations where they engaged the portfolio holders in
discussion on key review topics.
Forward Plan Reviews
The Panel was invited to review the council budget proposals for 2020/21 that were later
recommended to Full Council by Cabinet. Members discussed the proposals with the Leader of the
Council, Portfolio Holder for Financial Services and Estates and senior officers. One of the key
aspects of the budget proposals was tackling the budget gap and in particular, addressing the
budget deficit at the Port of Ramsgate. After the debate, Members did not forward any
recommendations to Cabinet.
On 17 February 2020 Cabinet considered the housing management options appraisal report. This
was after a number of concerns had been raised by Members regarding the management of the
council’s housing stock by East Kent Housing. Specific failures of service delivery and poor
performance were highlighted which led to Cabinet agreeing that the management of the Council’s
housing stock be brought back in-house.
One-off Reports requested by the Panel
Cabinet sought the Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s comments regarding the proposals in the draft
Housing and Homeless Strategy for 2020-2025 leading up to a public consultation before Cabinet
adopted the new Strategy.
The Overview and Scrutiny Panel received a presentation on temporary accommodation for
homeless households. This detailed out the significant amount of work being done by the

Page 45

5

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
Homelessness Team to tackle homelessness in the district by providing quick response support to
households that found themselves in difficult situations.
Scrutiny Reviews conducted by the Panel
The Overview and Scrutiny Panel reviewed unauthorised encampments in the district. A review
group was set up in May which conducted the investigation over four months leading up to a
presentation of a detailed report back to the Panel in November.
Call-In Procedure
Proposal for the disposal of the Dreamland freehold
The Panel called-in a cabinet decision on the “Proposal for the disposal of the Dreamland
freehold”after Cabinet had agreed dispose the asset, subject to agreement of external funders
regarding the removal of ongoing grant obligations upon the Council, and subject to legal advice,
to dispose of Dreamland to Sands Heritage Ltd.
Port and Harbour Projects - Variation to 2019/20 Capital Programme
Members called in a decision by the Leader of Council “to approve the capital project to deliver
the Commercial Berth in the Eastern Gully of the Royal Harbour and realign the existing 2019/20
budget for berth 4/5” at the Port of Ramsgate.

Internal Audit
Significant issues arising in 2019-20
From the work undertaken during 2019-20, there were no instances of unsatisfactory responses to
key control issues raised in internal audit reports by the end of the year. There are occasions when
audit recommendations are not accepted for operational reasons such as a manager’s opinion that
costs outweigh the risk, but none of these are significant and require reporting or escalation at this
time.
The EKAP has been commissioned to perform only one follow up, there are no reviews previously
assessed as providing a Limited Assurance that are yet to be followed up.
Overall Conclusion
The work of Internal Audit and this report contribute to the overall internal control environment
operating within EK Services, and also assists in providing an audit trail to the statements that
must be published annually with the financial accounts for each partner council. It is a requirement
of s.151 of the Local Government Act 1974 for the Council to maintain an ‘effective’ internal audit
function, when forming my opinion on the Council’s overall system of control, I need to have regard
to the amount of work which we have undertaken upon which I am basing my opinion.
Based on the work of the EKAP on behalf of EK Services during 2019-20, the overall opinion is
that there are no major areas of concern, which would give rise to a qualified audit statement
regarding the systems of internal control concerning either the main financial systems or overall
systems of corporate governance. The EKAP assesses the overall system of internal control in
operation throughout 2019-20 as providing reasonable assurance. No system of control can
provide absolute assurance, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance. This statement is intended

Page 46

6

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
to provide reasonable assurance that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the key risks.
The EKAP is, from time to time, required to carry out special investigations, including suspected
fraud and irregularity investigations and other special projects. Whilst one financial irregularity was
investigated during the year at the request of management, the officer concerned resigned before
the disciplinary hearing and consequently whilst the EKAP concluded a fact finding report into a
potential fraud on behalf of Thanet District Council in 2019-20, the matter was not formally proven
or disproven. The Head of Audit also undertook the role of ‘commissioning officer’ for a
Whistleblowing fact finding matter in the year, that was not fully concluded by the year end.

External Audit
On the 25 September 2019 Grant Thornton, the Council’s external auditor reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee and gave an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial
statements on 31 July 2019 within their Annual Audit and Inspection letter.
Local government electors raised four objections with Grant Thornton challenging aspects of the
Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
They could not conclude on the VFM conclusion until they had dealt with the objections.
The 2018/19 accounts that the Committee agreed were correct, they had been produced in
accordance with all relevant legislation and had been confirmed as accurate by the external
auditor.

Governance and Audit Committee
Internal Audit assessed corporate governance arrangements by measuring the Council against the
requirements of the governance framework outlined in the CIPFA / SOLACE publication “Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government”, and the results of this have been reported to the Audit
and Governance Committee.
The Committee continues to discharge its responsibilities to provide independent assurance on the
adequacy of the council's risk management framework and the associated control environment,
and in providing robust scrutiny and challenge of the Authority's financial performance.
Homes England
Homes England undertook a compliance audit for 2018/19 which was reported to the Committee
on the 24 July 2019. The compliance audit recorded no breaches of contract conditions. A green
grading was issued that confirmed that the Council had met all contractual and programme
requirements.
East Kent Housing Health and Safety
An audit into East Kent Housing tenant Health and Safety was undertaken to provide assurance on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and controls established by East Kent Housing
to ensure the safety of all residents in all properties for which they are responsible for is not
compromised. Testing undertaken during that review concluded that there were systemic failings in

Page 47

7

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
relation to the internal control of health and safety, and a number of the necessary systems of
control surrounding fire safety, electrical safety, lifts and Legionella were absent.
The Cabinet report set out the background to the identified failure to undertake inspections and the
remedial action taken. Failures at both EKH and at the Council’s appointed contractor at the time
had led to the position where some properties did not have a valid LGSR. It was reported to
Cabinet, that officers had:

● Met with the board and Chief Executive of EKH and requested daily updates on progress;
●
●
●
●
●
●

●

Self-referred the issue with LGSRs to the Regulator for Social Housing and has provided
updates on progress;
Implemented alternative contract arrangements with alternative providers, who had now
completed the backlog of work;
Set up a new interim contract for all gas work, and;
Progressed the procurement of a new permanent contract.
Agreed a brief for a wide reaching review of health and safety management with the
Regulator for Social Housing;
Immediately set up a direct intervention, which involved an officer task force to investigate
health and safety management at EKH, inspecting key buildings and relevant health and
safety files;
Recruited a specialist health and safety adviser to work with officers and enhance the
scrutiny of EKH's activities.

On 17 October 2019 Cabinet decided to withdraw from East Kent Housing (EKH) and return the
housing management services back in-house under direct management of the council. Following
the appropriate consultation on the 17 February Cabinet formally agreed to transfer the housing
function in-house.
There will be significant governance issues arising from the decision which will be managed during
2020/2021
Contract Standing Orders
Internal Audit carried out a review to provide assurance to Management that the Council’s
practices for the procurement of goods and services achieves economic cost and good value for
money and that Contract Standing Order guidance and supporting procurement practices/user
instructions are relevant and complied with as appropriate. The review provided a reasonable
assurance.

Standards Committee
Complaints under the Code of Conduct
In 2019/2020, of the 27 complaints received, 19 were judged not to meet the jurisdiction test. 8
cases were therefore progressed for consideration by a sub-committee. It was judged that in 4
cases no further action was deemed the appropriate response. 1 case was judged to have been a
breach of the Code of Conduct and in consequence, a process of informal resolution was
instituted. The 3 remaining complaints related to one Member, who ceased holding such office by

Page 48

8

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
virtue of the Council elections in 2019. Accordingly, all further consideration of these specific
complaints ceased. One of these cases, involving an employee of the Council as complainant,
might on the basis of the allegations, have necessitated a formal investigation and consequential
expense of an external investigator; fortunately avoided in this instance by democratic process
Since the new District Council has been elected in May 2019, the issue of Member behaviour has
been less of an issue for the purposes of Standards compliance. This can be attributed to the
Member training programme that officers laid on at the beginning of the new Council and in
accordance with the Charter status for Elected Member Development.
Training
Thanet District Council has maintained its Charter status for Elected Member Development.
Standards Ethics and Governance
In 2019, the Committee on Standards in Public Life undertook a review of ethical standards in local
government. Following that review, a draft Model Code of Conduct was published on the 20 March
2020 and was put out for consultation. However that consultation has been delayed by the Covid
19 pandemic.

Constitutional Review Working Party (CRWP)
The CRWP met on the 21 June 2019, 24 September 2019 and 21 November 2019 to consider a
report which set out the required arrangements for dealing with disciplinary action against the
Council’s Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer) in
order to comply with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2015.
Council considered the same matter on 11 July 2019, 7 October 2019 and finally the 6 February
2020 when the provisions of the 2015 Regulations were adopted.

General Purposes Committee
The General Purposes Committee considered advice from the Local Government Association on
the efficacy of the Council’s Grievance Policy (which applies to all staff), with respect to grievances
in relation to statutory officers. The committee instructed East Kent HR (who
discharge the Council’s function of preparing and approving HR policies and procedures) to look at
best practice through a benchmarking exercise and to prepare a new grievance policy based on
the JNC model.

Corporate Risks
The following corporate risks relate to significant governance issues.
Political Stewardship
This continues to represent a risk to the council, as following the local elections the Council
remains in no overall control. It is still evident that there remain ongoing issues which could have a

Page 49

9

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
significant effect on the council. The council continues to pursue opportunities to support
cross-party working and has implemented induction training for new members post election.
Limited Resources
The high score for Limited Resources reflects the fact that it is one of the few risks that in extremis
could result in the council losing control of its own destiny. There remains continued uncertainty
regarding the external funding environment and challenges still exist with delivering the budget.
Therefore, the likelihood and severity of the impact of the risk becoming manifest (e.g. TDC having
to terminate services, make large-scale redundancies and/or be externally governed or managed)
remains high, not only now but for the immediate future.
Brexit
The UK was due to leave the European Union on 31 October 2019. The UK Government is
continuing to work on arriving at an agreed deal on exit. Significant risk prevails should no deal be
agreed within the timescale. Whilst there are national concerns that must be addressed, the
council must focus primarily on managing those risks which have a local and regional impact in
particular.
The scale of its effect should not be underestimated and the Council has already begun some
contingency planning for a disorderly Brexit. The significant issues to consider are those
concerning the strategic transport network, funding and the port. In addition, the Council has
identified a number of issues that could potentially impact on the council's ability to deliver its
services.
With the UK leaving the EU on the 31 January 2021, this continues to be a corporate risk.
East Kent Housing Performance
Deteriorating performance of EKH results in unacceptable risks to TDC tenants and residents. On
15 January 2019 an EKH improvement plan was approved by Cabinet that came into effect on 1
April 2019 and runs through to 30 September 2020.
As a result of the plan, EKH are being closely measured on their key performance indicators.
Recently a lack of gas safety certificates for a high number of properties across Dover, Canterbury,
Folkestone and Hythe and Thanet has raised the risk profile of EKHs ability to meet all aspects of
the improvement plan. TDC alongside the other councils are now reviewing the current
arrangements with EKH.
These risks will be managed by the Corporate Management Team and will be reported separately
to the Governance and Audit Committee.
The above risks obviously pre-date the emergence of the Covid 19 pandemic and the
announcement by the Prime Minister on the 23 March 2020 of the ‘lockdown’. Covid 19 has had
and will have a huge impact on the people of Thanet and the operation of the Council. The
governance impact will be reported in the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021.

Page 50

10

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1

Ombudsman Complaints
The Ombudsman received 41 complaints or inquiries during the year, and 43 decisions were
made, of which: 4 were incomplete or invalid; 14 were referred back for local resolution, 13 were
closed after initial inquiries, 4 were not upheld and 8 were upheld.The ‘upheld’ rate was 67%
(compared to 50% in 2017/18). The Ombudsman issued no public reports against the Council.
There were no complaints which resulted in recommended actions with regard to significant
governance matters.

Monitoring Officer’s Report
On the 25 July 2019 the Monitoring Officer issued a report under the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989. The Monitoring Officer highlighted the breach by the Council’s executive of
Regulation 36 of the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998 which placed a duty upon
a landlord to have a gas safety check undertaken on an annual basis on appliances and flues to
which the regulations apply.
At the same meeting on 25 July 2019 the Cabinet received a report which set out the management
response to the concerns raised about gas safety certification as set out in the Monitoring Officer’s
report to Cabinet. The report set out the background to the identified failure to undertake
inspections in a number of Council owned dwellings and the remedial actions taken.
A number of employment matters were raised between managers at the authority in 2019/2020
which need to be addressed and resolved. One matter was dealt with in 2019/2020, the others are
following the formal processes, which should be concluded in 2020/2021.

The Impact of Covid 19
The coronavirus Covid 19 pandemic has had a substantial impact on the Council’s governance
arrangements. The UK was put into lockdown on 23 March 2020 in an unprecedented step to
attempt to limit the spread of coronavirus.
In early February 2020 Cllr Constantine resigned as a Councillor for Newington ward and a
by-election was set for 19 March 2020. On government advice and subsequently through the Local
Government and Police and Crime Commissioner (Coronavirus) (Postponement of Elections and
Referendums) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, the by-election was postponed until May
2021. The Council will therefore be operating with 55 of its 56 councillors until that date.
Under the same Regulations, the Police and Crime Commissioner Elections (which are carried out
by the Council’s Returning Officer) and which were due to take place on 7 May 2020 were
postponed until May 2021.
On the 4 April 2020 The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.
This gave the Council powers to:
●

Provide for remote access to Council meetings by members and by the press and public.

Page 51

11

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
●
●
●

Enabled the Council to hold and alter the frequency and occurrence of meetings without
requirement for further notice.
Provided for members of local authorities to attend meetings remotely
Removed the requirement for an annual meeting in May 2020

The pandemic and subsequent ‘lockdown’ led to a change in the way staff operated with people
working from home,and being re-allocated to Covid 19 support activities.
The work by Democratic Services on remote meetings supported the work of other East Kent
Districts and was also provided as an example of good practice for the Association of Democratic
services Officers.
https://www.adso.co.uk/app/uploads/2020/05/ADSO-Virtual-Meetings-case-studies-updated-202005-28.pdf

Significant Governance Issues
Working towards good governance includes being open and transparent and supporting
accountability to the public. The governance statement is one way of being more open about what
is working well and what needs improvement. It is highly unlikely that everything will be ‘fit for
purpose’: new risks emerge, expectations increase and controls change.

Areas for Improvement
In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, the following issues have
been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance
Framework. The aim is to address these weaknesses during the 2020/21 financial year, by way of
an action plan for improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be
subject to regular monitoring by the Governance and Audit Committee.
No

Issues

Summary of Action Proposed

1.

Financial Regulations are
out of date and need to be
refreshed

This refresh of Financial Regulations has been deferred to
coincide with a wider Financial Management Review. The
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) published their Financial Management Code in late
2019 and the Council will undertake a review of financial
management later this year, which will help stabilise finances
and to build for the future.

2.

Review of the Constitution
- this was brought forward
from 2019/2020

This will include:
● Planning Committee speaking rules and other
committee procedural matters
● Council petition scheme
● Legal rules
● Timetable for questions to Council
● Questions to Council

Page 52

12

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
3.

Review of the Council’s
Constitution in relation to
emergencies

To review the lessons learnt locally and nationally from the
coronavirus epidemic and to determine what changes (if any)
should be made to our governance arrangements to cover
future emergency situations.

Approval of the Annual Governance Statement
The governance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the
Governance Framework.

Signed Madeline Homer
Madeline Homer
Chief Executive

Date 25 July 2020

Signed
Cllr Rick Everitt
Leader of the Council

Date 25 July 2020

Timetable
Draft to AGS by the 31 August 2020
Final Publication 30 November 2020

Page 53

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Accounting Policies
Governance & Audit Committee

22 July 2020

Report Author

Chris Blundell

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for Finance,
Administration and Community Wealth Building

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Budget and Policy Framework

Executive Summary:
This report introduces the Council’s Accounting Policies to be used in the closing of the
accounts and covers the 2019-20 policy, as well as 2020-21, for agreement.
Recommendation(s):
1. That the committee agrees the policies as set out in Annex 1 and 2 of this report;
2. That the committee notes the changes to the statutory audit deadlines for 2019-20

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Value for
Money
Legal
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015
The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations
2020
This is a statutory requirement
Corporate
This forms part of the external audit process
Equality
Act Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
2010 & Public Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard
Sector
to the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the
Equality Duty
Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between
people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not
share it.

Page 55

Agenda Item 6
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from
this report, but the Council needs to retain a strong focus and
understanding on issues of diversity amongst the local community
and ensure service delivery matches these.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick those relevant)✓
Growth
Environment
Communities
1.
1.1.

Introduction
This report presents the council’s 2019-20 and 2020-21 accounting policies to the
committee for approval and also provides an update on the closure of the 2019-20
accounts.

2.
2.1.

Accounting Policies
As part of the above process and to fulfil audit requirements, each year the Council
undertakes a review of its accounting policies to assess relevance and consistency of
application. To aid understanding of the basis in which these accounts have been
prepared, we are presenting these policies to G&A for consideration as well as the
proposed 2020/21 policies.

2.2.

The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for any given
financial year and its position at the year end of 31 March. The council is required to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework
established in England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require the
accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice. These
primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2018-19 (the Code) supported by the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

2.3.

The accounting policies that will be adopted are set out in Annex 1 and 2 of this report
and cover the main principles, rules and conventions that will need to be applied.

3.
3.1

Changes in Accounting Policies for 2020-21
The main change that was expected for the 2020-21 accounts was the
implementation of IFRS16 (bringing almost all lease liabilities on to the balance sheet
together with the corresponding ‘right of use’ assets). However, this has been
delayed for one year from 2020-21 to 2021-22 accounts closedown, due to Covid-19.

3.2

As such the main change is relatively minor, the Council is increasing its de minimis
(minimum) level of Capital recognition from £10k to £15k. The implication of this
change is that from 1st April 2020 expenditure of a capital nature will only be
capitalized if it is above the increased threshold of £15k, any expenditure below this
amount will be charged to revenue.

Page 56

Agenda Item 6
4.
4.1.

Changes to Statutory Audit Deadlines for 2019-20
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the council (through this
Committee) to approve and publish its annual statement of accounts by 31 July.
Furthermore, local authorities are required to approve their draft accounts by 31st
May, with draft accounts being made available for public inspection for 30 working
days, inclusive of the first 10 working days of June.

4.2.

Under these regulations, the statement of accounts would have been presented to
this 30 June Governance and Audit Committee meeting for approval.

4.3.

However, in response to the coronavirus pandemic these requirements were eased
under the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020, in
recognition of the impact of COVID-19 on councils’ ability to meet this statutory
deadline.

4.4.

The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020 enacted the
following changes to the statutory deadlines:
●

The publication date for final, audited, accounts will move from 31 July to 30
November 2020 for all local authority bodies.

●

To give local authorities more flexibility, the requirement for the public inspection
period to include the first 10 working days of June has been removed.

●

Instead local authorities must commence the public inspection period on or before the
first working day of September 2020. This means that draft accounts must be
approved by 31 August 2020 at the latest.

4.5.

As such, at the time of writing, the draft accounts had not yet been approved, the
external audit of the accounts has been deferred until August and subsequent
approval of the final accounts by the Governance and Audit Committee will need to be
rescheduled.

5.
5.1.

Recommendation
That Committee approves the Council’s accounting policies as attached at Annexes 1
and 2 of this report.
That the Committee notes the changes to the statutory audit deadlines for 2020-21

5.2.

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Matthew Sanham (Financial Services Manager)
Chris Blundell (Head of Finance and Procurement Services)

Annex List
Annex 1
Annex 2

2019/20 Accounting Policies
2020/21 Accounting policies

Background Papers
Title
None

Details of where to access copy
N/A

Corporate Consultation

Page 57

Agenda Item 6

Finance
Legal

N/A
N/A

Page 58

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1

1. Accounting Policies
General
The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2019-20 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2020. The council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework established in
England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require the accounts to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice. These primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019-20 (the Code)
supported by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.
Unless otherwise stated the figures in these accounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds, and revenue and credit balances are shown in brackets.
The accounting policies that have been adopted are set out in the following paragraphs.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Revenue streams are accounted for in the year they are due irrespective of whether the
sums have been paid or received as follows:
●

●

●

●

Revenue from contracts with service recipients for either goods or services is
recognised when/as the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations of the contract
Supplies of goods are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, when there
is a delay between the date the supplies are received and when they are consumed,
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet
Expenditure in relation to services received (including the services provided by
employees) are recorded when the services are received rather than when payments
are made
Revenue from non-exchange transactions such as council tax and non-domestic
rates are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the council and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Exceptions to this principle are public utility accounts which are charged according to the
date of the meter reading and some recurring sundry debtor accounts and annual fees for
which the due dates do not coincide with normal quarter or year dates, subject to materiality.
This policy is applied consistently each year and does not have a material effect on the
year’s accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that

Page 59

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
mature no more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

Material Items of Income and Expenditure
Where material items of income and expenditure are not disclosed on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement a separate note will set out the nature
and amount of the relevant item.

Prior Period Adjustments
Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or
standards will be reflected retrospectively in the Statement of Accounts when required by
proper accounting practice, by restating both the opening balances and the comparable
figures for the prior year, together with a disclosure note detailing the reasons for such
restatement. Material errors in prior period figures are also corrected retrospectively in the
same way.

Employee Benefits
Pensions General
The Accounting Standards, IAS 19 and 26 regarding Employee Benefits and Retirement
Benefits, require recognition of pension assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the
operating costs of providing retirement benefits together with changes in the value of assets
and liabilities to be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In order that IAS 26 requirements do not impact upon council tax levels, the movement on
the net assets and liabilities (net of the employer’s contributions and actuarial gains and
losses) is reversed out to the Pension Reserve through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
Benefits Payable During Employment
The full costs of employees are charged to the accounts of the period within which the
employees worked.
The costs of any short term employee benefits untaken at the balance sheet date such as
untaken leave, flexitime and lieu time due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end are
accrued subject to materiality. The value of the accrual is calculated at the wage and salary
rates applicable to the period in which the employee takes the benefit (the following year),
and is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The adjustment is reversed
out of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement so that there is no charge to
the taxpayer.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision

Page 60

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment or makes an offer to
encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
Post Employment Benefits
The Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Kent County Council (KCC) is a
defined benefit scheme. Contributions to the pension scheme are determined by the Fund’s
actuary on a triennial basis. The formal valuation of the Fund for the purpose of setting
employers’ actual contributions disclosed in these accounts was as at 31 March 2017 and
this has been used to update the service cost figures.
Liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method. This requires an assessment of
the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and
projections of earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.4% based
on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds.
The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet
at their fair value:
●
●
●
●

Quoted securities – current bid price
Unquoted securities – professional estimate
Unitised securities – current bid price
Property – market value

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Costs comprising;
Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue
accounts of services for which the employees worked.
Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Cost of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs.

Page 61

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability – the expected increase in the present
value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Remeasurements;
Expected Return on Assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable
to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Actuarial Gains and Losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve.
Contributions Paid to the Funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises
on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Events after the Reporting Period
Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date, whether favourable or unfavourable,
and also provides evidence of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date, the
amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts will be adjusted. Any disclosures affected
by the new information about the adjusting event will also be updated in light of the new
information.
Events that occur after the Balance Sheet date indicative of conditions arising after the
Balance Sheet date will not be adjusted in the Accounting Statements, but will be disclosed
in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements if it would have had a material effect, to
include:
●

the nature of the event, and

Page 62

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
●

an estimate of the financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be
made reliably

Events taking place after the date the accounts are authorised for issue are not reflected in
the Statement of Accounts.

Financial Instruments – Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised. For the Council’s borrowings this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year in accordance with the loan agreements.

Financial Instruments – Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics. The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual
cash flow, these assets are therefore classified and measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable
for the year in the loan agreement. A small element of the loans are classified as soft loans
(made at less than market rate) so there is a requirement to record any loss in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to represent interest forgone over the
life of the loan if material.

Expected Credit Loss
Trade debtors - classified as financial assets, any loss allowance is calculated by
considering the age of the debt, historic payment trends and any lifetime expected credit
loss. Where these assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the

Page 63

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under the heading ‘Impairment of
Financial Instruments’.
No loss allowance is set aside for local authority and central government debts as statutory
provisions under the Local Government Act 2003 prevent default.
Loans - the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the assets original effective
interest rate. Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Fair Value Measurement
The Council measures some of its property assets and some of its financial instruments at
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
●
●

in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset,
the Council takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as follows:
●
●
●

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Council can access at the measurement date
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Government and Non-Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

Page 64

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
●
●

the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring fenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to
which they relate. Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are
credited to the foot of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under
Taxation and Non–Specific Grant Income.

Heritage Assets
A heritage asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for
future generations because of its historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities and is held and maintained principally for its contribution to
knowledge and culture.
The council has identified the following asset groups as classified as Heritage Assets:
●
●
●
●
●

Public statues
Artefacts and or collections within museums
Art collections
Civic regalia
Historic amusement park and rides

Heritage assets (other than operational heritage assets) shall normally be measured at cost
in accordance with FRS102 since it is deemed to be more appropriate and relevant than
applying any valuation model.
Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost or if bequeathed or donated at nil cost, at
valuation.

Page 65

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Heritage assets are reviewed for evidence of impairment, including doubts as to authenticity.
Any impairment is accounted for in accordance with the council’s policy within the Property
Plant and Equipment accounting policy. The proceeds of any disposals likewise follow the
council’s general accounting policy.

Intangible Assets
In line with IAS 38 (Intangible Assets), expenditure on intangible fixed assets is capitalised at
cost. An intangible fixed asset is one that has no physical substance but is identifiable and
the council has control, (either through custody or legal protection) over the future economic
benefits derivable from it.
Purchased intangible assets (e.g. software licences) should be capitalised as assets.
Internally developed intangible assets should only be capitalised where criteria set out in
section 4.5.2.7 of the Code are met. The council must satisfy itself that these criteria can be
met and that internal systems are able to distinguish between Research and Development
phases of a project.
Council policy is to write down intangible assets to the relevant service revenue account in
the year that they occur.

Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Code’s definition of an interest in another entity includes ‘the means by which an entity
has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, another entity’. In accordance with
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, assessment
of any involvement/interest for the purposes of group accounts will consider the above when
determining whether or not a group relationship exists. This is considered to apply where the
Council has all of the following:
●
●
●

sole control of another entity and power over it;
exposure to risks or rights to variable returns;
and the ability to use its power over the other entity to influence those returns.

Subject to the assessment set out above if the council’s interest is deemed to be a group
relationship the Council may still only prepare single entity accounts if the group interest is
not material.

Inventories, Rechargeable Works and Long Term Contracts
Inventories relate to printing, stationery and marketing merchandise held at Visitor
Information Centres and Museums and stores held at the Parks and Waste Direct Labour
Organisations.
The Code and IAS 2 (Inventories), require stocks to be shown at the lower of actual cost or
net realisable value. The stock at the printing unit is measured at average cost of stock held
as it is considered that the financial effect of the different treatment is not material.
Any work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at year end. Rechargeable Works are
included at cost.

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Long Term contracts are defined as “contracts entered into for the design, manufacture or
construction of a single substantial asset or the provision of a service (or of a combination of
assets or services which together constitute a single project) where the time taken
substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into different
accounting periods.” The council makes a disclosure in the notes to the Core Financial
Statements in respect of any capital contracts meeting this definition. Long term contracts
are accounted for by charging the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services with the
consideration allocated to the performance obligations of the contract that have been
satisfied, based on the goods or services that have been transferred to the service recipient
during the financial year.

Joint Operations
Joint Operations are activities undertaken by the council in conjunction with other bodies
where there is joint control and the parties have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
lease liabilities of the arrangement. Joint control exists where unanimous consent is required
from the parties sharing control for decisions about relevant activities. The council
recognises on its Balance Sheet its own assets and the liabilities that it incurs, and debits
and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it
incurs and the share of the income it may earn from the activity of the operation.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The accounting
treatment for leases depends on whether the Council is a lessee; is paying a third party
rental payments for the right to use an asset, or a lessor where it is granting the right to use
an asset to an external third party. The accounting treatment for each is given below:
Where the Council is a Lessee
Finance Leases: Where the Council enters into material finance leases, the asset is
recognised in the Council’s Balance Sheet, together with any associated liability to fund the
asset. The cost of the fixed asset is then charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement over the life of the asset in accordance with the Council’s
depreciation policy.
Rentals payable under finance leases are apportioned between a finance charge and a
reduction in the liability. The apportionment basis used ensures that the finance charge is
allocated over the term of the lease.
Operating Leases: Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable are charged to the relevant service revenue
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals
are charged when they become payable.
Where the Council is a Lessor
Finance Leases: The asset is removed from the Balance Sheet as the risks and rewards
are with the lessee with the amounts due from finance leases recorded in the Balance Sheet

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
as a debtor. Rentals received are apportioned between reducing the debtor and finance
interest earnings. The apportionment basis used ensures that earnings are normally
allocated to the lease term to give a constant periodic rate of return to the Council.
Operating Leases: Rentals receivable are charged to the relevant service revenue account
over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are charged when they become
payable.

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as either Property, Plant and
Equipment or Investment Properties.
Recognition: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of non-current assets
has been capitalised on an accruals basis at cost with subsequent measurement as
explained below. Expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised, provided that the asset
yields benefit to the Council and the services it provides, for a period of more than one
financial year. Subsequent expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised in accordance
with IAS 16. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current
assets, which is charged directly to service revenue accounts. The Council has set a de
minimis level in respect of the recognition of capital expenditure of £10k.
Non-current assets are classified into groupings required by the Code, comprising
a)
Property, Plant and Equipment, which can be further analysed as
● Land and Operational Buildings
● Council Dwellings
● Infrastructure Assets
● Vehicles Plant and Equipment
● Community Assets
● Assets under Construction
b)
Heritage Assets
c)
Investment Properties
d)
Intangible Assets (see separate accounting policy)
Measurement: Non-current assets have been valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA
and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes
issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). They have been classified in
accordance with the IFRS Code and have been valued on the following bases:
a)
b)
c)

Land and Operational Buildings – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value (as certified by the Estates Surveyor)
Council Dwellings – existing use value for social housing, including regional
adjustment factors as amended from time to time
Heritage Assets – (see separate accounting policy)

Page 68

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Infrastructure Assets – historical cost net of depreciation
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value
Community Assets – historical cost
Investment Properties – normally open market value

d)
e)
f)
g)

Net current replacement cost is assessed as:
●
●
●

Non-specialised operational properties – existing use value
Specialised operational properties – depreciated replacement cost
Investment properties and surplus assets – market value

Depreciated replacement cost is only used where there is no active market for the asset
being valued: that is where there is no useful or relevant evidence of recent sales
transactions due to the specialised nature of the asset.
Revaluation: Revaluations of non-current assets are undertaken on an annual basis for
Council Dwellings using the Beacon principle, investment properties with a value over
£100k, and General Fund Operational Land and Buildings with a value over £800k.
Revaluations of other non-current assets are undertaken on a 5-year rolling programme,
revaluing approximately one fifth of these Council’s assets annually. Identified material
changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur. The Asset
Valuations in these accounts have been prepared using the services of external valuers. The
valuations were produced in accordance with guidelines issued by CIPFA, and in
accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors current guidance notes for Asset
Valuation. The date of valuation for the General Fund is 31 December 2019.
The basis for Council Dwellings valuations is Existing Use Value for Social Housing
(EUV-SH). Under this method the vacant possession value of the dwellings is reduced to
33% of the market value, to reflect the occupation by a secure tenant. A full valuation of the
Beacon properties is undertaken every five years but an annual adjustment is made to
reflect market changes during the year. The date of valuation for the Housing Revenue
Account is 31 March 2020.
Surpluses from any revaluation of assets are credited to the Revaluation Reserve and are
used to offset any subsequent revaluation loss with the exception of investment properties
that are charged directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account to ensure that no cost falls to the taxpayer.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.
Investment Property: Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms length.
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at
the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in relation to

Page 69

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.
Components: The Code requires local authorities to identify elements of major assets that
have either a capital cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and/or has
a different useful life or depreciation method. The Council accounts for components for
assets with a gross book value in excess of £1m and where any individual component has a
value in excess of £100k. The component proposals for the HRA dwelling stock differ from
that above. The Council componentises its council dwelling stock on a dwelling basis and
proportions the overall valuation into four key components. Those components that are
depreciable are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the council dwelling, resulting in
an overall stock depreciation figure.
Impairment: Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment charge may be required. Where indications exist that may give rise to
impairment of an asset and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting entries are:
●

●

where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.
The HRA dwelling stock is revalued annually using beacon property values. Any change in
valuation is assessed to determine any annual impairment charges.
Disposals: Income from the disposal of non-current assets is accounted for on an accruals
basis. When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet, any receipt from disposal and any costs associated with the disposal are
accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement so comprising any
gains or losses on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess of £10k are categorised
as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to Right to Buy disposals are payable to
Government, net of allowable deductions. Since the changes to the pooling of capital
receipts (1st April 2012) and the introduction of the Government’s 1-4-1 replacement
programme, which the Council adopted, a higher proportion of receipts are retained. These
housing receipts are retained for the 1-4-1 replacement of Council Dwellings and for

Page 70

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
investment in certain regeneration projects or affordable housing. The balance of receipts is
required to be credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used
for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow
(the Capital Financing Requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve through the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in
Reserves Statement.
Depreciation: With the exception of Investment Properties and Land (which are not subject
to depreciation), assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful economic
life as follows:
Council Dwellings
Infrastructure
Heritage Assets
Other Buildings
Vehicles
Plant
Surplus Assets

Up to 60 years
Up to 40 years
Varies on asset type, see separate accounting policy
Specifically determined by Estates Officer
Up to 12 years
Up to 10 years
Up to 40 years

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is
written out for both current value and historical cost with subsequent depreciation calculated
on a straight line basis over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Newly acquired assets are depreciated in the year of acquisition unless the purchase is near
to the financial year end and the change in depreciation charge is considered material in
which case depreciation will apply to the following year. Assets in the course of construction
are depreciated when they are brought into use.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately
(see Component section above).
The Council componenties its housing stock and then depreciates the depreciable
components over the useful economic life of each council dwelling.

Provisions
Provisions represent sums set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be
incurred where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal obligation that
probably requires settlement and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that
obligation. Provisions are charged directly to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the obligation arises and when
the expenditure is actually incurred it is charged directly to the provision.

Page 71

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
New arrangements for the retention of business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013 along
with the requirement for an additional provision to be set aside for potential changes to
rateable values as a result of appeals. The council’s share of this provision is disclosed in
Note 29 and is calculated using Valuation Office (VO) data on successful and outstanding
appeals. As there is potential for such appeals to be backdated to previous as well as
current VO rating lists, the amount set aside includes an element for backdating. An estimate
is also made for appeals that may yet be lodged under the new Check, Challenge and
Appeal process, based on a percentage of the likelihood of appeal for those properties that
are not currently in receipt of mandatory or discretionary relief.
HRA Leasehold Service Charge accounts are raised after the accounts have closed as they
are based on actual cost in order to comply with Leasehold conditions. A provision is made
on the Leasehold Maintenance Holding Account for the estimated cost of services, day to
day repairs, recurring maintenance and major works incurred during the financial year.

Reserves
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside of the definition of provisions are considered
as reserves. The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes
or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is
charged to the appropriate service line within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and an equal amount is appropriated back to the
General Fund from the relevant reserve so that there is no impact on the council taxpayer.
Details of the Council’s reserves can be found within the notes to the Core Financial
Statements. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible
non-current assets and retirement benefits and they do not represent usable resources for
the Council.
The Statement of Accounts also clearly separates the usable and unusable reserves in the
Financing section of the Balance Sheet.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are defined as possible obligations that arise from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the Council's control. Contingent liabilities can also arise where a
provision would have been made but it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required or the amount cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised on the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A Contingent Asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent Assets are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable
that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Page 72

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Council policy is to write down this expenditure in the year that it occurs. The full cost is
charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to ensure that there is
no impact on the council taxpayer.

Current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an
Asset Held for Sale and has the following specific criteria attached to it:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Management is committed to sell
The asset is available for immediate sale
A buyer is being actively sought
The sale is likely (within 12 months)
The asset is for sale at a fair price
It is unlikely that the sale process will stop

If the asset meets these criteria it should be newly classified as a current asset and no
longer depreciated. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of Non-Contractual Debts
Provisions are made for the impairment of non-contractual (non-exchange) statutory debts
such as Council Tax and Business Rates by evaluating the risk of impairment on a collective
basis, based on their past-due status, using recovery stages and age analysis.
Debts relating to garage rents are subject to a flat rate percentage based on historical
trends. All other HRA related debts over £2.5k are analysed and a provision made
depending on individual circumstances, with the exception of leaseholder accounts as the
Housing Act states that tenants should not subsidise Leaseholders, therefore no bad debt
provision is made within the HRA. Housing benefit overpayment debt provision is subject to
a range of specific percentages which is dependent on whether the debt is to be collected
from on-going benefit.

Collection Fund
Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and
distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and Business Rates. Statute
determines the amount required to be transferred from the Collection Fund to the General
Fund (an authority’s precept for the year plus/minus its share of the surplus/deficit on the
Collection Fund for the previous year estimated on 15 January for Council Tax and 31
January for Business Rates). The Council Tax and Business Rate income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the accrued income for the year. The
difference between this amount and the amount required by regulation is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account, and is included as a reconciling item in the Movement

Page 73

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
in Reserves Statement to negate the effect on the taxpayer. Council Tax and Business
Rates are collected on an agency basis, so the Balance Sheet reflects the debtor/creditor
position between the Council, Central Government and major preceptors, since the cash
paid to preceptors in the year is not the share of actual cash collected from council tax and
business rate payers.

Business Rate Pool
Income or expenditure generated as a result of membership of the Kent Business Rate Pool
(from 1 April 2015) is accounted for in the proportions set out in the pool agreement. The
Council’s share of any income or expenditure is credited or debited respectively to Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the relevant financial year. Levy or safety net payments due to or
from the lead authority at the end of the accounting year are reflected as creditors or debtors
in the Balance Sheet and any increase or decrease in the Growth Fund share (to be utilised
to promote growth within the district pool based area) is set aside in the Equalisation
Reserve within the council’s Balance Sheet for future use. During 2018-19 only the Kent
Pool took part in the 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot Scheme (for one year only)
whereby the pool was able to retain the central government share of business rate income
for the year to be distributed within the Kent area.

Value Added Tax
In accounting for VAT, the Council complies with FRS102 (The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK). VAT payable is excluded from the main accounting statements unless
it is not recoverable under normal tax rules. VAT receivable is excluded as it is due to Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).

Page 74

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2

1. Accounting Policies
General
The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2019-20 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2020. The council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework established in
England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require the accounts to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice. These primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019-20 (the Code)
supported by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.
Unless otherwise stated the figures in these accounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds, and revenue and credit balances are shown in brackets.
The accounting policies that have been adopted are set out in the following paragraphs.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Revenue streams are accounted for in the year they are due irrespective of whether the
sums have been paid or received as follows:
●

●

●

●

Revenue from contracts with service recipients for either goods or services is
recognised when/as the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations of the contract
Supplies of goods are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, when there
is a delay between the date the supplies are received and when they are consumed,
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet
Expenditure in relation to services received (including the services provided by
employees) are recorded when the services are received rather than when payments
are made
Revenue from non-exchange transactions such as council tax and non-domestic
rates are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the council and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Exceptions to this principle are public utility accounts which are charged according to the
date of the meter reading and some recurring sundry debtor accounts and annual fees for
which the due dates do not coincide with normal quarter or year dates, subject to materiality.
This policy is applied consistently each year and does not have a material effect on the
year’s accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that

Page 75

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
mature no more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

Material Items of Income and Expenditure
Where material items of income and expenditure are not disclosed on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement a separate note will set out the nature
and amount of the relevant item.

Prior Period Adjustments
Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or
standards will be reflected retrospectively in the Statement of Accounts when required by
proper accounting practice, by restating both the opening balances and the comparable
figures for the prior year, together with a disclosure note detailing the reasons for such
restatement. Material errors in prior period figures are also corrected retrospectively in the
same way.

Employee Benefits
Pensions General
The Accounting Standards, IAS 19 and 26 regarding Employee Benefits and Retirement
Benefits, require recognition of pension assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the
operating costs of providing retirement benefits together with changes in the value of assets
and liabilities to be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In order that IAS 26 requirements do not impact upon council tax levels, the movement on
the net assets and liabilities (net of the employer’s contributions and actuarial gains and
losses) is reversed out to the Pension Reserve through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
Benefits Payable During Employment
The full costs of employees are charged to the accounts of the period within which the
employees worked.
The costs of any short term employee benefits untaken at the balance sheet date such as
untaken leave, flexitime and lieu time due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end are
accrued subject to materiality. The value of the accrual is calculated at the wage and salary
rates applicable to the period in which the employee takes the benefit (the following year),
and is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The adjustment is reversed
out of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement so that there is no charge to
the taxpayer.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision

Page 76

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment or makes an offer to
encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
Post Employment Benefits
The Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Kent County Council (KCC) is a
defined benefit scheme. Contributions to the pension scheme are determined by the Fund’s
actuary on a triennial basis. The formal valuation of the Fund for the purpose of setting
employers’ actual contributions disclosed in these accounts was as at 31 March 2017 and
this has been used to update the service cost figures.
Liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method. This requires an assessment of
the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and
projections of earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.4% based
on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds.
The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet
at their fair value:
●
●
●
●

Quoted securities – current bid price
Unquoted securities – professional estimate
Unitised securities – current bid price
Property – market value

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Costs comprising;
Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue
accounts of services for which the employees worked.
Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Cost of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs.

Page 77

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability – the expected increase in the present
value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Remeasurements;
Expected Return on Assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable
to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Actuarial Gains and Losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve.
Contributions Paid to the Funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises
on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Events after the Reporting Period
Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date, whether favourable or unfavourable,
and also provides evidence of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date, the
amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts will be adjusted. Any disclosures affected
by the new information about the adjusting event will also be updated in light of the new
information.
Events that occur after the Balance Sheet date indicative of conditions arising after the
Balance Sheet date will not be adjusted in the Accounting Statements, but will be disclosed
in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements if it would have had a material effect, to
include:
●

the nature of the event, and

Page 78

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
●

an estimate of the financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be
made reliably

Events taking place after the date the accounts are authorised for issue are not reflected in
the Statement of Accounts.

Financial Instruments – Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised. For the Council’s borrowings this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year in accordance with the loan agreements.

Financial Instruments – Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics. The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual
cash flow, these assets are therefore classified and measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable
for the year in the loan agreement. A small element of the loans are classified as soft loans
(made at less than market rate) so there is a requirement to record any loss in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to represent interest forgone over the
life of the loan if material.

Expected Credit Loss
Trade debtors - classified as financial assets, any loss allowance is calculated by
considering the age of the debt, historic payment trends and any lifetime expected credit
loss. Where these assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the

Page 79

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under the heading ‘Impairment of
Financial Instruments’.
No loss allowance is set aside for local authority and central government debts as statutory
provisions under the Local Government Act 2003 prevent default.
Loans - the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the assets original effective
interest rate. Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Fair Value Measurement
The Council measures some of its property assets and some of its financial instruments at
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
●
●

in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset,
the Council takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as follows:
●
●
●

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Council can access at the measurement date
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Government and Non-Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

Page 80

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
●
●

the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring fenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to
which they relate. Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are
credited to the foot of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under
Taxation and Non–Specific Grant Income.

Heritage Assets
A heritage asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for
future generations because of its historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities and is held and maintained principally for its contribution to
knowledge and culture.
The council has identified the following asset groups as classified as Heritage Assets:
●
●
●
●
●

Public statues
Artefacts and or collections within museums
Art collections
Civic regalia
Historic amusement park and rides

Heritage assets (other than operational heritage assets) shall normally be measured at cost
in accordance with FRS102 since it is deemed to be more appropriate and relevant than
applying any valuation model.
Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost or if bequeathed or donated at nil cost, at
valuation.

Page 81

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Heritage assets are reviewed for evidence of impairment, including doubts as to authenticity.
Any impairment is accounted for in accordance with the council’s policy within the Property
Plant and Equipment accounting policy. The proceeds of any disposals likewise follow the
council’s general accounting policy.

Intangible Assets
In line with IAS 38 (Intangible Assets), expenditure on intangible fixed assets is capitalised at
cost. An intangible fixed asset is one that has no physical substance but is identifiable and
the council has control, (either through custody or legal protection) over the future economic
benefits derivable from it.
Purchased intangible assets (e.g. software licences) should be capitalised as assets.
Internally developed intangible assets should only be capitalised where criteria set out in
section 4.5.2.7 of the Code are met. The council must satisfy itself that these criteria can be
met and that internal systems are able to distinguish between Research and Development
phases of a project.
Council policy is to write down intangible assets to the relevant service revenue account in
the year that they occur.

Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Code’s definition of an interest in another entity includes ‘the means by which an entity
has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, another entity’. In accordance with
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, assessment
of any involvement/interest for the purposes of group accounts will consider the above when
determining whether or not a group relationship exists. This is considered to apply where the
Council has all of the following:
●
●
●

sole control of another entity and power over it;
exposure to risks or rights to variable returns;
and the ability to use its power over the other entity to influence those returns.

Subject to the assessment set out above if the council’s interest is deemed to be a group
relationship the Council may still only prepare single entity accounts if the group interest is
not material.

Inventories, Rechargeable Works and Long Term Contracts
Inventories relate to printing, stationery and marketing merchandise held at Visitor
Information Centres and Museums and stores held at the Parks and Waste Direct Labour
Organisations.
The Code and IAS 2 (Inventories), require stocks to be shown at the lower of actual cost or
net realisable value. The stock at the printing unit is measured at average cost of stock held
as it is considered that the financial effect of the different treatment is not material.
Any work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at year end. Rechargeable Works are
included at cost.

Page 82

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Long Term contracts are defined as “contracts entered into for the design, manufacture or
construction of a single substantial asset or the provision of a service (or of a combination of
assets or services which together constitute a single project) where the time taken
substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into different
accounting periods.” The council makes a disclosure in the notes to the Core Financial
Statements in respect of any capital contracts meeting this definition. Long term contracts
are accounted for by charging the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services with the
consideration allocated to the performance obligations of the contract that have been
satisfied, based on the goods or services that have been transferred to the service recipient
during the financial year.

Joint Operations
Joint Operations are activities undertaken by the council in conjunction with other bodies
where there is joint control and the parties have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities of the arrangement. Joint control exists where unanimous consent is required from
the parties sharing control for decisions about relevant activities. The council recognises on
its Balance Sheet its own assets and the liabilities that it incurs, and debits and credits the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the
share of the income it may earn from the activity of the operation.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The accounting
treatment for leases depends on whether the Council is a lessee; is paying a third party
rental payments for the right to use an asset, or a lessor where it is granting the right to use
an asset to an external third party. The accounting treatment for each is given below:
Where the Council is a Lessee
Finance Leases: Where the Council enters into material finance leases, the asset is
recognised in the Council’s Balance Sheet, together with any associated liability to fund the
asset. The cost of the fixed asset is then charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement over the life of the asset in accordance with the Council’s
depreciation policy.
Rentals payable under finance leases are apportioned between a finance charge and a
reduction in the liability. The apportionment basis used ensures that the finance charge is
allocated over the term of the lease.
Operating Leases: Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable are charged to the relevant service revenue
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals
are charged when they become payable.
Where the Council is a Lessor
Finance Leases: The asset is removed from the Balance Sheet as the risks and rewards
are with the lessee with the amounts due from finance leases recorded in the Balance Sheet

Page 83

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
as a debtor. Rentals received are apportioned between reducing the debtor and finance
interest earnings. The apportionment basis used ensures that earnings are normally
allocated to the lease term to give a constant periodic rate of return to the Council.
Operating Leases: Rentals receivable are charged to the relevant service revenue account
over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are charged when they become
payable.

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as either Property, Plant and
Equipment or Investment Properties.
Recognition: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of non-current assets
has been capitalised on an accruals basis at cost with subsequent measurement as
explained below. Expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised, provided that the asset
yields benefit to the Council and the services it provides, for a period of more than one
financial year. Subsequent expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised in accordance
with IAS 16. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current
assets, which is charged directly to service revenue accounts. The Council has set a de
minimis level in respect of the recognition of capital expenditure of £10k.
Non-current assets are classified into groupings required by the Code, comprising
a)
Property, Plant and Equipment, which can be further analysed as
● Land and Operational Buildings
● Council Dwellings
● Infrastructure Assets
● Vehicles Plant and Equipment
● Community Assets
● Assets under Construction
b)
Heritage Assets
c)
Investment Properties
d)
Intangible Assets (see separate accounting policy)
Measurement: Non-current assets have been valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA
and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes
issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). They have been classified in
accordance with the IFRS Code and have been valued on the following bases:
a)

Land and Operational Buildings – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value (as certified by the Estates Surveyor)

Page 84

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
b)

Council Dwellings – existing use value for social housing, including regional
adjustment factors as amended from time to time
Heritage Assets – (see separate accounting policy)
Infrastructure Assets – historical cost net of depreciation
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value
Community Assets – historical cost
Investment Properties – normally open market value

c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Net current replacement cost is assessed as:
●
●
●

Non-specialised operational properties – existing use value
Specialised operational properties – depreciated replacement cost
Investment properties and surplus assets – market value

Depreciated replacement cost is only used where there is no active market for the asset
being valued: that is where there is no useful or relevant evidence of recent sales
transactions due to the specialised nature of the asset.
Revaluation: Revaluations of non-current assets are undertaken on an annual basis for
Council Dwellings using the Beacon principle, investment properties with a value over
£100k, and General Fund Operational Land and Buildings with a value over £800k.
Revaluations of other non-current assets are undertaken on a 5-year rolling programme,
revaluing approximately one fifth of these Council’s assets annually. Identified material
changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur. The Asset
Valuations in these accounts have been prepared using the services of external valuers. The
valuations were produced in accordance with guidelines issued by CIPFA, and in
accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors current guidance notes for Asset
Valuation. The date of valuation for the General Fund is 31 December 2019.
The basis for Council Dwellings valuations is Existing Use Value for Social Housing
(EUV-SH). Under this method the vacant possession value of the dwellings is reduced to
33% of the market value, to reflect the occupation by a secure tenant. A full valuation of the
Beacon properties is undertaken every five years but an annual adjustment is made to
reflect market changes during the year. The date of valuation for the Housing Revenue
Account is 31 March 2020.
Surpluses from any revaluation of assets are credited to the Revaluation Reserve and are
used to offset any subsequent revaluation loss with the exception of investment properties
that are charged directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account to ensure that no cost falls to the taxpayer.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.
Investment Property: Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms length.
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at

Page 85

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in relation to
investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.
Components: The Code requires local authorities to identify elements of major assets that
have either a capital cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and/or has
a different useful life or depreciation method. The Council accounts for components for
assets with a gross book value in excess of £1m and where any individual component has a
value in excess of £100k. The component proposals for the HRA dwelling stock differ from
that above. The Council componentises its council dwelling stock on a dwelling basis and
proportions the overall valuation into four key components. Those components that are
depreciable are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the council dwelling, resulting in
an overall stock depreciation figure.
Impairment: Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment charge may be required. Where indications exist that may give rise to
impairment of an asset and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting entries are:
●

●

where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.
The HRA dwelling stock is revalued annually using beacon property values. Any change in
valuation is assessed to determine any annual impairment charges.
Disposals: Income from the disposal of non-current assets is accounted for on an accruals
basis. When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet, any receipt from disposal and any costs associated with the disposal are
accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement so comprising any
gains or losses on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess of £10k are categorised
as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to Right to Buy disposals are payable to
Government, net of allowable deductions. Since the changes to the pooling of capital

Page 86

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
receipts (1st April 2012) and the introduction of the Government’s 1-4-1 replacement
programme, which the Council adopted, a higher proportion of receipts are retained. These
housing receipts are retained for the 1-4-1 replacement of Council Dwellings and for
investment in certain regeneration projects or affordable housing. The balance of receipts is
required to be credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used
for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow
(the Capital Financing Requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve through the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in
Reserves Statement.
Depreciation: With the exception of Investment Properties and Land (which are not subject
to depreciation), assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful economic
life as follows:
Council Dwellings
Infrastructure
Heritage Assets
Other Buildings
Vehicles
Plant
Surplus Assets

Up to 60 years
Up to 40 years
Varies on asset type, see separate accounting policy
Specifically determined by Estates Officer
Up to 12 years
Up to 10 years
Up to 40 years

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is
written out for both current value and historical cost with subsequent depreciation calculated
on a straight line basis over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Newly acquired assets are depreciated in the year of acquisition unless the purchase is near
to the financial year end and the change in depreciation charge is considered material in
which case depreciation will apply to the following year. Assets in the course of construction
are depreciated when they are brought into use.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately
(see Component section above).
The Council componenties its housing stock and then depreciates the depreciable
components over the useful economic life of each council dwelling.

Provisions
Provisions represent sums set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be
incurred where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal obligation that
probably requires settlement and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that
obligation. Provisions are charged directly to the appropriate service line in the

Page 87

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the obligation arises and when
the expenditure is actually incurred it is charged directly to the provision.
New arrangements for the retention of business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013 along
with the requirement for an additional provision to be set aside for potential changes to
rateable values as a result of appeals. The council’s share of this provision is disclosed in
Note 29 and is calculated using Valuation Office (VO) data on successful and outstanding
appeals. As there is potential for such appeals to be backdated to previous as well as
current VO rating lists, the amount set aside includes an element for backdating. An estimate
is also made for appeals that may yet be lodged under the new Check, Challenge and
Appeal process, based on a percentage of the likelihood of appeal for those properties that
are not currently in receipt of mandatory or discretionary relief.
HRA Leasehold Service Charge accounts are raised after the accounts have closed as they
are based on actual cost in order to comply with Leasehold conditions. A provision is made
on the Leasehold Maintenance Holding Account for the estimated cost of services, day to
day repairs, recurring maintenance and major works incurred during the financial year.

Reserves
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside of the definition of provisions are considered
as reserves. The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes
or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is
charged to the appropriate service line within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and an equal amount is appropriated back to the
General Fund from the relevant reserve so that there is no impact on the council taxpayer.
Details of the Council’s reserves can be found within the notes to the Core Financial
Statements. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible
non-current assets and retirement benefits and they do not represent usable resources for
the Council.
The Statement of Accounts also clearly separates the usable and unusable reserves in the
Financing section of the Balance Sheet.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are defined as possible obligations that arise from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the Council's control. Contingent liabilities can also arise where a
provision would have been made but it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required or the amount cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised on the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A Contingent Asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent Assets are not

Page 88

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable
that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Council policy is to write down this expenditure in the year that it occurs. The full cost is
charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to ensure that there is
no impact on the council taxpayer.

Current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an
Asset Held for Sale and has the following specific criteria attached to it:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Management is committed to sell
The asset is available for immediate sale
A buyer is being actively sought
The sale is likely (within 12 months)
The asset is for sale at a fair price
It is unlikely that the sale process will stop

If the asset meets these criteria it should be newly classified as a current asset and no
longer depreciated. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of Non-Contractual Debts
Provisions are made for the impairment of non-contractual (non-exchange) statutory debts
such as Council Tax and Business Rates by evaluating the risk of impairment on a collective
basis, based on their past-due status, using recovery stages and age analysis.
Debts relating to garage rents are subject to a flat rate percentage based on historical
trends. All other HRA related debts over £2.5k are analysed and a provision made
depending on individual circumstances, with the exception of leaseholder accounts as the
Housing Act states that tenants should not subsidise Leaseholders, therefore no bad debt
provision is made within the HRA. Housing benefit overpayment debt provision is subject to
a range of specific percentages which is dependent on whether the debt is to be collected
from on-going benefit.

Collection Fund
Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and
distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and Business Rates. Statute
determines the amount required to be transferred from the Collection Fund to the General
Fund (an authority’s precept for the year plus/minus its share of the surplus/deficit on the

Page 89

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2
Collection Fund for the previous year estimated on 15 January for Council Tax and 31
January for Business Rates). The Council Tax and Business Rate income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the accrued income for the year. The
difference between this amount and the amount required by regulation is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account, and is included as a reconciling item in the Movement
in Reserves Statement to negate the effect on the taxpayer. Council Tax and Business Rates
are collected on an agency basis, so the Balance Sheet reflects the debtor/creditor position
between the Council, Central Government and major preceptors, since the cash paid to
preceptors in the year is not the share of actual cash collected from council tax and business
rate payers.

Business Rate Pool
Income or expenditure generated as a result of membership of the Kent Business Rate Pool
(from 1 April 2015) is accounted for in the proportions set out in the pool agreement. The
Council’s share of any income or expenditure is credited or debited respectively to Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the relevant financial year. Levy or safety net payments due to or
from the lead authority at the end of the accounting year are reflected as creditors or debtors
in the Balance Sheet and any increase or decrease in the Growth Fund share (to be utilised
to promote growth within the district pool based area) is set aside in the Equalisation
Reserve within the council’s Balance Sheet for future use. During 2018-19 only the Kent
Pool took part in the 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot Scheme (for one year only)
whereby the pool was able to retain the central government share of business rate income
for the year to be distributed within the Kent area.

Value Added Tax
In accounting for VAT, the Council complies with FRS102 (The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK). VAT payable is excluded from the main accounting statements unless
it is not recoverable under normal tax rules. VAT receivable is excluded as it is due to Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).

Page 90

Agenda Item 7

In-depth insight into the
impact of Covid-19 on
financial reporting in the
local government sector
June 2020

Page 91

Agenda Item 7

Contents
Section

Page

Introduction

3

Executive summary

4

Operational challenges and the related financial reporting/regulatory impact

5

Government support schemes – considering the accounting implications

9

Significant financial reporting issues to consider

12

Other sector issues and practicalities to consider

18

Impact on audit work/external scrutiny process

19

Engagement with experts

20

Further resources and guidance

21

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 92

Agenda Item 7

Introduction
Local authorities across the country are now
working in an environment that is completely
different to the one they were in just months ago
as the Covid-19 pandemic continues to impact
their daily operations. In such uncertain times,
now more than ever communities will be looking
towards local authorities to do what they do
best, providing essential local public services
and particularly care and support to the most
vulnerable members of our society.
The virus and measures taken to contain it have undoubtedly impacted
financial and economic activity and the effects will not be contained to the
2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years but will be felt for a considerable
time. This has several ramifications that local authorities will need to
carefully consider in preparing and finalising their 2019/20 Narrative
Report, financial statements and Annual Governance Statement.
For the year end 31 March 2020, effects of Covid-19 will need to be taken
into account in measuring assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.
There may also be additional, non-adjusting, post balance sheet events
relating to the ongoing pandemic that require disclosure in 2019/20
financial statements. For those local authorities yet to conclude their
financial statements for years prior to 2019/20, the emergence of new
information about Covid-19 and its impact is a non-adjusting post balance
sheet event requiring disclosure in those financial statements.
The aim of this report is to help officers and elected members identify
points they should consider when assessing and reporting the impact of
Covid-19 on their authority. Each authority will be impacted in different
ways and will need to make their own assessment of the impact on
their financial statements. However, we have identified some of the key
challenges for the sector, along with the potential financial reporting
and regulatory impact, to support preparers of local authority accounts
navigate through some of these key issues. We have also included a
number of useful links to other resources.

3 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 93

Agenda Item 7

Executive summary
As a nation we are likely to feel the societal and financial
consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the measures to
contain and mitigate its effects, for years, and possibly decades,
to come.
The extraordinary events we are living through follow a decade of austerity, triggered by the
financial crisis of 2008/09, which had already placed considerable strain on local authorities’
finances. Increased demand for many local public services, directly related to the outbreak of
the virus, has placed immediate pressure on authorities’ cash flows and expenditure budgets.
The longer-term consequences of recession and unemployment on demand for services have yet
to be experienced.
At the same time, several important sources of local authority income including Council Tax, Nondomestic (business) rates, fees and charges, rents and investment returns have, to a greater or
lesser extent, been subject to reduction or suspension. This perfect storm of conditions presents
a real threat to the financial sustainability of the sector. Now, more than ever, strong political
and executive leadership is needed to re-establish priorities, review strategies and medium-term
financial plans and ensure that public funds are being used as efficiently and effectively as
possible. A balance has to be struck between responding to the needs of residents and businesses
in a timely manner, protecting the most vulnerable and ensuring appropriate measures and
controls around financial management are in place to mitigate against future ‘financial shock’.
In doing so, iterative scenario planning will help officers and elected members to take informed
decisions at key stages, revisiting and revising plans along the way. Grant Thornton’s ‘Financial
Foresight’ model, developed in collaboration with CIPFA, can help local authorities bring together
future spend forecasts with future income streams and combine this with placed based data to
reflect the impact of local demographic and economic changes. Narrative reports, as presented
in local authorities’ statements of accounts, provide an important platform to communicate key
information relating to the external environment, risks and opportunities, financial outlook and
plans for dealing with potential budget shortfalls. Within the report we explore key considerations
for local authority Narrative reports arising from the pandemic.
Local authorities hold a wide range of statutory and non-statutory receivables, including Council
Tax and Non-domestic rate debtor balances, trade receivables, loans receivable and bank
balances. Measures taken to control Covid-19 are leading to heavy economic losses and this
has and will continue to affect collection rates, as some individuals and businesses experience
financial effects of the pandemic. In preparing financial statements authorities will need to
consider the recoverability of debt and the potential need to recognise impairments.
The uncertainties created by the pandemic have also significantly increased volatility and
uncertainty in markets. In this environment it is important to maintain regular dialogue
with management experts where they have roles in relation to asset valuations used in the
preparation of accounts. This applies not only to non-current operational and non-operational
property assets held by authorities, but also to investment properties, financial assets and many
assets held by pension funds. Additional disclosures in financial statements in relation to major
sources of estimation uncertainty may prove to be necessary.
We hope that you find our report insightful and helpful in preparing your accounts in this new reality.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 4

Page 94

Agenda Item 7

Operational challenges
and the related financial
reporting/regulatory impact
Operational challenge

Related financial reporting/regulatory impact

Increase in demand
from service recipients
both in the short and
long-term

Financial sustainability and use of reserves – This is clearly a significant challenge for the
majority of local authorities. Ten years of austerity has severely stretched finances across the sector,
leaving many with depleted reserves as they seek to manage the delicate balancing of demand-led
pressures and available resources. The challenges associated with Covid-19 are unprecedented in
modern times and as well as increasing demand for a wide range of services including adult social
care, children’s social care, services for the homeless, public health and support for the vulnerable
it resulted in immediate pressures on local authority cash flows. The pandemic has heightened
uncertainty and will continue to impact into the longer term.
Local authorities want to support service recipients as best as they can, however it is essential to
consider long-term financial sustainability and ensure that reserves are not depleted to levels that
put authorities in danger of insolvency. Priorities need to be established, and kept under review, and
strategies will need to be re-worked to ensure that funds are being used as efficiently and effectively
as possible. In doing so, iterative scenario planning will help officers and elected members to take
informed decisions at key stages, revisiting and revising plans along the way.
In extreme circumstances some local authorities may be considering issuing notices under s114 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1988. A s114 notice can have serious operational implications,
including bringing a halt to all non-statutory expenditure, potentially hindering the response to the
pandemic. The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has urged any
local authorities with serious concerns about its financial sustainability to approach the department
in the first instance.
Local authorities are required to publish a narrative report with the financial statements, providing
information on the authority (including any group interests), its main objectives and strategies and
the principal risks it faces. The impact of the pandemic will need to be taken into account in drafting
the 2019/20 report and further commentary on the issues which may need to be addressed is
included on page 13 of this report.

5 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 95

Agenda Item 7

Operational challenge

Related financial reporting/regulatory impact

Reduction in key
sources of income

Impairment of statutory and non-statutory debt – At the same time as responding to new
challenges in providing vital public services, local authorities are also faced with a significant
squeeze on several of their sources of income.
Income from fees and charges, rental income, returns on investments including interest and
dividends have all been affected to a greater or lesser degree, with significant uncertainty over the
timing and extent to which these sources of income will return to pre-Covid-19 levels.
Measures taken to control the pandemic are leading to heavy economic losses and most large
economies will see unprecedented falls in economic output. Increasing levels of unemployment
and reducing tax revenues associated with global recession will affect collection rates for Council
Tax and Non-domestic rates as individuals and businesses experience the financial effects of the
pandemic, resulting in further pressure on authorities’ cash flows and finances.
In preparing 2019/20 financial statements, authorities will need to take into account the potential
for impairment of statutory Council Tax and Non-domestic rate debtor balances. Assessment of
impairment needs to take place for both individually significant debtors, and also collectively for
balances that are not individually significant. Observable data indicating a measurable decrease
in estimated future cashflow, for example an increase in the number of delayed payments, should
be taken into account. Recent historical loss experience across aged debt may also need revision
where current information indicates the historical experience doesn’t reflect current conditions.
Experience following the 2008/09 financial crisis may prove to be a useful reference point, given the
ensuing recession conditions.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
(‘the Code’) and includes a three-stage impairment model which is applicable to financial assets
including trade receivables, loan receivables, deposits and other debtors. IFRS 9 requires that
forward-looking information (including macro-economic information) is considered both when
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and when measuring expected
credit losses. The Covid-19 pandemic is likely to have caused significant deterioration in the
credit quality of some businesses – this clearly varies from sector to sector with, for example, the
hotel industry more severely affected than say the grocery sector. Authorities should re-assess
expected credit losses in light of the pandemic, as the probability of losses occurring is likely to have
increased.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 6

Page 96

Agenda Item 7

Operational challenge

Related financial reporting/regulatory impact

Closure of local
authority offices,
premises and facilities

Valuation of non-current assets – The Code requires that where assets, including Council
dwellings and operational land and buildings, are revalued to ‘current value’ the revaluations shall
be sufficiently regular to ensure that carrying amounts do not differ materially from current value
at the end of the reporting period. Surplus assets and investment properties are required to be
measured at fair value, reflecting market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
We note a significant increase in volatility and uncertainty in markets following the outbreak of
Covid-19. RICS has issued a Valuation Practice Alert following the pandemic, and we are aware a
significant number of valuers are including ‘material valuation uncertainty’ disclosures within their
reports. Our expectation is that authorities will assess the impact of such comments, taking account
of the requirement of Code paragraph 3.4.2.90 to provide appropriate disclosure in their financial
statements in relation to major sources of estimation uncertainty.
Where such comments are included in management’s experts’ reports, and appropriate disclosure
is correspondingly included within financial statements, auditors are likely to consider the need
to include an ‘emphasis of matter’ paragraph within their audit report. An emphasis of matter
paragraph is not a qualification or modification of the auditor’s report. It is used to draw the
reader’s attention to a matter that has been appropriately presented or disclosed in the financial
statements and which, in the auditor’s judgement, is of such importance that it is fundamental to
the users’ understanding of the financial statements.
Onerous leases and other onerous contracts – It is uncertain as to when the lockdown
restrictions may be lifted and when local authority premises can feasibly re-open, due to availability
of staff and ability to implement required social distancing measures. Where premises are not
owned but are being rented, authorities will need to consider the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received and
whether an onerous lease provision is required. This is equally applicable to other contracts the
authority might have where, especially due to the pandemic, the unavoidable costs of meeting their
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. See
section 8.2 of the Code for further detail.
Inventories – Authorities will need to consider whether at the reporting date the value of any
stock needs to be written down, particularly for items which may not be used within their shelf-lives
or other conditions which might make them unusable or mean they have a reduced value when
lockdown restrictions are eased.

7 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 97

Agenda Item 7

Operational challenge

Related financial reporting/regulatory impact

Pausing significant
projects

Capital projects – In applying the Code, authorities capitalise directly attributable costs of items
of property, plant and equipment as an asset on the Balance Sheet if and only if it is probable that
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and
the cost can be measured reliably.
Costs relating to schemes that are discontinued or abortive costs should be excluded from
capitalisation. An authority will capitalise expenditure while it is reasonably assured that operative
property, plant and equipment will eventually be constructed or acquired. This expenditure could
remain on the balance sheet even while work on a scheme is suspended, provided that the outcome
of the expenditure to date can be mothballed and there is sufficient certainty that the scheme will
be reactivated within a reasonable timescale. Where an authority is not reasonably assured that
a scheme will proceed, costs should be written off within service expenditure in the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement.
Grant income – For any grants received or due to be received, local authorities may need to reassess whether they can fulfill the performance measures or requirements of the grants, particularly
where the activities have had to be adapted to the current circumstances and resources reallocated. These might include achieving certain levels of output or using the grant within a
specified time period, which may no longer be possible.
The Code adapts IAS 20. Grants and contributions are required to be recognised as income, except
where an authority has not complied with any attached conditions.
If funding bodies make changes to the conditions set out in existing agreements then authorities will
need to re-assess the recognition of grants in the financial statements.

Managing cashflow to
meet liabilities as they
fall due

Going concern – The Code requires local authorities, that can only be discontinued under
statutory prescription, to prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis.
The international financial reporting framework on which the Code is based still requires disclosure
of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
entities ability to continue as a going concern. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, and pressures on
local authority finances, consideration of this requirement will come into sharper focus in audits
of 2019/20 financial statements and further commentary on the issues which may need to be
addressed is included on page 14 of this report

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 8

Page 98

Agenda Item 7

Government
support schemes
– considering
the accounting
implications
The government has announced a variety of
packages to support local authorities, businesses
and individuals following the outbreak of Covid-19.
In recognition of the essential role that councils have
to play in the nation’s response to the pandemic,
MHCLG announced £1.6 billion of initial emergency
funding to the sector on 20 March 2020 and a
further £1.6 billion on 18 April 2020.
Councils also have a key role to play in distributing coronavirus grants to small
and medium sized businesses. By 17 May 2020 the sector had distributed over
£9.5 billion of grant funded by the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS) via nearly 800,000 grant payments.
Note, the government support provided is changing regularly and the details of
entitlement and how any claims will be settled are still being developed.

9 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 99

Agenda Item 7

Government scheme

Accounting considerations

Covid-19 emergency funding for local
government
MHCLG made available emergency funding to
support local authorities in meeting increased
demand for adult social care, children’s social
care, additional support for the homeless and
those at higher risk of severe illness from Covid-19.

Government grants
In line with the Code, Government grants represent “assistance in the
form of transfers of resources to an authority in return for past or future
compliance with certain conditions relating to the operation of activities.”

Initial funding of £1.6 billion was announced on 20
March and paid prior to the end of the 2019/20
financial year, on 27 March. An additional £1.6bn
was announced early in the 2020/21 financial
year, on 18 April.

Government grant income should be recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the recipient authority will comply with attached conditions
and that the grant will be received.

Covid-19 grants to small and medium
businesses
In the Budget delivered to Parliament on 11 March
2020, the Chancellor announced all businesses
eligible for Small Business Rates Relief and Rural
Rates Relief would receive a grant of £3,000 to
help with the impact of Covid-19.

Principal and agent transactions
The eligibility criteria for these schemes are set out in government guidance
and local authorities which are billing authorities are required to use their
business rates information system to identify the properties that meet the
eligibility criteria and pay over the grants to businesses. Local authorities
are reimbursed by government for the grant payments made using a grant
under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.

Subsequently the scheme was expanded to
include businesses in the retail, hospitality and
leisure sectors and the amount of grant increased
to £10,000 for businesses with a rateable value
under £15,000 and to £25,000 for businesses with
a rateable value between £15,000 and £51,000.

Billing authorities will need to assess whether they should be accounting
for the s31 grants paid to them by BEIS and the distribution of the grants to
eligible businesses, as either principal or agent transactions in accordance
with Section 2.6 of the Code and the principles set out in paragraphs
B34-B38 of IFRS 15.

On 1 May BEIS announced a Local Authority
Discretionary Grants Fund, aimed at small
and micro businesses not eligible for the earlier
schemes, with funding of up to 5% of the small
businesses and retail, hospitality and leisure
schemes available.

Section 2.3 of the Code sets out the required accounting treatment for
government grants.

The government has confirmed that this emergency funding has been
provided on an un-ringfenced basis and as such it should be credited
to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement as income
immediately in the relevant financial year, in accordance with 2.3.2.9 of the
Code. Authorities should also note the disclosure requirements set out at
2.3.4.

Where billing authorities have no control over the amount to be awarded,
there is no mandatory application process, eligibility is related to business
status and billing authorities only have discretion not to award the grant
until they identify the correct recipient then these features may indicate
that authorities are not acting on their own behalf, but as agents of BEIS.
Paragraph 2.6.2.4 of the Code requires that where an authority acts as
an agent, transactions will not be reflected in an authority’s financial
statements, with the exception in respect of cash collected or expenditure
incurred by the agent on behalf of the principal. In these cases a debtor or
creditor will be recognised and the net cash position included in financing
activities in the cash flow statement.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 10

Page 100

Agenda Item 7

Government scheme

Accounting considerations

Expanded Retail Discount – 100% business
rates relief
In response to the coronavirus pandemic, in the
Budget on 11 March the Government announced
that it would increase the Business Rates Retail
Discount to 100% for 2020/21 and extend it to
include the leisure and hospitality sectors.

Collection Fund
The collection fund statement is an agent’s statement that reflects the
statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate fund in
accordance with Section 89 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.
The fund shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the
collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the
government of council tax and non-domestic rates.

Following the announcement on 23 March
2020 of further measures to limit the spread of
coronavirus, the Government confirmed that some
of the exclusions for this relief have been removed,
so that retail, leisure, and hospitality properties
that have had to close as a result of the restriction
measures will now be eligible for the relief.

For 2019/20 and 2020/21, we would expect non-domestic rates income
credited to the Collection Fund to represent amounts receivable, net of any
discretionary and mandatory reliefs.
Government grants
The Government has indicated that it will fully reimburse local authorities
for the local share of the discretionary relief granted under section 47 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended), using a grant under
section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.
Local authorities will have completed their NNDR1 for 2020/21 already.
Therefore, billing authorities will provide a further and separate estimate of
their likely total cost for providing the 100% extended relief in 2020/21.
We would expect authorities to recognise these s31 grants as a credit to
General Fund via the ‘Taxation and non-specific grant income’ line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

11 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 101

Agenda Item 7

Significant financial
reporting issues to consider

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 12

Page 102

Agenda Item 7

Covid-19 is likely to have a significant impact on a number of
other areas:
Narrative report
Additional disclosure is likely to be required around Covid-19 in
most areas of the narrative report, with particular consideration
given to providing information on:
• the external environment and significant changes to services
and key objectives
• any significant changes to governance arrangements as a
result of lockdown controls, cross-referencing to the Annual
Governance Statement where appropriate
• risks and opportunities, this could include key risks and
uncertainties in relation to future service provision, including
financial risks, risks arising from the financial performance of
subsidiaries and investments in other entities, risk mitigation
measures, the acceleration of digital access to services
• the outlook for the authority including factors that may
affect future cash flows, details of known future budget
pressures or changes in resources and the authority’s plans
for dealing with any shortfalls.
Whilst it isn’t possible to predict the ultimate extent and
duration of the pandemic, or its wider impact on the economy,
stakeholders will to look to authorities to use best endeavors
to explain the specific known impacts on their organisation to
date, as well as the anticipated future impacts under different
scenarios. The specific areas affected by uncertainty are
discussed below in more detail, however we would expect that
many authorities will have to reconsider their strategies and
outlook going forward given the significant impacts of Covid19. Further, measures to contain the pandemic have likely put
pressure on governance processes and on elected members in
discharging their responsibilities.
Accordingly, apart from the specific aspects of the narrative
report detailed below, we would expect the report to include
detailed and specific explanations of the current impact of
Covid-19, how the authority has responded and the resilience
of the organisation in the face of longer-term uncertainty.
Future plans and activities
This is an area which will require significant consideration by
authorities as strategies are likely to have changed from those
previously agreed and planned for. As noted above, whilst it
isn’t possible to predict the ultimate long-term impact of the
virus, disclosure is required regarding the current impact as
well as the anticipated future impact and how their strategies
have had to change in light of the current pandemic.

Financial review and outlook
Consistency between the narrative report and amounts
recorded in the financial statements, as well as the adequacy
of disclosures made in the financial statements, is important.
Authorities will need to ensure appropriate disclosure of
material movements in amounts recorded is provided.
In line with paragraph 3.1.1.15 of the Code authorities
are required to provide sufficient information to allow the
reader to assess the future sustainability of the organisation
including cash flows during the year and the factors that may
affect future cash flows, information on the authority’s key
commitments and details of known future budget pressures, or
changes in resources, and the authority’s plans for dealing with
any shortfalls.
Reserves
This is an area which is likely to be affected by the pandemic
and some authorities may have to reduce their reserves to
below their original target level. Authorities are required to
include a description of the nature and purpose of their
reserves either in the narrative report or with the financial
statements themselves and additional commentary may be
required in authorities’ 2019/20 statement of accounts.
Risks and opportunities
Stakeholders will be especially interested in the authority’s
risk assessment regarding the impact of Covid-19 and the
actions the authority has taken or is planning in response
to the pandemic. The narrative report should include key
risks and uncertainties in relation to future service provision
and associated risk mitigation measures. Where there is a
potential material impact on the authority’s operational model
or performance further details of the future outlook, risks
and uncertainties should be provided. The report should be
balanced and achievements and opportunities, for example in
relation to rolling out digital access to the authority’s services
should also be addressed.
When disclosing principal risks and uncertainties, authorities
should consider the specific resources, assets and relationships
that are most at risk and the mitigating steps being taken
to protect them. The principal risks and uncertainties would
be expected to include the aspects which may be crucial to
an authority’s ability to withstand the various market and
operational disruptions and rebuild when the opportunity
arises. For example, risks and uncertainties arising from the
disruption of service operation, the potential loss of key sources
of income or the absence of key individuals.

13 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 103

Agenda Item 7

Governance
The Code requires that where there have been significant
changes in, or issues around, governance arrangements during
the year, these should be highlighted in the narrative report.
Paragraph 3.7.4.3 of the Code extends requirements in relation
to the Annual Governance Statement to include significant
events or developments relating to the governance system that
occur between the reporting date and the date on which the
statement of accounts is signed by the responsible financial
officer.
Social distancing measures and staff absences are likely to
have had a significant impact on authorities’ governance
arrangements. MHCLG laid regulations before Parliament in
April 2020 to provide flexibility in relation to local authority and
police and crime panel meetings held between 4 April 2020 and
6 May 2021. These regulations provide for remote access to
meetings of local authorities by members of a local authority
and by the press and public. The regulations also enable local
authorities to hold and alter the frequency and occurrence
of meetings without requirement for further notice and they
disapply provisions requiring local authorities to hold annual
meetings.
Given the fundamental importance of local democracy,
openness and transparency, accountability and the
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest we would
expect authorities to describe the new arrangements they have
put in place to hold meetings virtually, allow elected members
to fully engage in taking key decisions and allow for public
participation, within their Annual Governance Statement.

Going concern
Local authorities can only be discontinued under statutory
prescription and as such should continue to prepare their
financial statements on a going concern basis. In preparing
their financial statements authorities are required to disclose
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon their ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic and pressures on
local authority finances, consideration of this requirement
will come into sharper focus in audits of 2019/20 financial
statements.
Going concern and any associated material uncertainties will
need significant consideration and may have an impact on
the audit report, narrative reporting and accounting policy
disclosures in the accounts.
Some key areas to consider around going concern are:
• Forecasting – Forecasts will need to be revisited in light
of the current circumstances and a variety of sensitivities
and stress testing performed. Authorities should ensure that
cash forecasts cover a period up to at least 12 months after

the date of approval of the audited financial statements,
and base these on cash flows. If any government support
schemes are included in forecasts these should only
be included up to the point that the government have
committed to date.
• Material uncertainties – Although expected to be
unusual in a local government context, paragraph 25 of
IAS 1 requires that when management is aware of material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern these shall be disclosed within the financial
statements.

Significant judgements and estimation
uncertainty
Many areas of the financial statements involve management’s
judgements and assumptions as of the reporting date.
Disclosures of significant judgements and areas of material
estimation uncertainty should be focused, sufficiently detailed
and up to date to reflect the current situation and any
changes in underlying assumptions and sources of estimation
uncertainty.
Careful consideration should be given to areas where
management has made assumptions and taken judgements
which are highly sensitive and have a material impact on
amounts recognised and disclosed in the statements.

Valuation of investment property
The Code requires investment property to be measured at fair
value, reflecting market conditions at the end of the reporting
period. As with operational and surplus property valuations,
investment property valuations are being impacted by current
market uncertainty created by the Covid-19 pandemic. This
has led RICs to instruct all of its member firms to consider
including additional disclosure within valuation reports where
valuations are therefore reported on the basis of ‘material
valuation uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS
Red Book Global. Where this is the case valuers advise that less
certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to
valuations than would normally be the case.
Where such disclosure is included in management’s experts’
reports, and appropriate disclosure is correspondingly included
within financial statements, auditors are likely to consider
the inclusion of an ‘emphasis of matter’ paragraph within
their audit report. An emphasis of matter paragraph is not a
qualification or modification of the auditor’s report and is used
where a matter is appropriately presented or disclosed in the
financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgement, is of such
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of
the financial statements.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 14

Page 104

Agenda Item 7

Management’s experts’ reports may also include additional
caveats or limitations beyond the material uncertainty
mentioned above. For example, the expert may not have
been able to physically attend a property when forming their
valuation. This limitation will be carefully considered by the
auditor to determine whether the scope limitation stops the
expert being able to produce an appropriate valuation. If
appropriate valuations are unable to be produced auditors will
need to consider whether modification of their audit reports is
necessary.

Impairment
There are many areas of the financial statements which will
need to be assessed for impairment considering the financial
impact of the pandemic. At each reporting date, management
must assess whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired.
To put this into context for the local authority sector we
have highlighted some key areas below where impairment
assessments may be necessary in the current climate.
Non-current assets
Many authorities are currently going through a period of
significant disruptions due to the lockdown as well as changes
in the wider external economic and financial markets, which
has resulted in significant changes to their operations,
therefore undoubtedly authorities may be holding assets which
become less utilised.
Further, it is important to note that where demand for an
authority’s services significantly decreases or ceases, this
may be a trigger that the assets used to provide those
services are impaired. Similarly, major social, demographic or
environmental changes may have an impact on the number,
nature or needs of an authority’s service recipients and may
therefore also provide an indicator of impairment.
Both IAS 36 and the Code require non-financial assets such
as property plant and equipment (including PPE measured
at historic cost at current value or at fair value, and whether
owned, leased, financed via PFI or donated), intangible and
heritage assets to be impaired if their carrying value exceeds
their recoverable amount, with the recoverable amount being
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCOD) and
value in use (VIU).
It is not always necessary to determine both an asset’s FVLCOD
and its VIU as, if either amount is equal to or exceeds the asset’s
carrying amount, then the asset is not impaired. The VIU of
an asset held by a local authority is the present value of the
asset’s remaining service potential, or the present value of the
future cash flows expected from cash generating assets.

It is important to note that most local authorities hold assets
primarily to provide services rather than for generating
cash flows. In such circumstances, it would be inappropriate
to measure VIU by reference to the asset’s cash flow and
appropriate to instead measure it as the present value of the
asset’s service potential (VIU-SP).
The Code notes that impairment may also be due to physical
damage, obsolescence breakage, a commitment to a
significant reorganisation, or other factors. In the current
climate the indicators of impairment are likely to be much
wider and manifest in a number of ways through external and
internal sources of information.
Furthermore, the reliability of valuations is affected by the
volatility of the economic environment and various markets,
including the property market. On-site valuations are harder
to achieve with social distancing measures in place. For those
assets under the revaluation model, there is a possibility
that some valuations will be issued with ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ declarations and authorities will need to ensure
that disclosures regarding valuations are sufficient for readers
of the accounts to understand key estimates or judgements
involved in determining valuations at the year end.
This is an area of management judgement and detailed
consideration will be required for each authority given its own
set of facts and circumstances. Further detailed guidance is
contained within Section 4.7 of the Code and IAS 36.
Financial instruments
Local authorities hold a variety of financial instruments
including bank deposits, trade receivables, loans receivable
and investments. Section 7.2.9 of the Code is concerned with
impairment of financial instruments and is based upon the
requirements of IFRS 9. This standard requires that forwardlooking information (including macro-economic information)
is considered, both when assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and when measuring expected
credit losses. Authorities are required to recognise a loss
allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets where
the counterparty is not central government or a local authority
for which statutory provisions prevent default.
Where credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since its initial recognition, as could be the case
following the Covid-19 pandemic, authorities are required to
measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit loss. In making an assessment of whether credit
risk has increased significantly it is necessary to consider
the change in the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial asset, taking account of reasonable and
supportable information available without undue cost or effort.
Regardless of how this assessment is performed, there is a

15 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 105

Agenda Item 7

rebuttable presumption that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, although it is not necessary to
wait 30 days before determining that there has been significant
increase in credit risk.
Authorities are required to measure expected credit losses on
financial assets in a way that reflects unbiased, probabilityweighted amounts determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes, the time value of money and information
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Authorities need not identify every possible scenario but need
to assess the possibility credit losses do or do not occur.

The possibility of assets needing to be measured using
unobservable inputs as a result of the pandemic should also
be taken into account. Where measurement does move from
‘Level 2’ to ‘Level 3’ then authorities should note the additional
disclosure requirements set out in section 2.10.4 of the Code.

Investment in joint ventures/investment in subsidiaries
Some authorities have complex group structures and will
need to consider whether the impact of Covid-19, including
any measures taken to control it, are an indicator that the
investments in joint ventures/subsidiaries are impaired.
Authorities may also need to consider if there are any
additional losses or contingencies in group entities for which
they may become liable.

Increased volatility and uncertainty will also have an impact on
the valuation of defined benefit pension schemes as discussed
below.

Pensions

Employee benefits such as holiday pay
accruals, sick pay and termination costs
Authorities will need to consider whether additional provisions
and disclosures are necessary due to employee layoffs and
other employee related items as a result of Covid-19.
Sick pay – Sick pay is likely to increase during this period and
authorities should recognise a liability for sick pay in the period
in which employees are off, even if it is not paid until a later
period.
Termination costs – Under IAS 19 authorities should recognise
a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier
of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
Any plans communicated after the reporting date should be
treated as a non-adjusting post-balance sheet event in line with
paragraph 3.8.2.13 of the Code.

Investments
Financial markets across the world have been very volatile due
to the current uncertainty surrounding the economic impact of
the pandemic. Where investments at measured at fair value,
based on a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset (i.e. ‘Level 1’ in the fair value hierarchy) then, whilst such
fair values might change materially within the next financial
year, disclosure of the risk of material change is not required.

Where, however, investments (including financial assets and
investment property) are measured using valuation techniques
involving observable inputs other than quoted prices or
unobservable inputs (i.e. at ‘Level 2’ or ‘Level 3’ of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in section 2.10 of the Code and IFRS 13),
and there is a significant risk of material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment within the next financial
year, then the estimation uncertainty disclosure requirements
of 3.4.2.90 of the Code will apply.

Movements in the value of investments will affect the valuation
of defined benefit pension schemes overall and in some cases,
authorities may see a noticeable change in their defined
benefit pension position. Some actuarial methodologies
may also traditionally use forecast investment valuations to
determine an estimate for the year end fund asset position.
Given the volatility of the financial markets, the possibility
of significant change in asset valuations as at the year-end
should be considered and the fair value of plan assets updated
where there has been a material movement compared to
the forecast position. Using any estimated asset valuations
increases the likelihood of a significant misstatement in the
overall defined benefit pension scheme position at the year
end.

Post balance sheet events
For 2019/20 financial statements, the existence of Covid-19
was recognised during the financial year and some of its
impacts and actions taken by the Government were known by
the reporting date of 31 March 2020, Covid-19 is an adjusting
event and the effects of the pandemic must be taken into
account in measuring assets and liabilities wherever relevant,
based on facts and circumstances at year-end. However, new
information about the likely severity and duration of the effects
of Covid-19 will continue to emerge. Careful analysis and
judgement, with reference to Section 3.8 of the Code and IAS
10, will be required to determine whether this information is
‘adjusting’ on the basis that it provides new evidence about the
year-end situation, or is a non-adjusting event that should be
disclosed.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 16

Page 106

Agenda Item 7

For those local authorities yet to conclude their
financial statements for years prior to 2019/20,
the emergence of new information about
Covid-19 and its impact is a non-adjusting
post balance sheet event requiring disclosure
in those financial statements. The outbreak
of the virus, its identification as Covid-19 by
the WHO and actions subsequently taken by
the Government do not provide additional
evidence about the conditions that existed at
the reporting date. Therefore, for 2018/19 (or
earlier) financial statements the emergence
of Covid-19 and its impact is a non-adjusting
event. In line with section 3.8.3.2 of the Code,
disclosure is still required for non-adjusting
events regarding the nature of the event and
estimate of the financial effect if possible.
We would encourage all authorities to consider
all these points when preparing their financial
statements.

Deferral of IFRS 16 Leases
At its meeting on 27 March CIPFA/LASAAC
agreed to defer the implementation of IFRS 16
Leases to the 2021/22 financial year, with an
effective date of 1 April 2021. This decision aligns
with the proposals across the public sector.
Although the implementation of IFRS 16 has
been delayed to 1 April 2021, in our view
authorities still need to include disclosure in
their 2019/20 statements to comply with the
requirement at 3.3.4.3 of the Code and the
underlying requirement of IAS 8 paragraphs
30 and 31. As a minimum, we would expect
authorities to disclose the title of the standard,
the date of initial application and the nature
of the changes in accounting policy for
leases. If the impact of IFRS 16 is not known
or reasonably estimable, we would expect the
financial statements to state this.

17 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 107

Agenda Item 7

Other sector issues and
practicalities to consider
Cyber security
Sadly more instances of cyber-crime are occurring as fraudsters are taking
advantage of an increase in on-line activity, and in some cases a weakening of
controls. The most common types of cyber-crime currently are:
• Procurement fraud – companies claiming to sell personal protective equipment
and then not delivering the goods
• Phishing emails – with links leading to fake website which can cause viruses or
steal personal details or passwords
• Mandate/CEO fraud – these involve official looking emails requesting changes to
bank details for either suppliers/employees; and
• Unsolicited goods/services/financial support – these goods are never
delivered and often require advanced fee payment.
As the majority of staff will be working on-line it is of utmost importance that local
authorities make all employees aware of the type of cyber-crimes that are prevalent,
to be particularly vigilant, and to maintain strong internal controls.

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 18

Page 108

Agenda Item 7

Impact on audit work/
external scrutiny process
• Audit approach – Planned audit approaches are likely
to change due to logistical issues as well as a heightened
risk in several areas of the financial statements, resulting
in additional testing being required. Social distancing
will have a significant impact on how auditors obtain the
evidence they require as well as how they communicate. You
will see an increase in use of technology as may see more
substantive testing, particularly if the operation of internal
controls has been affected. Auditors and local authorities will
need to work together to identify what alternative measures
are possible in the current environment without reducing the
quality of audit evidence.
The amount of audit work and length of audits are therefore
likely to increase due to the impact on financial reporting
and additional scrutiny over key estimates and significant
judgments made by management should be anticipated.
• Audit reports – Due to the uncertainties arising from
the pandemic there is a greater likelihood of audit
reports containing emphasis of matter paragraphs and
potentially being modified or qualified. Where the auditor
anticipates a potential modification they will communicate
the circumstances to officers and those charged with
governance.

• Inspection of documents – Section 26 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 gives any interested person the
right to inspect the accounting records for the financial year
and all books, deeds, contracts, bills, vouchers, receipts and
other documents relating to those records. The Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 prescribe that these rights may
only be exercised in a single 30 working day period, with the
responsible financial officer required to advise the relevant
period via publication of a statement including publication
on the authority’s website. In light of the pandemic and with
social distancing measures in place, authorities will need to
consider how they will allow the public the opportunity to
exercise their rights in relation to the accounts. Authorities
must publish the dates of their public inspection period, and
given the removal of the common inspection period and
extension of the overall deadlines for this year, authorities
may wish to include public notice on their websites when
the public inspection period would usually commence,
explaining why they are departing from normal practice for
2019/20 accounts.

• Audit Committee and other significant meetings –
Audit Committee meetings may be impacted if physical
meetings are still prohibited or advised against at the time
of concluding audits. Audit committees will need to discuss
with their auditors how best to communicate, holding virtual
meetings where possible. Annual and other significant
meetings may also have to be held virtually, postponed or
cancelled.

The National Audit Office is currently reviewing its
publication ‘Local authority accounts – a guide to
your rights’ and updates will be made to take account
of the changes announced in the Accounts and Audit
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020.

• Accounts preparation and audit timetable – MHCLG
laid the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Coronavirus)
(Amendment) Regulations 2020 before Parliament in
April 2020. The effect of the Regulations is to extend the
timetable for local authorities to prepare their draft 2019/20
statement of accounts to 31 August 2020, with the period
for the exercise of public rights to commence on or before 1
September 2020. The Regulations also extend the deadline
for the publication of statements of accounts, together
with any certificate or opinion of the local auditor, to 30
November 2020. Local auditors will already have liaised
with local authorities over the anticipated timetable for the
preparation and audit of the 2019/20 financial statements.

19 In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector

Page 109

Agenda Item 7

Engagement with experts
In uncertain times, it is particularly important to maintain regular dialogue with
management experts where they have roles in relation to the preparation of accounts.
Some examples include:
• Valuation experts – These should be contacted as soon as possible to establish
how they will apply the most accurate valuation method, in light of the current
uncertainty and with social distancing measures in place. RICS have issued some
advice1 to its members on that matter, including highlighting the possibility that
some valuations may need to be issued with ‘material valuation uncertainty’
declarations.
• Actuaries – Discussions with actuaries, engaged to support with defined benefit
pension schemes, should be held regarding updates to the assumptions used and
timing of their report, in order to obtain the most accurate valuation possible.

1 https://www.rics.org/uk/upholding-professional-standards/sector-standards/valuation/valuation-coronavirus/

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 20

Page 110

Agenda Item 7

Further resources
and guidance
The amount of information and constant updates can be
overwhelming and therefore we have included some key
websites for guidance on both the operational and financial
aspects that are being updated regularly so that you have
these to hand.

Financial Reporting Council
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) are continuously
updating their advice on the impact of the pandemic on
financial reporting and audits.5 This is relevant for both
authorities and auditors.

Grant Thornton Covid-19 Hub
Grant Thornton have a dedicated Covid-19 hub2, which covers
a number of topics including: navigating government support,
cyber security, contingency planning, impact on businesses
and option to join weekly webinars which provide practical
steps to dealing with the impact of the pandemic.

Local Government Association
The Local Government Association has published guidance and
resources relating to Covid-19 on its website.6

CIPFA
CIPFA have issued guidance3 on the financial reporting
implications of Covid-19 covering some key areas including the
impact on the narrative report, events after the reporting period
and impact on Property Plant and Equipment, Investment
Property and Financial Instruments.

Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government
The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) has published extensive Covid-19 related guidance
for the local government sector.7
Please note that this is a constantly evolving situation
and therefore information included within this report may
change over time.

National Audit Office
The National Audit Office will publish an updated guide4 to
public rights in relation to the accounts, taking into account the
impact of the pandemic.

Contact us
John Farrar
Director and Head of Public Sector
Financial Reporting
T +44 (0)15 1224 0869
E john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Paul Dossett
Partner and Head of Local Government
T +44 (0)20 7728 3180
E paul.dossett@uk.gt.com

2
3
4
5
6
7

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/responding-to-coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-05-closure-of-the-201920-financial-statements
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/council-accounts-a-guide-to-your-rights/
https://www.frc.org.uk/about-the-frc/covid-19/
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/coronavirus-information-councils
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-guidance-for-local-government

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on financial reporting in the local government sector 21

Page 111

Agenda Item 7

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance,
tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms
are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered
by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and
do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This publication has been
prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or
refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication.

grantthornton.co.uk

DS1776

Page 112

Agenda Item 8
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
Governance & Audit Committee 22nd July 2020
Report Author

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Rob Yates; Cabinet Member for Finance, Administration and
Community Wealth Building

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
This report provides a summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit Partnership
together with details of the performance of the EKAP against its targets for the year ending
31st March 2020.

Recommendation(s):
That the report be received by Members.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The costs
of the audit work are being met from the Financial Services 2019-20 budgets.
Value for
Money
Legal
The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit Regulations
and section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972) to have an adequate and
effective internal audit function.
Corporate
Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed to
comply with requirements for the independent review of the financial and
operational reporting processes, through the external audit and inspection
processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal audit.
Equalities Act Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
2010 & Public Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
Sector Equality the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the
Duty
Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
Please indicate which aim is relevant to the report.
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act,

Page 113

Agenda Item 8
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.
here are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick
those relevant)✓
A clean and welcoming
Environment
Promoting inward investment and
job creation
Supporting neighbourhoods

CORPORATE VALUES
those relevant)✓
Delivering value for money

(tick
X

Supporting the Workforce
Promoting open communications

X

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The primary objective of Internal Audit is to provide independent assurance to Members, the
Chief Executive, Directors and the Section 151 Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness of
those systems on which the Authority relies for its internal control. The purpose of bringing
forward an annual report to members is to:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal
control environment.
Present a summary of the internal audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including
reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies,
Draw attention to any issues the Head of the Audit Partnership judges particularly relevant
to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.
Compare actual audit activity with that planned, and summarise the performance of Internal
Audit against its performance criteria.
Comment on compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), and
report the results of the Internal Audit quality assurance programme.
Confirm annually that EKAP is organisationally independent, whether there have been any
resource limitations or instances of restricted access.

1.2

The report attached as Annex A therefore summarises the performance of the East Kent Audit
Partnership (EKAP) and the work it has performed over the financial year 2019-20 for Thanet
District Council, and provides an overall assurance on the system for internal control based on
the audit work undertaken throughout the year, in accordance with best practice. In providing
this opinion, this report supports the Annual Governance Statement.

1.3

The internal audit team is proactive in providing guidance on procedures where particular
issues are identified during audit reviews. The aim is to minimise the risk of loss to the
Authority by securing adequate internal controls. Partnership working for the service has added
the opportunity for the EKAP to share best practice across the four sites within the East Kent
Cluster to help drive forward continuous service improvement.

1.4

During 2019-20 the EKAP delivered 89% of the agreed audit plan days. The performance
figures for the East Kent Audit Partnership as a whole for the year show good performance
against targets.

2.0

Options

Page 114

Agenda Item 8

2.1

That Members consider and note the internal audit annual report.

2.2

That Members consider registering their comments with Cabinet in respect of any areas of the
Council’s corporate governance, control framework or risk management arrangements in
respect of which they have on-going comments after considering the work or coverage of
internal audit for the year 2019-20.

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, Ext. 42160
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit, Ext 57189
Tim Willis, Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer), Ext. 57617

Annex List
Annex 1

East Kent Audit Partnership Annual Report 2019-20

Background Papers
Title
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019-20
Internal Audit working papers

Details of where to access copy
Previously presented to and approved at the 6th
March 2019 Governance and Audit Committee
meeting
Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership

Corporate Consultation
Finance
Legal

Tim Willis, Deputy Chief Executive (s.151 Officer )
Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance

Page 115

Agenda Item 8
Annex A

Annual Internal Audit Report for Thanet District Council 2019-2020
1.

Introduction
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standard (PSIAS) defines internal audit as:
“Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control
and governance processes."
A more detailed explanation, of the role and responsibilities of internal audit, is set out in the
approved Audit Charter. The East Kent Audit Partnership (EKAP) aims to comply with the
PSIAS, and to this end has produced evidence to the s.151 and Monitoring Officers to assist the
Council’s review of the system of internal control in operation throughout the year.
This report is a summary of the year, a snapshot of the areas at the time they were reviewed and
the results of follow up reviews to reflect the actions taken by management to address the control
issues identified. The process that the EKAP adopts regarding following up the agreed
recommendations will bring any outstanding high-risk areas to the attention of members via the
quarterly reports, and through this annual report if there are any issues outstanding at the
year-end.

2.

Objectives
The majority of reviews undertaken by Internal Audit are designed to provide assurance on the
operation of the Council’s internal control environment. At the end of an audit we provide
recommendations and agree actions with management that will, if implemented, further enhance
the environment of the controls in practice. Other work undertaken, includes the provision of
specific advice and support to management to enhance the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the services for which they are responsible. The annual audit plan is informed by
special investigations and anti-fraud work carried out as well as the risk management framework
of the Council.
A key aim of the EKAP is to deliver a professional, cost effective, efficient, internal audit function
to the partner organisations. The EKAP aims to have an enabling role in raising the standards of
services across the partners though its unique position in assessing the relative standards of
services across the partners. The EKAP is also a key element of each councils’ anti fraud and
corruption system by acting as a deterrent to would be internal perpetrators.
The four partners are all committed to the principles and benefits of a shared internal audit
service and have agreed a formal legal document setting out detailed arrangements. The
statutory officers from each partner site (the s.151 Officer) together form the Client Officer Group
and govern the partnership through annual meetings. The shared arrangement for EKAP also
secures organisational independence, which in turn assists EKAP in making conclusions about
any resource limitations or ensuring there are no instances of restricted access.

3.

Internal Audit Performance Against Targets

Page 116

Agenda Item 8
3.1

EKAP Resources
The EKAP has provided the service to the partners based on a FTE of 6.88. Additional audit
days have been provided via audit contractors in order to meet the planned workloads.

3.2

Performance against Targets
The EKAP is committed to continuous improvement and has various measures to ensure the
service can strive to improve. The performance measures and indicators for the year are shown
in the balanced scorecard of performance measures at Appendix 5. The measures themselves
were reviewed by the Client Officer Group at their annual meeting and no changes were made.

3.3

Internal Quality Assurance and Performance Management.
All internal audit reports are subject to review, either by the relevant EKAP Deputy Head of Audit
or the Head of the Audit Partnership; all of whom are Chartered Internal Auditors. In each case
this includes a detailed examination of the working papers, action and review points, at each
stage of report. The review process is recorded and evidenced within the working paper index
and in a table at the end of each audit report. Detailed work instructions are documented within
the Audit Manual. The Head of Audit Partnership collates performance data monthly and,
together with the monitoring of the delivery of the agreed audit plan carried out by the relevant
Deputy Head of Audit, regular meetings are held with the s.151 Officer. The minutes to these
meetings provide additional evidence to the strategic management of the EKAP performance.

3.4

External Quality Assurance
The external auditors, Grant Thornton, conducted a review in February 2020 of the Internal Audit
arrangements. They have concluded that, where possible, they can place reliance on the work of
the EKAP. See also 3.6.1 below.

3.5

Liaison between Internal Audit and External Audit
Liaison with the audit managers from Grant Thornton for the partner authorities and the EKAP is
undertaken largely via email to ensure adequate audit coverage, to agree any complementary
work and to avoid any duplication of effort. The EKAP has not met with any other review body
during the year in its role as the Internal Auditor to Thanet District Council. Consequently, the
assurance, which follows is based on EKAP reviews of Thanet District Council’s services.

3.6 Compliance with Professional Standards
3.6.1 The EKAP self-assessment of the level of compliance against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards shows that some actions are required to achieve full compliance which EKAP will
continue to work towards. There is however, no appetite with the Client Officer Group to pay for
an External Quality Assessment of the EKAP’s level of compliance, relying on a review by the
s.151 officers of the self-assessment (presented to the March 2020 meeting). Consequently, the
EKAP can say that it partially conforms with PSIAS and this risk is noted in the AGS.
3.6.2 The internal audit activity adds value to the organisation (and its stakeholders) when it provides
objective and relevant assurance, and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of
governance, risk management and control processes.
3.6.3 In 2019-20 EKAP as required by the standards has demonstrated that it achieved the Core
Principles in three key ways. Firstly, by fulfilling the definition of Internal Auditing which is the
statement of fundamental purpose, nature and scope of internal auditing. The definition is
authoritative guidance for the internal audit profession (and is shown at paragraph 1 above).
Secondly by demonstrating that it has been effective in achieving its mission showing that it;-

Page 117

Agenda Item 8
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Demonstrates integrity.
Demonstrates competence and due professional care.
Is objective and free from undue influence (independent).
Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organization.
Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced.
Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement.
Communicates effectively.
Provides risk-based assurance.
Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused.
Promotes organisational improvement.

And thirdly by complying with The Code of Ethics, which is a statement of principles and
expectations governing behaviour of individuals and organisations in the conduct of internal
auditing. The Rules of Conduct describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors.
These rules are an aid to interpreting the Core Principles into practical applications and are
intended to guide the ethical conduct of internal auditors.
3.7

Financial Performance
Expenditure and recharges for year the 2019-20 are all in line with the Internal Audit cost
centre hosted by Dover District Council. The EKAP was formed to provide a resilient,
professional service and therefore achieving financial savings was not the main driver,
despite this considerable efficiencies have been gained through forming the partnership.

4.

Overview of Work Done
The original audit plan for 2019-20 included a total of 22 projects. We have communicated
closely with the s.151 Officer, CMT and this Committee to ensure the projects actually
undertaken continued to represent the best use of resources. As a result of this liaison some
changes to the plan were agreed during the year. A few projects (12) have therefore been
pushed back in the overall strategic plan, to permit some higher risk projects to come forward
(4). The total number of projects undertaken in 2019-20 was 14, with 3 being WIP at the year
end to be finalised in April 2020. In addition, 5 projects were finalised from the 2018-19 plan.

Review of the Internal Control Environment
4.1

Risks
During 2019-20, 87 recommendations were made in the agreed final audit reports to Thanet
District Council. These are analysed as being Critical, High, Medium or Low risk in the
following table:
Risk Criticality
Critical
High
Medium
Low
TOTAL

No. of Recommendations

Percentage

3
37
26
21
87

3%
43%
30%
24%
100%

Page 118

Agenda Item 8
Naturally, more emphasis is placed on recommendations for improvement regarding high
risks. Any high priority recommendations where management has not made progress in
implementing the agreed system improvement are brought to management and members’
attention through the Internal Audit quarterly update reports. During 2019-20 the EKAP has
raised and reported to the quarterly Governance & Audit Committee meetings 87
recommendations, and whilst 86% were in the Critical, High or Medium Risk categories, none
are so significant that they need to be escalated at this time.
4.2

Assurances
Internal Audit applies one of four ‘assurance opinions’ to each review, please see Appendix 1
for the definitions. This provides a level of reliance that management can place on the system
of internal control to deliver the goals and objectives covered in that particular review. The
conclusions drawn are described as being “a snapshot in time” and the purpose of allocating
an assurance level is so that risk is managed effectively and control improvements can be
planned. Consequently, where the assurance level is either ‘no’ or ‘limited’, or where high
priority recommendations have been identified, a follow up progress review is undertaken
and, where appropriate, the assurance level is revised.
The summary of Assurance Levels issued on the fourteen pieces of completed work for
Thanet District Council, together with the finalisation of the five 2018-19 audits is as follows:
NB: the percentages shown are calculated on finalised reports with an assurance level

Assurance

Substantial
Reasonable
Limited
No
Work in Progress at Year-End
Not Applicable

No.

Percentage of
Completed
Reviews

4
5
5
0
2
3

28%
36%
36%
0%
* See list in the table below

NB: ‘Not Applicable’ is shown against special investigations or work commissioned by
management that did not result in an assurance level.

Taken together 64% of the reviews account for substantial or reasonable assurance, whilst
38% of reviews placed a (partial) limited assurance to management on the system of internal
control in operation at the time of the review. There were no reviews assessed as having ‘no
assurance’.
There were eleven reviews completed on behalf of East Kent Housing Ltd. and the
assurances for these audits were - 2 Substantial, 3 Reasonable, 3 Limited, 1 No Assurance 2
Not Applicable and 0 work in progress at the year-end. Information is provided in Appendix 3.
There were seven reviews completed on behalf of EK Services and the assurances for these
audits were - 3 Substantial, 1 Reasonable, 1 Limited, 2 Not Applicable and 4 reviews were
work in progress at the year-end. Information is provided in Appendix 4.

Page 119

Agenda Item 8
For each recommendation, an implementation date is agreed with the Manager responsible
for implementing it. Understandably, the follow up review is then timed to allow the service
manager sufficient time to make progress in implementing the agreed actions against the
agreed timescales. Those areas assessed as being as either ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance audit
opinion during the year are detailed in the table at paragraph 6, these areas are also
recorded as an appendix to the quarterly report until the follow up report is issued, so that
they do not get overlooked. The results of any follow up reviews yet to be undertaken will
therefore be reported to the Committee at the appropriate time.
4.3

Progress Reports
In agreeing the final Internal Audit Report, management accepts responsibility to take action
to resolve all the risks highlighted in that final report. The EKAP carries out a follow
up/progress review at an appropriate time after finalising an agreed report to test whether
agreed action has in fact taken place and whether it has been effective in reducing risk.
As part of the follow up action, the recommendations under review are either:
▪
▪
▪
▪

“closed” as they have been successfully implemented, or
“closed” as the recommendation is yet to be implemented but is on target, or
(for medium or low risks only) “closed” as management has decided to tolerate the risk,
or the circumstances have since changed, or
(for critical or high risks only) escalated to the audit committee.

At the conclusion of the follow up review the overall assurance level is re-assessed.
The results for the follow up activity for 2019-20 are set out below. The shift to the right in the
third column in the table from the original opinion to the revised opinion also measures the
positive impact that the EKAP has made on the system of internal control in operation
throughout 2019-20.
Total Follow Ups undertaken
7
Original Opinion
Revised Opinion

No
Assurance
0
0

Limited
Assurance
4
1

Reasonable
Assurance
2
5

Substantial
Assurance
1
1

The reviews with an original (partially) no or limited assurance, together with the result of the
follow up report, are shown in the following table which concludes there is one TDC review
showing a partially limited assurance after follow up, this was escalated to the Governance &
Audit Committee during the year.
Area Under Review

Original Assurance

Follow Up Result

Complaints Monitoring

Limited

Reasonable

GDPR

Limited

Reasonable /Limited

Asset Management

Limited

Reasonable

Reasonable/Limited

Reasonable

Planning Income & 106s

Page 120

Agenda Item 8
East Kent Housing received five follow up reviews for which the revised assurance levels
remained at No or partially Limited assurance after follow up, these concerns have been
escalated to the EKH Board.
EK Services received four follow ups; the revised assurances were Substantial for two
reviews, Reasonable for one review and one with a partially Limited assurance after follow
up.
Consequently, the areas with fundamental issues of note arising from the audits and follow
up undertaken in 2019-20 have been escalated. There is one TDC review showing a partially
limited assurance after follow up.

4.4

Special Investigations and Fraud Related Work
The prevention and detection of fraud and corruption is ultimately the responsibility of
management however, the EKAP is aware of its own responsibility in this area and is alert to
the risk of fraud and corruption. Consequently, the EKAP structures its work in such a way as
to maximise the probability of detecting any instances of fraud. The EKAP will immediately
report to the relevant officer any detected fraud or corruption identified during the course of its
work; or any areas where such risks exist.
The EKAP is, from time to time, required to carry out special investigations, including
suspected fraud and irregularity investigations and other special projects. Whilst one
financial irregularity was investigated during the year at the request of management, the
officer concerned resigned before the disciplinary hearing and consequently whilst the EKAP
concluded a fact finding report into a potential fraud on behalf of Thanet District Council in
2019-20, the matter was not formally proven or disproven. The Head of Audit also undertook
the role of ‘commissioning officer’ for a Whistleblowing fact finding matter in the year, that
was not fully concluded by the year end.

4.5

Completion of Strategic Audit Plan
Appendix 2 shows the planned time for reviews undertaken, against actual time taken, follow
up reviews and unplanned reviews resulting from any special investigations or management
requests. 288.46 audit days were completed for Thanet District Council during 2019-20 which
represents 89% plan completion. The 35.53 days behind at the year end, will be adjusted in
2020-21. The EKAP was formed in October 2007; it completes a rolling programme of work
to cover a defined number of days each year. As at the 31st March each year there is
undoubtedly some “work in progress” at each of the partner sites; some naturally being
slightly ahead and some being slightly behind in any given year. However, the progress in
ensuring adequate coverage against the agreed audit plan of work since 2007-08 concludes
that EKAP is 35.53 days behind schedule as we commence 2020-21, as shown in the table
below.
Year

Plan
Days

Plus
B/Fwd

Adjusted
Requirement

from EKAP

Days
Delivered

Percentage
Completed

Days
Carried
Forward
(Days
Planned –

Page 121

Agenda Item 8
Days
Delivered)

2008-09

400

0

400.00

397.61

99.40%

-2.39

2009-10

408

2.39

410.39

399.82

97.42%

-8.18

2010-11

430

10.57

440.57

466.04

105.78%

+36.04

2011-12

342

-25.47

316.53

309.32

97.72%

-32.68

2012-13

320

7.21

327.21

318.20

97.25%

-1.80

2013-14

300

9.01

309.01

288.70

93.43%

-11.30

2014-15

300

20.31

320.31

315.67

98.55%

15.67

2015-16

300

4.64

304.64

309.28

101.52%

9.28

2016-17

300

-4.67

295.33

315.05

106.67%

15.05

2017-18

285

-19.69

265.31

226.95

85.54%

-58.05

2018-19

285

-38.86

323.86

284.37

87.94%

-0.63

2019-20

285

-38.99

323.99

288.46

89.04%

-3.46

3919.47

99.10%

-35.53

Total

3955

Appendix 3 shows the planned time for reviews undertaken, against actual time taken, follow up
reviews and unplanned reviews resulting from any special investigations for East Kent Housing
Ltd. Thanet District Council contributed 25 days from its original plan in 2011-12 and 20 days in
subsequent years as its share in this four way arrangement. From 2017-18 an additional 15
days has been contributed to the EKH Plan from each partner taking the total EKH plan to 140
days. The EKH Annual Report in its full format will be presented to the EKH – Board on 17th
June 2020.
Appendix 4 shows the planned time for reviews undertaken, against actual time taken, follow up
reviews and unplanned reviews resulting from any special investigations for East Kent Services.
Thanet District Council contributed 60 days from its original plan as its share in this three-way
arrangement. As EKS is hosted by TDC, the EKS Annual Report in its full format is presented to
the TDC - Governance & Audit Committee, and is attached as Appendix 4.
5.

Overall assessment of the System of Internal Controls 2019-20
Based on the work of the EKAP on behalf of Thanet District Council during 2019-20, the overall
opinion is:
There are some areas of concern, but none which would give rise to a qualified audit statement
regarding the systems of internal control concerning the main financial systems, there are some

Page 122

Agenda Item 8
themes or emerging evidence of management override or investigation matters outstanding that
indirectly impact the overall systems of corporate governance.
There were five new areas where a partially no or limited assurance level was given which
reflected a lack of confidence in arrangements. These reviews will be followed up in due course
as set out in the table at 6. below. Reviews previously assessed as Limited assurance that have
been followed up are detailed in the table at Paragraph 4.3. The one area that remains at
partaily limited assurance (GDPR) has been escalated to the Committee.

6.

Significant issues arising in 2019-20
From the work undertaken during 2019-20, there were no instances of unsatisfactory responses
to key control issues raised in internal audit reports by the end of the year. There are occasions
when audit recommendations are not accepted for operational reasons such as a manager’s
opinion that costs outweigh the risk, although none of these are significant and require reporting
or escalation at this time.
One significant issue relates to the fraud investigation at Paragraph 4.4 which has resulted with
the anti fraud and corruption policy not being fully followed by virtue that the officer resigned
before the Council could pursue a disciplinary hearing and a potential criminal investigation.
Significant findings include areas of Operational Services which have consistently received a
Limited Assurance opinion. Crucially, several high profile corporate plan priority areas such as
Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance carry a limited assurance for the second audit in a
row, with Critical Priority recommendations outstanding for more than three years. An emerging
theme has been identified with delays in management responses (some intolerable) in these
areas, and this is highlighted as it impacts the system of internal control.
The EKAP has been commissioned to perform only one follow up, there is one review that
remained a partially Limited Assurance after follow up, and three recommendations that were
originally assessed as critical or high risk, which remained a high priority and outstanding after
follow up were escalated to the Governance & Audit Committee during the year (from two
reviews - Garden Waste & Recycling July 2019 1 Recommendation, and GDPR December 2019
2 Recommendations).
Reviews previously assessed as providing a (partial) Limited Assurance that are yet to be
followed up are shown in the table below. The progress reports for these will be reported to the
Committee at the meeting following completion of the follow up.
Area Under Review

Original Assurance
(Date to Committee)

Progress Report Due

Reasonable / Limited
December 2019

Summer 2020

Building Control

Limited

Autumn 2020

Street Cleansing

Limited

Summer 2020 (WIP)

Homelessness

Limited

Spring 2020 (WIP)

Planning Income & s.106
Agreements

Page 123

Agenda Item 8
Grounds Maintenance

Limited - Awaiting MR

Autumn 2020

And for EK Services four follow up reviews were undertaken which resulted with two Substantial,
one with Reasonable assurance and one remained at partially Limited after follow up. There are
no new reviews with a limited assurance awaiting a follow up. The overall Opinion in the
2019-20 Annual Report for EKS is Reasonable Assurance.
And for East Kent Housing Contract Management remained at partially Limited assurance after
follow up, and three recommendations that were originally assessed as high risk, which
remained a high priority and outstanding after follow up were escalated to the Governance and
Audit Committee at the year end. Additionally, the Tenant’s Health and Safety review resulted in
Limited/No Assurance across five key areas. Four of these have been followed up and Fire
Safety is awaiting follow up, this currently sits at No assurance. There are three new reviews
with partially limited assurance where the follow up is not yet due.
The findings in respect of Contract Management reinforce the concerns in the overall
environment of asset management. Several audits have also identified a common theme of the
lack of continuity through the use of interim staff which has a potential detrimental impact upon
the implementation of agreed audit recommendations. Overall, the impact of the findings within
the Tenant’s Health and Safety Review have been far reaching. Having self-referred to the
Housing Regulator, the four councils have requested that the Internal Audit follow up work
continues to be an important source of independent assurance. However, it is slow progress
with a need to test the systems control changes to ensure they have become embedded before
revising the opinion. And, (particularly the case for Fire Safety) awaiting EKH to inform Internal
Audit that they have made sufficient progress for the progress report to be undertaken.
Tolerating these critical risks for such a long period of time is unacceptable. We would usually
aim to see improvement within 3 months. The original Tenant’s H&S audit was reported to
Committee in September 2019. The overall Opinion in the 2019-20 Annual Report for EKH is
Limited Assurance.
Members of this Committee should be aware of this risk as it impacts upon the risk management
and internal control framework of the organisation.
EKH Ltd. is in the process of being wound up, and operational responsibility is transferring back
to the four councils. Therefore, the 2020-21 Audit Plan will need to be re-designed and the
number of days per partner will transfer back to each council (35 days). It will be for the s.151
Officer at each council to agree the Internal Audit resources they require on housing areas in
future years.

7.

Overall Conclusion
The Internal Audit function provided by the EKAP has performed well against its targets for the
year. Clearly there have been some adjustments to the original audit plan for the year 2019-20,
however, this is as expected and there are no matters of concern to be raised at this time.
It is a requirement of s.151 of the Local Government Act 1974 for the Council to maintain an
‘effective’ internal audit function, when forming my opinion on the Council’s overall system of
control, I need to have regard to the amount of work which we have undertaken upon which I am
basing my opinion.

Page 124

Agenda Item 8
From the work undertaken the EKAP assesses the overall system of internal control in operation
throughout 2019-20 as providing reasonable assurance. No system of control can provide
absolute assurance, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance. This statement is intended to
provide a reasonable assurance that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the key risks. There are some unresolved matters for the Council which may further
impact the systems of governance and systems of internal control, and much consideration has
been given to providing the opinion. Further assurances on the adoption of Anti Fraud and
Corruption and Whistleblowing policies will need to be incorporated into further work plans.
Doubtless, the results of Internal Audit assurances given on some areas of EKH have also had
an impact on the overall control environment for 2019-20 for the four councils involved.

Page 125

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1
Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation Priorities
Assurance Statements:
Substantial Assurance - From the testing completed during this review a sound system of
control is currently being managed and achieved. All of the necessary, key controls of the
system are in place. Any errors found were minor and not indicative of system faults. These
may however result in a negligible level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives.
Reasonable Assurance - From the testing completed during this review most of the
necessary controls of the system in place are managed and achieved. There is evidence of
non-compliance with some of the key controls resulting in a marginal level of risk to the
achievement of the system objectives. Scope for improvement has been identified,
strengthening existing controls or recommending new controls.
Limited Assurance - From the testing completed during this review some of the necessary
controls of the system are in place, managed and achieved. There is evidence of significant
errors or non-compliance with many key controls not operating as intended resulting in a risk
to the achievement of the system objectives. Scope for improvement has been identified,
improving existing controls or recommending new controls.
No Assurance - From the testing completed during this review a substantial number of the
necessary key controls of the system have been identified as absent or weak. There is
evidence of substantial errors or non-compliance with many key controls leaving the system
open to fundamental error or abuse. The requirement for urgent improvement has been
identified, to improve existing controls or new controls should be introduced to reduce the
critical risk.
Priority of Recommendations Definitions:
Critical – A finding which significantly impacts upon a corporate risk or seriously impairs the
organisation’s ability to achieve a corporate priority. Critical recommendations also relate to
non-compliance with significant pieces of legislation which the organisation is required to
adhere to and which could result in a financial penalty or prosecution. Such
recommendations are likely to require immediate remedial action and are actions the Council
must take without delay.
High – A finding which significantly impacts upon the operational service objective of the area
under review. This would also normally be the priority assigned to recommendations relating
to the (actual or potential) breach of a less prominent legal responsibility or significant internal
policies; unless the consequences of non-compliance are severe. High priority
recommendations are likely to require remedial action at the next available opportunity or as
soon as is practical and are recommendations that the Council must take.
Medium – A finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of - or where there is
a weakness within - its own policies, procedures or internal control measures, but which does
not directly impact upon a strategic risk, key priority, or the operational service objective of
the area under review. Medium priority recommendations are likely to require remedial action
within three to six months and are actions which the Council should take.
Low – A finding where there is little if any risk to the Council or the recommendation is of a
business efficiency nature and is therefore advisory in nature. Low priority recommendations
are suggested for implementation within six to nine months and generally describe actions
the Council could take.

Page 126

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2

Performance against the Agreed 2019-20
Thanet District Council Audit Plan
Original Revised
Actual
Planned Budgeted days to
Days
Days
31-03-2020

Area

Status and Assurance Level

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS:
Capital

10

10

2.34

Work-in-progress

Treasury Management

10

10

9.68

Finalised - Substantial

External Funding Protocol

10

10

9.24

Work-in-progress

Insurance & Inventories of Portable
Assets

12

12

8.94

Finalised - Substantial

10

0

0

Postponed

GDPR Compliance

13

0

0

Postponed

Anti-Fraud & Corruption

2

2

0.64

Finalised

Shared Service Monitoring

10

0

0

Postponed

Partnerships

8

0

0

Postponed

10

0

0

Postponed

Corporate Advice/CMT

2

2

2.4

Completed

s.151 Officer Meetings and Support

9

12

12.66

Completed

12

14

14.37

Completed

9

12

12.90

Completed

12

18

18.97

Finalised - Reasonable

Environmental Health & Safety at
Work

10

0

0

Postponed

Grounds Maintenance

12

15

14.47

Finalised - Limited

Grants

10

0

0

Postponed

10

1

0.61

Postponed

12

15

14.34

Finalised - Substantial

RESIDUAL HOUSING SERVICES:
HRA Business Plan
GOVERNANCE RELATED:

Risk Management
Mitigation Controls

-

Review of

Governance & Audit Committee
Meetings and Report Preparation
2020-21 Audit Plan and Preparation
Meetings
CONTRACT AUDITS
CSO Compliance
SERVICE LEVEL:

Commercial
Concessions

Let

Ramsgate Marina

Properties

&

Page 127

Agenda Item 8
Planning Applications, Income &
s106 Agreements

12

14

14.38

Finalised - Reasonable/Limited

Building Control

10

18

17.78

Finalised - Limited

Printing & Post

10

10

10.08

Finalised - Substantial

Sports & Community Development

10

0

0

Postponed

Visitor Information Arrangements

10

0

0

Postponed

Waste & Street Cleansing Vehicle
Fleet Management

10

1

0.24

Postponed

Climate Change

6

0

0.09

Postponed

Liaison With External Auditors

1

1

1

Completed

Follow-up Reviews

15

20

19.93

Completed

0

38.98

0

Allocated Below

11.39

Finalised - Substantial/Reasonable

19.94

Finalised - Limited

0.44

Finalised - Reasonable

Community Safety

0.54

Finalised -Reasonable

Employee Health & Safety

14.04

Finalised -Reasonable

OTHER :

FINALISATION OF 2018-19 AUDITS:
Days under delivered in 2018-19
Dog Warden
Enforcement

&

Street

Scene

Street Cleansing
Business Continuity & Emergency
Planning

5

34

RESPONSIVE WORK:
Homelessness

0

14

14.17

Finalised - Limited

Electoral Registration Investigation

0

10

10.37

Finalised -N/A

Whistleblowing Investigation

0

25

25.29

Draft report- N/A

Ramsgate Harbor Accounts Audit

3

5

5.24

Finalised - N/A

285

323.98

288.48

89.04%

TOTAL

Page 128

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3

Performance against the Agreed 2019-20
East Kent Housing Audit Plan
Actual
days to

Original
Planned
Days

Revised
Planned
Days

31-03-20

MT/Audit Sub Ctte/EA Liaison

4

13

13.30

Finalised

Follow-up Reviews

4

13

13.90

Finalised

Rent Accounting, Collection & Debt
Management.

40

40

40.44

Finalised - Substantial

Rechargeable Works

10

0

0

Postponed

Employee Health, Safety & Welfare

15

15

9.34

Finalised - Limited

Customer Contact

12

0

0

Postponed

East Kent Housing Improvement
Plan

10

0

0

Postponed

Estate Management Inspection

15

0

0

Postponed

Anti-Social Behaviour

15

0

0

Postponed

Review

Status and Assurance
Level

Planned Work:

Tenants’ Health & Safety Split into
5 areas - Gas

Finalised – Limited
Finalised – No

Fire Safety
Lifts

15

20

21.97

Finalised – No

Electrical Testing

Finalised – No

Legionella

Finalised – No

Finalisation of 2018-19 Work-in-Progress:
Days under delivered in 2018-19

0

19.50

0

Allocated Below

Staff Performance Management

0

10

10.34

Finalised - Limited

Welfare Reform

0

0

8.23

Finalised - Reasonable

Repairs & Maintenance split into 3
areas – Budget Control
Voids

Finalised – Substantial
0

20

40.22

Finalised - Reasonable

Repairs & Maintenance
Service Level Agreements

Finalised -Limited
0

0

0.97

Finalised - N/A

Data Integrity

0

5

4.46

Finalised - Reasonable

Planned Maintenance Contracts

0

4

3.70

Finalised - N/A

140

159.50

166.87

104.62%

Responsive Work:

Total

Page 129

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 4

Annual Internal Audit Report for EK SERVICES 2019-20
1.

Introduction/Summary
The main points to note from this report are that the agreed programme of audits has
been completed with some projects being finalised as work in progress at 31st March
2020. The majority of reviews have given a substantial or reasonable assurance and
there are no major areas of concern that would give rise to a qualified opinion.
The financial management of the Internal Audit cost centre held by Dover District
Council has performed well and has delivered a cashable saving against budget.
Overview of Work Done
The original audit plan for 2019-20 included a total of 10 projects. We have
communicated closely with the s.151 Officers and the audit committees to ensure the
projects actually undertaken continued to represent the best use of resources. As a
result of this liaison some changes to the plan were agreed during the year. One
project was added at management’s request to accommodate changes. The total
number of projects undertaken in 2019-20 was 4, with 3 being WIP at the year end to
be finalised in April. In addition 3 reviews carried over from 2018-19 were also
finalised.

2.

Review of the Internal Control Environment

2.1

Risks and Assurances
During 2019-20, twenty-six recommendations were made in the agreed final audit
reports for EK Services. These are analysed as being High, Medium or Low risk in
the following table, there were no critical risks raised:
Risk Criticality

No. of Recommendations

Percentage

Medium

4
11

Low

11

16%
42%
42%
100%

High

TOTAL

26

Naturally, more emphasis is placed on recommendations for improvement regarding
high risks. Any high priority recommendations where management has not made
progress in implementing the agreed system improvement are brought to
management and Councillors’ attention through Internal Audit’s quarterly update
reports. During 2019-20 the EKAP has raised 26 recommendations, and whilst 58%
were in the High or Medium Risk categories, none are so significant that they need to
be escalated at this time.
Internal Audit applies one of four ‘assurance opinions’ to each review, this provides a
level of reliance that management can place on the system of internal control to

Page 130

Agenda Item 8
deliver the goals and objectives covered in that particular review. The conclusions
drawn are described as being “a snapshot in time” and the purpose of allocating an
assurance level is so that risk is managed effectively and control improvements can
be planned. Consequently, where the assurance level is either ‘no’ or ‘limited’, or
where high priority recommendations have been identified, a follow up progress
review is undertaken and, where appropriate, the assurance level is revised.
The summary of Assurance Levels issued on the 7 pieces of work finalised for EK
Services over the course of the year is as follows:
NB: the percentages shown are calculated on finalised reports with an assurance level

Assurance

Substantial
Reasonable
Limited
No
Work in Progress at Year-End
Not Applicable

No.

Percentage of
Completed
Reviews

3
1
1
0
4
2

60%
20%
20%
0%
-

NB: ‘Not Applicable’ is shown against quarterly benefit checks.

Taken together 80% of the reviews account for substantial or reasonable assurance.
There were no reviews assessed as having No assurance.
For each recommendation, an implementation date is agreed with the Manager
responsible for implementing it. Understandably, the follow up review is then timed to
allow the service manager sufficient time to make progress in implementing the
agreed actions against the agreed timescales. The results of any follow up reviews yet
to be undertaken will therefore be reported to the quarterly committee at the
appropriate time:

2.2

Progress Reports
In agreeing the final Internal Audit Report, management accepts responsibility to take
action to resolve all the risks highlighted in that final report. The EKAP carries out a
follow up progress review at an appropriate time after finalising an agreed report to
test whether agreed action has in fact taken place and whether it has been effective in
reducing risk.
As part of the follow up action, the recommendations under review are either:
▪
▪
▪

“closed” as they are successfully implemented, or
“closed” as the recommendation is yet to be implemented but is on target, or
(for medium or low risks only) “closed” as management has decided to tolerate
the risk, or the circumstances have since changed.

Page 131

Agenda Item 8
At the conclusion of the follow up review the overall assurance level is re-assessed.
As Internal Audit are tasked to perform one progress report per original audit and
bring those findings back, it is at this juncture that any outstanding high-risks are
escalated to the Governance and Audit Committee via the quarterly update report.
Four follow up reports were carried out for EK Services during the year. The results
for the follow up activity for 2019-20 will continue to be reported at the appropriate
time. The results in the following table show the original opinion and the revised
opinion after follow up to measure the impact that the EKAP review process has made
on the system of internal control.
Total Follow Ups
undertaken 4
Original Opinion
Revised Opinion

No
Assurance
0
0

Limited
Assurance
1
1

Reasonable
Assurance
2
1

Substantial
Assurance
1
2

There are no fundamental issues of note arising from the audits undertaken in
2019-20. There were no reviews previously assessed as providing a Limited
Assurance that required follow up. Therefore, no EKS reviews were required to be
escalated to the Audit Committees during the year.
2.3

Special Investigations and Fraud Related Work
The prevention and detection of fraud and corruption is ultimately the responsibility of
management however, the EKAP is aware of its own responsibility in this area and is
alert to the risk of fraud and corruption. Consequently the EKAP structures its work in
such a way as to maximise the probability of detecting any instances of fraud. The
EKAP will immediately report to the relevant officer any detected fraud or corruption
identified during the course of its work; or any areas where such risks exist.
The EKAP is, from time to time, required to carry out special investigations, including
suspected fraud and irregularity investigations and other special projects. During the
year 2019-20 there have been no fraud investigations conducted by the EKAP on
behalf of EK Services.

2.4

Completion of Strategic Audit Plan
The analysis in Annex A shows the individual reviews that were completed during the
year. As at 31st March 2020 delivery was behind plan and EKAP had delivered 129.33
days against 160 required (80.83%). The 57.94 days carried over will be adjusted in
2020-21 as part of the rolling four-year plan process. Some of these audits were
postponed at management’s request.
The EKAP completes a rolling programme of work to cover a defined number of days
each year. As at the 31st March each year there is undoubtedly some “work in
progress” at each of the partner sites; some naturally being slightly ahead and some
being slightly behind in any given year. The progress in ensuring adequate coverage
against the agreed audit plan of work since 2011-12 concludes that EKAP is 57.94
days behind schedule as we commence 2020-21, as shown in the table below

Page 132

Agenda Item 8

3.0

Year

Days
Required

Plus
B/Fwd

2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19
2019-20

169
160
160
160
160
160
160
160
160

0
25.10
28.11
31.15
-9.79
7.33
-17.70
-47.49
+27.2
6

Total

1449

Adjusted
Requirement
from EKAP
0
185.10
188.11
191.15
150.21
167.33
177.70
207.79
187.26

Days
Delivered

Percentage
Completed

143.90
156.99
156.96
200.94
142.88
149.63
129.91
180.52
129.33

85.15%
84.81%
83.44%
105.12%
95.12%
89.42%
73.11%
86.88%
69.06%

Days
Against
Target
-25.10
-3.01
-3.04
+40.94
-17.12
-10.37
-30.09
+20.52
-30.67

1391.06

96.00%

-57.94

Significant issues arising in 2019-20
From the work undertaken during 2019-20, there were no instances of unsatisfactory
responses to key control issues raised in internal audit reports by the end of the year.
There are occasions when audit recommendations are not accepted for operational
reasons such as a manager’s opinion that costs outweigh the risk, but none of these
are significant and require reporting or escalation at this time.
The EKAP has been commissioned to perform only one follow up, there are no reviews
previously assessed as providing a Limited Assurance that are yet to be followed up.

4.0

Overall Conclusion
The work of Internal Audit and this report contribute to the overall internal control
environment operating within EK Services, and also assists in providing an audit trail to
the statements that must be published annually with the financial accounts for each
partner council. It is a requirement of s.151 of the Local Government Act 1974 for the
Council to maintain an ‘effective’ internal audit function, when forming my opinion on
the Council’s overall system of control, I need to have regard to the amount of work
which we have undertaken upon which I am basing my opinion.
Based on the work of the EKAP on behalf of EK Services during 2019-20, the overall
opinion is that there are no major areas of concern, which would give rise to a qualified
audit statement regarding the systems of internal control concerning either the main
financial systems or overall systems of corporate governance. The EKAP assesses the
overall system of internal control in operation throughout 2019-20 as providing
reasonable assurance. No system of control can provide absolute assurance, nor can
Internal Audit give that assurance. This statement is intended to provide reasonable
assurance that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
key risks.

Page 133

Agenda Item 8
Annex A

Performance against the Agreed 2019-20
East Kent Services Audit Plan

Review

Original Revised Actual
Status and Assurance
Planned Planned days to
Level
Days
Days 31/03/2020

EKS & Civica Reviews:
Housing Benefits Appeals

15

14

13.54

Finalised - Substantial

Housing Benefit Testing

15

20

20.44

Finalised – N/A

Business Rates Reliefs & Credits

15

15

16.76

Finalised - Substantial

Council Tax

20

20

0

Postpone

ICT – Disaster Recovery

15

0

0.20

Postpone

ICT – Physical & Environment

15

15

13.81

Finalised – Substantial

ICT – Software Licensing

0

13

0.24

Work in progress

KPIs

5

5

5.44

Work in progress

Payroll

15

15

6.97

Work in progress

Recruitment

15

15

0.17

Postpone

Employee Benefits in Kind

15

15

11.39

WIP-Draft report

Corporate/Committee

8

9

8.96

Finalised

Follow up

7

10

9.85

Finalised

27.26

Allocated below

EKHR Reviews:

Other:

Finalisation of 2018/19 Audits:
Days under delivered in 2018-19
Housing Benefit Testing

0

9

8.70

Finalised – N/A

Payroll

0

2

2.22

Finalised - Reasonable

PCI-DSS Compliance

0

10.26

10.64

Finalised –
Reasonable/Limited

160

187.26

129.33

69%

Total

Page 134

Agenda Item 8

Appendix 5 - EKAP Balanced Scorecard 2019-20

INTERNAL
2019-20
Actual
PROCESSES
PERSPECTIVE:
Q4

Target

FINANCIAL
PERSPECTIVE:

2019-20
Actual

Original
Budget

£324.66

£332.50

£419,910

£428,375

£10,530

£10,530

- ‘Unplanned Income’

£1,886

Zero

= Net EKAP cost (all
Partners)

£428,554

£438,905

Reported Annually
Chargeable as
% of available
days

86%

80%
Cost

Chargeable
days as % of
planned days

Direct Costs
+ Indirect Costs
(Recharges from Host)

CCC
DDC
F&HDC
TDC
EKS
EKH

95%
91%
78%
89%
69%
105%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Overall

87%

100%

Follow up/
Progress
Reviews;
28

-

· N
 ot yet due

12

-

· Now due for
Follow Up

37

-

· I ssued

Compliance
with the
Public Sector
Internal Audit
Standards
(PSIAS)
(see Annual
Report for
more details)

per Audit Day

Partial

(£10,351
reduction
due to
resource
changes
-credit
rolled
over to
2020-21)

Full

Page 135

Agenda Item 8

Appendix 5 - EKAP Balanced Scorecard 2019-20

CUSTOMER
2019-20 Target
Actual
PERSPECTIVE:
Number of
Satisfaction
Questionnaires
Issued;
Number
of
completed
questionnaires
received back;

Percentage of staff
qualified to relevant
technician level

60

Percentage of staff
holding a relevant higher
level qualification

23

Percentage of
Customers
= 38%
who felt that;
were
conducted in a
professional
100%
manner.

INNOVATION &
LEARNING
PERSPECTIVE:

Percentage
of
staff
studying for a relevant
professional qualification

2019-20
Actual

Target

74%

74%

38%

38%

15%

N/A

4.1

3.5

38%

38%

Interviews

The audit
report was
‘Good’ or
better.
That the
audit was
worthwhile.

100%

100%

90%

100%

100%

Number of days technical
training per FTE
Percentage
of
meeting
formal
requirements
qualification)

staff
CPD
(post

Page 136

Agenda Item 8

Appendix 5 - EKAP Balanced Scorecard 2019-20

Page 137

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT - QUARTERLY UPDATE

Governance and Audit Committee

22 July 2020

Report Author

Chris Blundell, Head of Financial and Procurement
Services

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Duckworth, Portfolio Holder for Estates
and Economic Development

Status

For information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
This report provides the Governance & Audit Committee with a quarterly review of corporate
risks.

Recommendation(s):
1. To approve the review of corporate risks.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
Value for
Money

The way in which the council manages risks has a financial impact on the
cost of insurance and self-insurance. The council maintains reserves
including a risk reserve, the size of which is commensurate with the
financial impact of current and future risks. There are no specific financial
implications arising from this report.

It is the role and responsibility of the Section 151 Office to have active
involvement in all material business decisions to ensure immediate and
longer term implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered.
Legal

Whilst the corporate risk register includes consideration of legal matters in
as far as they relate to risks to the council, there are no legal implications
for the recommendation required by this report.

Page 139

Agenda Item 9
Corporate

Governance & Audit Committee approved the revised Risk Management
Strategy on 6 March 2019, which includes a requirement to provide
regular corporate risk updates to G&A Committee.

Equalities Act
2010 & Public
Sector
Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the
Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
Please indicate which is aim is relevant to the report
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act,
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it

✓

Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.
There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report. The risk
register identifies a number of activities designed to control risks and
these will each need to be assessed for equality impact in their own right.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick those relevant)✓
Growth
Environment
Communities
1.
1.1.

2.
2.1.

✓
✓
✓

Introduction
The Council monitors and manages its corporate risks through the Corporate Risk
Register. The contents of the report highlight the high-priority corporate risks and
show the arrangements in place to ensure these risks are monitored and managed
appropriately.
Background
The Risk Management Strategy 2019-23 was approved by the Governance and Audit
Committee at its meeting on 6 March 2019.

Page 140

Agenda Item 9
2.2.

3.
3.1.

The strategy defines corporate risks as ‘those which could impact across the whole
council including those relating to partnerships’. The strategy prescribes that these
risks should be assessed by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the
Member Risk Management Champion and then reported to the Governance and Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

Risk, Risk Management and Responsibilities
What is risk - Risk is defined as the uncertainty of outcome, whether positive
opportunity or negative threat, of actions and events.
Risk can be a threat (downside) or an opportunity (upside)

3.2.

A local authority’s purpose is generally concerned with the delivery of service or with
the delivery of a beneficial outcome in the public interest. The delivery of these
objectives is surrounded by uncertainty which both poses threats to success and
offers opportunity for increasing success.

3.3.

What risk management - Risk Management can be defined as:
‘Risk Management is the process by which risks are identified, evaluated and
controlled. It is a key element of the framework of governance together with
community focus, structures and processes, standards of conduct and service
delivery arrangements’
(Audit Commission)

3.4.

Risks have to be assessed in respect of the combination of the likelihood of
something happening, and the impact which arises if it does actually happen. Risk
management includes identifying and assessing risks and then responding to them.
Risk is unavoidable, and every organisation needs to take action to manage risk in a
way which it can justify to a level which is tolerable. The amount of risk which is
judged to be tolerable and justifiable is the “risk appetite”.

3.5.

Roles and responsibilities - The primary member oversight on risk is provided by
the Governance and Audit Committee. Cabinet also has a member Risk Champion
(the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Governance and Coastal Development) who
promotes risk management and its benefits throughout the council.

3.6.

At staff level, the high-level corporate risk register is regularly considered by the
Corporate Management Team (CMT). G&A Committee considers changes to the
corporate risk register, the reasons for the changes and the actions being taken to
mitigate the likelihood and impact of those risks. A view is also taken regarding the
extent to which the risks should be tolerated.

3.7.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Position
Statement on Audit Committees (2018) sets out the key principles for audit
committees operating in local government.

3.8.

The statement sets out the key responsibilities of the committee to include:

Page 141

Agenda Item 9

‘consider the effectiveness of the authority’s r isk management arrangements
and the control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and
assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including
partnerships and collaborations with other organisations’
3.9.
4.

The report seeks to aid the committee to discharge these responsibilities.
Corporate risk register

4.1.

A summary of the highest scoring corporate risks on the register is set out in the table
and the following narrative below, together with the comparative scores noted by the
Governance & Audit Committee on 4 March 2020.

4.2.

The scores are arrived at by multiplying the “likelihood” score by the “impact” score,
where the maximum score for each is four, so the maximum total score is sixteen.
Ref

Description

Mar 20
Score

Jul 20
Score

Change

CR-05

Political Stewardship

16

16

No change

CR-10

EKH Performance/Transition

16

16

No change

CR-11

Covid-19

-

16

New

CR-01

Limited Resources

12

12

No change

CR-09

Brexit

12

12

No change

4.3.

Each corporate risk is the responsibility of a member of CMT and they manage risk
mitigation plans with the aim of reducing the likelihood and/or impact of each risk to a
manageable level. As time moves on, the external environment changes and this can
have an impact on the effectiveness of mitigating actions as well as on the likelihood
and impact of a risk: hence the need to maintain vigilance in respect of mitigation
plans as well as new and changing risks.

4.4.

It is more difficult to take action to reduce the impact of a risk occurring, than it is to
take action to reduce its likelihood. Hence in some cases, the scores after mitigation
will remain relatively high.

5.
5.1.

Highest-scoring risks
Political Stewardship (Impact 4, Probability 4): This continues to represent a risk
to the council, as demonstrated by the change in Council leadership last year, the
Council remains in no overall control. It is still evident that there remain ongoing
issues which could have a significant effect on the council. The council continues to
pursue opportunities to support cross-party working and induction training for new
members took place post election.

Page 142

Agenda Item 9
5.2.

East Kent Housing (EKH) Performance/Transition (Impact 4, Probability 4):
EKH was created in 2011 by the four East Kent client Council’s in order to provide
Landlord services for each of the respective client Council’s housing stock.
A number of failures on the part of EKH led to an improvement plan being
approved by Cabinet in January 2019 and subsequently being introduced.
Additional failures led to the 17 October 2019 Cabinet report which agreed that
subject to consultation, the preferred option was to bring the Landlord service back
in house. Cabinet on 17 February 2020, following tenant consultation, agreed the
EKH service to be brought back in house from 1 October 2020.
The Cabinet decision itself results in an element of risk. This relates to two key areas:
financial and service delivery.
A revised 2020-21 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) will be presented to Cabinet on
30th July 2020. This report will set out the resources needed to deliver the required
level of service to tenants, whilst ensuring on-going financial sustainability for the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA). There will also be one-off costs associated with
the transfer that will need to be assessed and managed.
The Council working alongside other EKH member Councils has set up a series of
dedicated work streams to manage the transition arrangements. These alongside the
internal project steering group and Transition Project Manager will assess emerging
risks associated with the transition and help deliver mitigating actions.
The work streams will also consider which staff transfer from EKH under the COSOP
and TUPE arrangements which assists in providing certainty to existing and valued
EKH staff.

5.3.

Limited Resources (Impact 4, Probability 3): The high score for Limited Resources
reflects the fact that it is one of the few risks that in extremis could result in the council
losing control of its own destiny.
Due to national political uncertainty, an unresolved Brexit and now the impacts of
Covid-19, the Chancellor confirmed that Councils will now get a ‘one-year roll-over
settlement’ for 2020-21. This has severe implications for financial planning in the
Medium Term Financial Strategy and any longer term planning. Due to the
government’s focus on Brexit, the Fair Funding Review, planned to be implemented in
2020-21 has also slipped to 2021-22.
Therefore, the likelihood and severity of the impact of the risk becoming manifest (e.g.
TDC having to terminate services, make large-scale redundancies and/or be
externally governed or managed) remains high, not only now but for the immediate
future.
The Council approved the 2020-21 budget, however the impact of Covid-19 on both
income and expenditure forecasts is starting to be realised.
The Council is undertaking an early budget monitoring report to review the current
impact against the budget of Covid-19, however this will only reflect the impact to the

Page 143

Agenda Item 9
end of May and Covid-19 is still having an on-going impact which may be felt for
several months after lockdown restrictions begin to ease.
The Government has however made some funds available for local authorities to
offset some of the impact, but the reality at the moment is that this is unlikely to cover
all income losses or increased expenditure of providing services.
5.4.

Brexit (Impact 3, Probability 4) - The UK left the European Union on 31 January
2020. UK Government is still continuing to work on arriving at an agreed deal on exit,
with the true impacts of exiting the EU only likely to be felt after the transition period
has concluded in December 2020.
Covid-19 may also have a bearing on the timetable for concluding Brexit discussions
but it is too early to tell if this is the case.
Therefore significant risk may still manifest and whilst there are national concerns that
must be addressed, the council must focus primarily on managing those risks which
have a local and regional impact in particular.
The scale of its effect should not be underestimated and the council has identified a
lead officer to lead on Brexit related issues and progressed contingency planning for a
disorderly Brexit.
The significant issues to consider are those concerning the strategic transport
network, funding and the port. In addition, the council has identified a number of
issues that could potentially impact the council's ability to deliver its services.

5.5.

New Risk - Coronavirus (Impact 4, Probability 4):
In ‘normal’ emergencies, local authorities and local resilience forums deal first with an
emergency and then the Recovery – getting back to ‘business as usual’ (for example,
when the flood waters recede, work takes place to repair any damage and to get
people back into their homes). The Recovery from the Covid-19 Pandemic will be
unlike any other in our lifetimes. The crisis has gone on for longer, been more
extreme and will have more profound consequences than anything we have prepared
for before.
We will also be simultaneously working on Recovery in tandem with the Response
phase and have the potential to return to Response at any time if there is a second
wave of infections. There is also the likelihood that the Recovery will span other
Emergency Planning events including the end of the Brexit Transition Phase and that
for much of it, staff and partners will be working remotely. Finally, the sheer scale and
breadth of the social and economic impacts means that we will be entering uncharted
territory and it is hard to predict where we will end up.

6.
6.1.

Recommendation
To approve the review of corporate risks

Page 144

Agenda Item 9
Contact Officer:

Chris Blundell, Head of Financial and Procurement Services

Reporting to:

Tim Willis, Deputy Chief Executive and S151 Officer

Annex List
None

N/A

Corporate Consultation
Finance

Chris Blundell, Head of Financial and Procurement Services

Legal

Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance

Page 145

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2019-20
Governance & Audit Committee

22 July 2020

Report Author

Tim Willis, Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for Finance,
Administration and Community Wealth Building

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
This report summarises treasury management activity and prudential/ treasury indicators for
2019-20. However, the council’s 2019-20 accounts have not yet been audited and hence the
figures in this report are subject to change.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury
management as:
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions;
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”
The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of
treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore, important in that
respect, as it provides details of the 2019-20 year-end position for treasury activities.
Key reporting items for the committee to consider include:
●
●
●

●
●

2019-20 capital expenditure on long term assets was £17.5m (2018-19: £15.4m),
against a budget of £36.3m.
The council’s gross debt, also called the borrowing position, at 31 March 2020 was
£25.0m (31 March 2019: £30.5m).
The council’s underlying need to borrow to finance its capital expenditure, also called
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), was £50.0m at 31 march 2020 (31 March
2019: £47.3m).
Therefore it can be reported the council has complied with the requirement to hold
less gross debt than its CFR.
The maximum debt held by the council during 2019-20 was £30.5m, which was well
within the statutory authorised limit of £103.0m

Page 147

Agenda Item 10
●

At the 31 March 2020 the councils investment balance was £33.9m (31 March 2019:
£41.7m).

Recommendation(s):
That the Governance & Audit Committee:
1. Notes the actual 2019-20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report;
2. Approves this Annual Treasury Management report for 2019-20;
3. Recommends this report to Cabinet and council.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
The financial implications are highlighted in this report.
Value for
Money
Legal
Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act requires a suitably
qualified named officer to keep control of the council’s finances. For this
council, this is the Deputy Chief Executive and this report is helping to
carry out that function.
Corporate

Failure to undertake this process will impact on the council’s compliance
with the Treasury Management Code of Practice.
Equalities Act There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this
2010 & Public report, but the council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on
Sector Equality issues of diversity amongst the local community and ensure service
Duty
delivery matches these.
It is important to be aware of the council’s responsibility under the Public
Sector Equality Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration
had been given to the equalities impact that may be brought upon
communities by the decisions made by council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick those relevant)✓
Growth

✓

Environment

✓

Communities

✓

Page 148

Agenda Item 10
1.
1.1.

Introduction and Background
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury
management as:
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions;
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

1.2.

The council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being
available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or
instruments commensurate with the council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.

1.3.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of
the council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the council
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any existing debt may also be
restructured to meet council risk or cost objectives.

2.

Reporting Requirements

2.1.

This council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Finance
Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2019-20. This report meets the
requirements of both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.2.

During 2019-20 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full council should
receive the following reports:
● an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (council 07-02-2019):
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s62949/Annex%203%20TMSS.pdf
● a mid-year treasury update report (council 05-12-2019):
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s66375/Mid%20Year%20Report%20
Council%202019-20.pdf
●

2.3.

an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to
the strategy (this report).

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore,
important in that respect, as it provides details of the 2019-20 year-end position for
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the council’s policies previously
approved by members.

Page 149

Agenda Item 10
2.4.

This council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give
prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Governance and
Audit Committee before they were reported to the full council. Member training on
treasury management issues was last undertaken on 31-10-2019 in order to support
members’ scrutiny role, and further training will be arranged as required. The council’s
external treasury management advisor is Link Asset Services (Link).

2.5.

The council’s 2019-20 accounts have not yet been audited and hence the figures in
this report are subject to change

3.
3.1.

The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing
The council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may
either be:
●

Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant
impact on the council’s borrowing need; or

●

If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources,
the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. The
table below shows the actual capital expenditure for the General Fund (GF) and the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and how this was financed.

2018-19
Actual
£’000

2019-20
Budget
£’000

2019-20
Provisional
Actual
£’000

Capital expenditure - GF

9,945

16,216

6,887

Capital expenditure - HRA

5,435

20,112

10,586

Capital expenditure - Total

15,380

36,328

17,473

Capital receipts

3,182

8,974

2,964

Capital grants

3,517

8,377

5,954

Revenue and reserves

4,639

9,683

3,760

Borrowing

4,042

9,294

4,795

Total

15,380

36,328

17,473

Financed by:

3.2.

Full details of capital expenditure and explanations of variances from budget will be
reported within the Financial and Performance Monitoring Year-End Report to Cabinet
in September.

Page 150

Agenda Item 10
4.

The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need

4.1.

The council’s underlying need to borrow to fund its capital expenditure is termed the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR can be thought of as the
outstanding debt that still needs to be repaid in relation to the capital assets
(buildings, vehicles etc) that the council has purchased on inverted in. It can also be
helpful to compare it to the outstanding balance that is still payable on a loan or a
mortgage, in this case we are considering how much of the council’s debt still needs
to be paid for.

4.2.

Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent
over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the council should ensure that
its gross external borrowing (borrowing undertaken with financial institutions or
external organisations) does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR
in the preceding year (2018-19) plus the estimates of any additional capital financing
requirement for the current (2019-20) and next two financial years.

4.3.

This essentially means that the council is only borrowing to fund capital expenditure
and is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. Under statutory requirements
councils are not allowed to borrow to fund their revenue budget activities.

4.4.

By assessing this indicator over four years it allows the council some flexibility to
borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2019-20. The table below
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR and shows that the
council has complied with this prudential indicator, as the council’s gross debt of
£25.0m is less than the £50.0m CFR at 31 March 2020.

31 March
2019
Actual
£’000

31 March
2020
Budget
£’000

CFR GF

26,497

28,179

31 March
2020
Provisional
Actual
£’000
25,836

CFR HRA

20,786

26,356

24,200

Total CFR

47,283

54,535

50,036

(30,456)

(42,451)

(25,025)

16,827

12,084

25,011

Gross borrowing position
Underfunding of CFR

4.5.

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required
by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003. Once this has been set, the council does
not have the power to borrow above this level.

4.6.

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing
position of the council during the year. Periods where the actual position is either
below or over the boundary are acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being
breached.

Page 151

Agenda Item 10
4.7.

4.8.

The table below demonstrates that during 2019-20 the Council’s maximum gross debt
position was £30.456m and therefore it has maintained gross borrowing within its
authorised limit and operational boundary.

Authorised limit

2019-20
£000
103,000

Maximum gross borrowing position during the year

30,456

Operational boundary

93,000

Average gross borrowing position

27,219

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator
identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long term obligation
costs net of investment income), against the net revenue stream.

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - GF

2019-20
%
7.4%

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream -HRA

4.3%

Page 152

Agenda Item 10
5.
5.1.

Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020
Table 1 presents the council‘s treasury (excluding finance leases) at the beginning
and the end of 2019-20 position.
Table 1 - Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020

31 March
2019
Principal

Rate/
Return

Average
Life

£’000

%

Years

31
March
2020
Principal
£’000

Rate/
Return

Average
Life

%

Years

Gross Debt Position
GF debt

10,416

3.22%

13.8

9,125

3.28%

14.8

HRA debt

20,040

4.03%

7.3

15,900

4.08%

8.3

Total debt
(all fixed
rate)

30,456

3.75%

9.5

25,025

3.80%

10.7

25,025

3.80%

10.7

(33,904)

0.79%

CFR compared to Gross Debt
GF CFR

26,497

25,836

HRA CFR

20,786

24,200

Total CFR

47,283

50,036

Underborrowing

16,827

25,011

Net Debt / Investment
Total debt
Total
investments
Net debt /
(investment)

30,456

3.75%

(41,673)

0.69%

(11,217)

9.5

(8,879)

5.2.

Table 1 shows that, as previously stated, gross debt was £25.025m and the CFR was
£50.036m at the end of 2019-20. This means the Council is in an under borrowed
position of £25.011m, as external gross debt is less than the CFR.

5.3.

Table 1 also shows that the council’s investments totalled £33.904m at the 2019-20
year end and therefore was in a net investment position, as investments held
exceeded gross debt by £8.879m.

5.4.

All of the debt is from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), which is a facility is
operated by the UK Debt Management Office on behalf of HM Treasury and provides
loans to local authorities, apart from the following two GF loans (as at 31 March
2020):
●
●

Market: £4.500m principal at 4.19% with an average life of 0.5 years.
Salix: £22k principal at 0.00% with an average life of 1.0 year.

Page 153

Agenda Item 10
5.5.

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio, or the timeline of when the council’s debt
is repayable, was as follows:

Under 1 year
1 year to under 2 years
2 years to under 5 years
5 years to under 10 years
10 years to under 20 years
20 years to under 30 years
30 years to under 40 years
40 years to under 50 years
50 years and above
Total debt

5.6.

31 March 2019
actual
£000

2019-20
upper limits
£000

9,932
631
4,772
2,835
8,366
1,000
1,920
1,000
0
30,456

12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512
12,512

31 March 2020
provisional
actual
£000
5,131
4,179
3,080
2,356
7,359
1,920
0
1,000
0
25,025

The following table shows the value of the type of investments the council was
holding at year-end. All investments at the 2018-19 year-end were for under one
year. Investments at the 2019-20 year-end for longer than 365 days were £0.6m.

Banks - Instant Access
Banks - Notice Accounts
Banks - Fixed Term Deposits
Money Market Funds
Total Treasury Investments

31 March
2019
actual
£000
3
4,453
13,414
23,803
41,673

31 March
2019
actual %
0.01
10.68
32.19
57.12
100.00

31 March
2020
actual
£000
3
4,453
13,483
15,965
33,904

Page 154

31 March
2020
actual %
0.01
13.13
39.77
47.09
100.00

Agenda Item 10
6.

The Strategy for 2019-20

6.1.
6.1.1.

Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk
The following chart tracks the Bank of England base rate of interest and the London
Interbank Bid Rates (LIBID) during 2019-20.

6.1.2.

Investment returns remained low during 2019-20. The expectation for interest rates
within the treasury management strategy for 2019-20 was that Bank Rate would be
1.00% during 2019-20 and would increase steadily but slowly over the next few
financial years to reach 2.00% by quarter 1 2022.

6.1.3.

Rising concerns over the possibility that the UK could leave the EU at the end of
October 2019 caused longer term investment rates to be on a falling trend for most of
April to September. They then rose after the end of October deadline was rejected by
the Commons but fell back again in January before recovering again after the 31
January departure of the UK from the EU. When the coronavirus outbreak hit the UK
in February/March, rates initially plunged but then rose sharply back up again due to a
shortage of liquidity in financial markets. As longer term rates were significantly
higher than shorter term rates during the year, value was therefore sought by placing
longer term investments where cash balances were sufficient to allow this.

6.1.4.

While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully
appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of
additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis.
These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with
annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to
cope with extreme stressed market and economic conditions.

Page 155

Agenda Item 10

6.1.5.

6.2.

Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of
using reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing
externally from the financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an
additional cost, due to the differential between borrowing and investment rates as
illustrated in the charts shown above and below. Such an approach has also provided
benefits in terms of reducing the counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer
investments placed in the financial markets.

Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk

6.2.1.

During 2019-20, the council maintained an under-borrowed position. This meant that
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) was not fully funded
with loan debt, as cash supporting the council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was
used as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were
low and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be
considered.

6.2.2.

A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not
immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary
increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference
between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns.

6.2.3.

The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has
served well over the last few years. However, this was kept under review to avoid
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to
avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing
debt.

6.2.4.

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was
adopted with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore monitored
interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the
following principles to manage interest rate risks:
● if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and
short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into
recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term
borrowing would have been considered.
● if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long
and short term rates than initially expected (e.g. perhaps arising from an
acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the
USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in
inflation risks), then the portfolio position would have been re-appraised. Most
likely, fixed rate funding would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower
than they were projected to be in the next few years.

6.2.5.

Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed
borrowing rates during 2019-20 and the two subsequent financial years. Variable, or
short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.

Page 156

Agenda Item 10

6.2.6.

PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government bonds) yields
through HM Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields. There was
much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond markets were in a bubble
which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low levels. The
context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for
a recession in 2020, and a general background of a downturn in world economic
growth, especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the US
and China, together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and
expected to remain subdued. These conditions were conducive to very low bond
yields. While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over
the last 30 years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central
rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this
means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major
impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of

Page 157

Agenda Item 10
interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years. We have
therefore seen, over the last year, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone
turn negative. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the
US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has
been a precursor of a recession. The other side of this coin is that bond prices are
elevated as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e.
shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of
equities.
6.2.7.

Gilt yields were on a generally falling trend during the last year up until the
coronavirus crisis hit western economies. Since then, gilt yields have fallen sharply to
unprecedented lows as investors have panicked in selling shares in anticipation of
impending recessions in western economies, and moved cash into safe haven assets
i.e. government bonds. However, major western central banks also started
quantitative easing purchases of government bonds which will act to maintain
downward pressure on government bond yields at a time when there is going to be a
huge and quick expansion of government expenditure financed by issuing
government bonds (this would normally cause bond yields to rise). At the close of the
day on 31 March, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between 0.12 – 0.20% while
even 25-year yields were at only 0.83%.

6.2.8.

However, HM Treasury has imposed two changes in the margins over gilt yields
for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 October 2019,
added an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB rates. That increase was then
partially reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11 March 2020, at the same time as
the Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased spending on
infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with
local authorities on possibly further amending these margins; this ends on 4 June. It is
clear that the Treasury intends to put a stop to local authorities borrowing money from
the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an income
stream.

6.2.9.

Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current
situation is as follows: ● PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps)
● PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps)
● PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
● PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
● Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

6.2.10.

There may be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will
take national economies a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they will
lose in the sharp recession that will be caused during the coronavirus shut down
period. Inflation may also be very low during this period and could even turn negative
in some major western economies during 2020-21.

6.3.

Change in strategy during the year – the strategy adopted in the original Treasury
Management Strategy Report for 2019-20 (approved by the council on 07-02-19) was
revised during 2019-20 in the mid-year treasury update report (approved by the
council on 05-12-19).

Page 158

Agenda Item 10
7.

Borrowing Outturn for 2019-20

7.1.

Borrowing – Due to investment concerns, both counterparty risk and low investment
returns, no borrowing was undertaken during the year.

7.2.

Borrowing in advance of need - The council has not borrowed more than, or in
advance of, its needs purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums
borrowed.

7.3.

Rescheduling – No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1%
differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates
made rescheduling unviable.

7.4.

Repayments – The council repaid £5.431m of maturing debt using investment
balances, as below:
Principal
Repayment
Lender
Interest Rate
£’000
Date
960
3.84%
01-04-19
PWLB

7.5.

8.
8.1.

Salix

4

0.00%

01-04-19

PWLB

43

3.08%

23-04-19

PWLB

50

2.48%

27-05-19

PWLB

146

1.97%

27-05-19

PWLB

72

1.28%

20-06-19

PWLB

3,841

3.57%

01-10-19

Salix

4

0.00%

01-10-19

PWLB

43

3.08%

23-10-19

PWLB

50

2.48%

27-11-19

PWLB

146

1.97%

27-11-19

PWLB

72

1.28%

20-12-19

Total

5,431

Summary of debt transactions – The average interest rate on the debt portfolio
increased from 3.75% to 3.80% during the year. This was due to the repayment of
maturing debt as shown above.

Investment Outturn for 2019-20
Investment Policy – the council’s investment policy is governed by the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) investment guidance, which
has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the council on
7 February 2019. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment

Page 159

Agenda Item 10
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating
agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit
default swaps, bank share prices etc.).
8.2.

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, apart
from exceeding the £0.5m bank overdraft benchmark for one day only. This was a
technical breach and the council had no liquidity difficulties during the year. In
addition, with effect from 18 March 2020 the council rolled a maturing 6 month fixed
term deposit of £4.115m into another 6 month fixed term deposit with the same bank.
Although the maximum duration as per the council’s investment policy (set out in the
Treasury Management Strategy Report) was 370 days, the suggested maximum
duration with this bank from the council’s treasury adviser, Link Asset Services, has
subsequently sometimes been reduced from 6 months to 100 days.

8.3.

Following the year-end, from 1 April 2020 to 15 April 2020 inclusive, the council
maintained balances with its own banker which exceeded the £7m investment limit
stipulated in the council’s investment policy; the highest daily deposit account balance
being £26.764m. However, these balances were for operational/transactional
purposes (to help deal with the coronavirus pandemic) rather than for investment. The
council received an exceptional amount of coronavirus related grant funding (£40m)
from the Government on 1 April 2020 and (given the very short notice) was unable to
fully absorb this within its various money market funds (MMFs), given MMF facility
limits and MMFs available at that time.

8.4.

Resources - the council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources
and cash flow monies. The council’s core cash resources comprised as follows:

GF Balance

2,011

31 March 2020
Provisional
£000
2,011

Earmarked Reserves

13,998

12,763

HRA Balance

9,308

8,645

Capital Receipts Reserve

9,437

8,544

Major Repairs Reserve

12,765

15,469

Capital Grants Unapplied

43

43

Total Usable Reserves

47,562

47,475

Balance Sheet Resources

8.5.

31 March 2019
£000

Investments held by the council
● The council maintained an average balance of £46.352m of internally managed
funds.
● The internally managed funds earned an average rate of return of 0.79%.
● The comparable performance indicator is the average 7-day London Interbank
Bid Rate (LIBID) rate, which was 0.54%.

Page 160

Agenda Item 10
●
●
8.6.

9.

This compares with an original budget assumption of £49m investment balances
earning an average rate of 0.75%.
Total investment income was £368k compared to a budget of £370k.

Investments held by fund managers – the council does not use external fund
managers on a discretionary basis for any part of its investment portfolio.

Investment risk benchmarking

9.1.

The following investment benchmarks were set in the council’s 2019-20 annual
treasury strategy:

9.1.1.

Security - The council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio,
when compared to historic default tables, is:
●

9.1.2.

0.05% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio (excluding
unrated investments).

Liquidity – in respect of this area the council seeks to maintain:
● Bank overdraft - £0.5m
●

Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice.

●

Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years, with a maximum of
5 years.

9.1.3.

Yield - local measures of yield benchmarks are:
● Investments – internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate

9.1.4.

The council kept to the above benchmarks during 2019-20 apart from exceeding the
bank overdraft benchmark as referred to in section 7.2 above.

10.
10.1.

International Financial Reporting Standard 16 (IFRS 16)
The implementation of IFRS16 (bringing almost all lease liabilities on to the balance
sheet together with the corresponding ‘right of use’ assets) has been delayed for one
year from 2020-21 to 2021-22 accounts closedown, due to Covid-19

11.
11.1.

Options
The recommended option (to ensure regulatory compliance as set out in section 1 of
this report) is that the Governance & Audit Committee:
● Notes the actual 2019-20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.
● Approves this Annual Treasury Management report for 2019-20.
● Recommends this report to Cabinet and council.

11.2.

Alternatively, the Governance & Audit Committee may decide not to do this and
provide reason(s) why.

Page 161

Agenda Item 10

12.
12.1.

Next Steps
This report is to go to Cabinet and council for approval. Cabinet and council meetings
are on 17 September 2020 and 15 October 2020 respectively.

13.
13.1.

Disclaimer
This report is a technical document focussing on public sector investments and
borrowings and, as such, readers should not use the information contained within the
report to inform personal investment or borrowing decisions. Neither Thanet District
Council nor any of its officers or employees makes any representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained
herein (such information being subject to change without notice) and shall not be in
any way responsible or liable for the contents hereof and no reliance should be
placed on the accuracy, fairness or completeness of the information contained in this
document. Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement and
there can be no assurance that they will be consistent with future results or events.
No person accepts any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from any
use of this document or its contents or otherwise in connection therewith.

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Tim Willis, Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer, ext: 7617
Madeline Homer, Chief Executive

Annex List
Annex 1
Annex 2

Report Guidance
Abbreviations and Definitions

Corporate Consultation Undertaken
Finance
Legal

Chris Blundell, Head of Financial and Procurement Services
Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance & Monitoring Officer

Page 162

Agenda Item 10
Annex 1
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2019-20
Annex 1: Report Guidance

Capital Expenditure and Financing
This section includes the council’s debt and Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) split
between its General Fund (GF) and Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The HRA is a
‘ring-fenced’ account for local authority housing.
The CFR represents the council’s aggregate borrowing need (the element of the capital
programme that has not been funded). The council’s debt should not normally be higher than
its CFR as explained in the report.
Borrowing Need
PWLB is the Public Works Loan Board which is a statutory body operating within the UK
Debt Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury. PWLB’s function is to lend
money from the National Loans Fund to local authorities, and to collect the repayments.
The council has the following types of fixed rate loan with the PWLB:
●
●
●

Annuity: fixed half-yearly payments to include principal and interest.
Equal Instalments of Principal: equal half-yearly payments of principal together with
interest on the outstanding balance.
Maturity: half-yearly payments of interest only with a single payment of principal at
the end of the term.

Financing Costs as a Proportion of Net Revenue Stream
This shows (separately for HRA and GF) the percentage of the council’s revenue stream that
is used to finance the CFR (net interest payable and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)).
MRP is the annual resource contribution from revenue which must be set against the CFR
so that it does not increase indefinitely.
Borrowing and Investments
Borrowing limits – there are various general controls on the council’s borrowing activity
(operational boundary, authorised limit and maturity profiles).
General controls on the council’s investment activity, to safeguard the security and liquidity
of its investments, include:
●
●
●
●
●

Creditworthiness of investment counterparties.
Counterparty money limits.
Counterparty time limits.
Counterparty country limits.
Minimum size of the Council’s bank overdraft facility.

Page 163

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Annex 2
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2019-20
Annex 2: Abbreviations and Definitions

ALMO An Arm’s Length Management Organisation is a not-for-profit company that provides housing
services on behalf of a local authority. Usually an ALMO is set up by the authority to manage
and improve all or part of its housing stock.
LAS

Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions – the council’s treasury management advisers.

CE

Capital Economics - is the economics consultancy that provides Link Asset Services,
Treasury solutions, with independent economic forecasts, briefings and research.

CFR

Capital Financing Requirement - the council’s annual underlying borrowing need to finance
capital expenditure and a measure of the council’s total outstanding indebtedness.

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy – the professional accounting body
that oversees and sets standards in local authority finance and treasury management.
CPI

Consumer Price Inflation – the official measure of inflation adopted as a common standard by
countries in the EU. It is a measure that examines the weighted average of prices of a basket
of consumer goods and services, such as transportation, food and medical care. It is
calculated by taking price changes for each item in the predetermined basket of goods and
averaging them.

ECB

European Central Bank - the central bank for the Eurozone.

EU

European Union.

EZ

Eurozone - those countries in the EU which use the euro as their currency.

Fed

The Federal Reserve, often referred to simply as "the Fed," is the central bank of the United
States. It was created by Congress to provide the nation with a stable monetary and financial
system.

FOMC The Federal Open Market Committee – this is the branch of the Federal Reserve Board which
determines monetary policy in the USA by setting interest rates and determining quantitative
easing policy. It is composed of 12 members -- the seven members of the Board of
Governors and five of the 12 Reserve Bank presidents.
GDP

Gross Domestic Product – a measure of the growth and total size of the economy.

G7

The group of seven countries that form an informal bloc of industrialised democracies--the
United States, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, and the United Kingdom--that meets
annually to discuss issues such as global economic governance, international security, and
energy policy.

Gilts

Gilts are bonds issued by the UK Government to borrow money on the financial markets.
Interest paid by the Government on gilts is called a coupon and is at a rate that is fixed for the
duration until maturity of the gilt (unless a gilt is index linked to inflation). While the coupon
rate is fixed, the yields will change inversely to the price of gilts, i.e. a rise in the price of a gilt
will mean that its yield will fall.

HRA

Housing Revenue Account.

Page 165

Agenda Item 10
Annex 2
IMF

International Monetary Fund - the lender of last resort for national governments which get into
financial difficulties.

LIBID The London Interbank Bid Rate is the rate bid by banks on deposits, i.e. the rate at which a
bank is willing to borrow from other banks. It is the "other end" of the LIBOR (an offered,
hence "ask" rate, the rate at which a bank will lend).
MHCLG The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government - the Government department
that directs local authorities in England.
MPC

The Monetary Policy Committee is a committee of the Bank of England, which meets for one
and a half days, eight times a year, to determine monetary policy by setting the official interest
rate in the United Kingdom (the Bank of England Base Rate, commonly called Bank Rate),
and by making decisions on quantitative easing.

MRP

Minimum Revenue Provision - a statutory annual minimum revenue charge to reduce the total
outstanding CFR (the total indebtedness of a local authority).

PFI

Private Finance Initiative – capital expenditure financed by the private sector i.e. not by direct
borrowing by a local authority.

PWLB Public Works Loan Board – this is the part of H.M. Treasury which provides loans to local
authorities to finance capital expenditure.
QE

Quantitative Easing – is an unconventional form of monetary policy where a central bank
creates new money electronically to buy financial assets, like government bonds (but may
also include corporate bonds). This process aims to stimulate economic growth through
increased private sector spending in the economy and also aims to return inflation to target.
These purchases increase the supply of liquidity to the economy; this policy is employed
when lowering interest rates has failed to stimulate economic growth to an acceptable level
and to lift inflation to target. Once QE has achieved its objectives of stimulating growth and
inflation, QE will be reversed by selling the bonds the central bank had previously purchased,
or by not replacing debt that it held which matures. The aim of this reversal is to ensure that
inflation does not exceed its target once the economy recovers from a sustained period of
depressed growth and inflation. Economic growth, and increases in inflation, may threaten to
gather too much momentum if action is not taken to ‘cool’ the economy.

RPI

The Retail Price Index is a measure of inflation that measures the change in the cost of a
representative sample of retail goods and services. It was the UK standard for measurement
of inflation until the UK changed to using the EU standard measure of inflation – CPI. The
main differences between RPI and CPI is in the way that housing costs are treated and that
the former is an arithmetical mean whereas the latter is a geometric mean. RPI is often higher
than CPI for these reasons.

TMSS The annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement report that all local authorities are
required to submit for approval by the full council before the start of each financial year.
VRP

A Voluntary Revenue Provision to repay debt, in the annual budget, which is additional to the
annual MRP charge (see above definition).

Page 166

